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SABECO

I. THONG TIN CHUNG:
GENERAL INFORMATION
1. Thong tin khai quat

Company's Overview

Tén doanh nghiép : CONG TY CO PHAN BIA SAI GON- SONG LAM

Company name SAI GON — SONG LAM JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Tén viet tat/ Abbreviated SASOBECO

name

Bia chi : Khéi I, Xa Hung Pao. Huyén Hung Nguyén, tinh Nghé An.

Address: Hamlet 1, Hung Dao Commune, Hung Nauven Rural District,
Nghe An Province.

SO BKKD: © 2900783332, do S K¢ hoach va Déu tr tinh Ngh¢ An thay déi
lan thir 8 ngay 05/09/2023.

Number of Business i 2900783332 issued by the Department of Planning and

Registration: Investment of Nghe An Province, the 8 changed on September

o 03, 2023,

Von diéu [é © 450.000.000,000 dong.

Charter capital c NP 450.000,000.000

86 dién thoal/ Telephone : 02388.662.662

So Fax : 02388.662.664

Website :

Ma o phiéw/ Stock ticker : BSL

San giao dich/ Stock : Upcom

exchange

Qui trinh hinh thanh va phat trién/ Incorporation and development process:

Ngay 20/12/2006: Cong ty Cé phén Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam duge thanh 1ap theo Giay ding
ky kinh doanh Céng ty C6 phén s6 2703001077.

December 20, 2006: Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company was established under
Business Registration Certificare No. 2703001077,

Tir 2007 — thang 6/2009: Cong ty tién hanh céc thi tuc chudn bi diu tr xdy dung Nha may bia
Sai Gon — Séng Lam khu vie Ri Muou thude dia ban xd Nam Giang, huyén Nam Pan va xa
Hung Dago. huyén Hung Nguyén, tinh Nghé An.

2007 — June 2009: The company conducted preparatory procedures for the investment and
construction of the Saigon — Song Lam Beer Factory in the Ru Muou area, located in Nam
Giang commune, Nam Dan district, and Hung Dao commune, Hung Nguven district, Nghe An
pravince

Ngay 13/07/2009: Nha mdy Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam dwoe chinh thic trién khai xdy dimg v



tong gid tri thye hién du 4n giai doan 1 13 1,045 ty dong, trong dé phan thiét bj tri gid 859,797
ty dong. Tong thiu thiét ké, ché tao va xdy lap nha may 14 Cang ty Kroness AG — CHLB Bire,
cong sudt thiet ke dat 100 trigu lit/ndam va du phong mo rong lén 200 tri¢u lit'nam.

July 13, 2009: The construction of the Saigon — Song Lam Beer Factory officially commenced,
with a Phase 1 project investment totaling VND 1,045 billion, of which VND 859.797 hillion
was allocated to equipment. The factory's design, manufacturing, and construction were
undertaken by the German contractor Kroness AG. The designed capacity was 100 million
liters/vear, with provisions for expansion to 200 million liters/year.

Ngily 12/08/2010: San xuft mé bia thuong mai dau tién.

Trong sudt qua trinh hinh thanh va phat trién Céng ty luén ludn nhin dwge sy linh dao, chi dao
true tiép clia Tong Cong ty C6 phén Bia — Ruou — Nwde giai khat Sai Gon.

August 12, 2010: The factory produced its first commercial batch of beer.

Throughout its establishment and development, the company has consistently received direct
leadership and guidance from Saigon Beer — Alcohol — Beverage Corporation (SABECO).
Ngay 16/06/2017: Ngay giao dich dau tién ctia ¢b phiéu Cong ty C5 phin Bia Sai Gon — Séng
Lam trén san UPCOM véi ma c6 phiéu BSL.

June 16, 2017: Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company shares (ticker symbol: BSL) were
officially traded on the UPCOM stock exchange for the first time.

Nim 2020 dén nay: Du gap nhiéu kho khin tir nhitng tic dong lau dai cia ND-100/2019/ ND-
CP vi ca nhitng dnh huéng cua dich bénh Covid — 19 nhung BSL viin giit vilng duoc vi the rén
thi truong.

2020 — Present: Despite significant challenges stemming from the long-term effects of Decree
100/2019/NP-CP and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, BSL has mainiained its market
position.

. Nganh nghé va dija ban kinh doanh/ Business lines and location

Nganh nghé kinh doanh: San xuat, kinh doanh bia. ruou, nudce giai khat: mua ban nguyén vit
liéu, vit tu, phu ting, va nganh nghé khac theo quy dinh phap luat.

Business lines: Production and business of beer, wine, and non-alcoholic beverages; trading of
raw materials, supplies, spare parts, and other industries in accordance with the law

Pia ban kinh doanh: Khéi I, X Hung Dao, Huyén Hung Nguyén, tinh Nghé An

Location of business: Hamlet 1, Hung Dao Commune, Hung Nguven Rural District, Nghe An
Province

. Théng tin vé mé hinh qudn tri, to chirc kinh doanh vi b may quin 1y/ Gevernance maodel,
business organization and management.

M@ hinh quin tri: Pai hoi dng c6 dong, Hoi dong quan tri (HPQT), Ban kiém soat va Giam
doc.



Co cau by may quan 1§/ Management structure
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4. Dinh hwdémg phat trien/ Development orientation
Cic muc tiéu chi yéw Company’s main objectives

a. Ting cwdng quan Iy cong tic sin xuiit - giao hang/ Strengthen production and delivery
management
Khéng ngimg cai tién cong nghé, df&ng bo hé Lhéng day chu}fén sin xuAt, thiét bi dam bao on
dinh chit lugng san pham va cam két dua ra thi trudmg cac san pham Bia Sai Gon véi chat lugng
tot nhét, phit hop véi nhu cau va thi hiéu cuia ngudi tiéu ding;
Constantly upgrading technology, synchronizing production lines, equipment, ensuring stable
product quality, and committing to launch to the market Saigon Beer products with the best
gualit;
Kiém soat chat ché dinh mirc kinh té k¥ thudt cac vat tu nguyén vit ligu, nang luong tai timg
cong doan trong qua trinh san xudt; dong thoi ap dung cdc gial phap ky thudt nham tiét kiém
nguyén, nhién vat li¢u, nang lugng;
Strictly controlling economic and technical standards of materials, and energy in production;
adopting technical solutions to save materials and energy simultaneousty;
Ap dung, duy tri h¢ théng quén 1y chat Tugmg theo ti¢u chudn 1SO 9001:2015; HE thong quan 1y
an toan thye pham theo tiéu chuan ISO 22000:2018; H¢ thong phan tich méi nguy va diem kiém
soat tdi han theo HACCP CODEX REV.2022; H¢ théng Quan Iy Moi truong theo tiéu chuan
ISO 14001:2015; Hé théng quan 1y ning lugng theo ISO 50001:2018 va Phong kiém nghiém
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duroc cong nhin phi{lhcu tiéu chuiin ISO/IEC IT{_}ZS:Z{H 7 mang lai nhiéu hiéu qua cao lrong
cong tic giam sat, diéu hanh cc hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh;

The company applies and maintains quality management systems in compliance with ISO
9001:2015, food safety management systems according to ISO 22000:2018, The Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) system according to HACCP CODEX
REV.2022, the Environmental Management System in compliance with ISO 14001:2015, the
Energy Management System following 1SO 50001:2018, and the accredited laboratory meeting
ISO/UEC 17025:2017 standards contribute significantly to enhancing efficiency in monitoring
and managing production and business operations.

Phoi hop ciing don vi thuong mai. van tai giao hang dé dat ké hoach S&OP, giam thai gian luu
kho bia: ddng thi phoi hop trong cic hoat dong quang ba thuong higu san phim theo chu truong
SABECO nham ting miurc ticu thu san phéam tai cic khu vuc ma Céng ty giao hang, nang tam
thuong hiéu Bia Sai Gon;

Coordinating with trading and transportation units to achieve the S&OP plan, reducing beer
storage time; simultaneously collaborating on product branding activities in line with
SABECQ's policy to increase product consumption in the areas where the Company delivers,
thereby enhancing the Saigon Beer brand.

b. Té chirc quan Iy va phét trién ngudn nhin lye/ Management Organization and Development
of Human Resources
Tinh gon b mdy quan Ly, cung cd sy gin két va ning cao ning suit lao dong bing cach duy tri
chinh sach quan ly, danh gia hiéu qua cong viéc, phan phéi lureng thuong va phic 1ol cho nguai
lao déng theo hé s6 hoan thanh cong viée (KPIs).
Lean Management, strengthening cohesion and improving labor productivity by maintaining
management policies, evaluating work performance, making the regulations on the distribution
of wages, bonuses, and benets to employees by key performance indicators (KPIs)
Ning cao ndng lyc cua nhan vién thong qua cac chuong trinh dao tao hang nam.
Improve emplovee capacity through deploying annual training programs.

¢. T&i wu chi phi tai chinh, gia ting hi¢u qui kinh doanh/ Optimizing financial expenses,
increase husiness efficiency
Hoat déng san xuét kinh doanh, quan 1y va luan chuyén dong tién hop 1y, tiét kiém chi phi tai
chinh.
Strengthening practice of business operational budgei controlling, enhancing management and
circulating cash fows appropriately, saving financial expenses;
Cén trong sir dyng don biy tai chinh, han ché ng vay, dam bao tinh hinh tai chinh Céng ty on
dinh, tao nén tang cho su phat trién trong san xuit kinh doanh va diu tu
Being cautious about financial leverage, limiting debt, ensuring a stable financial situation for
the Company, and creating a foundation for the Company 's development in production,
business, and investment

d. Chinh séch chit hrgng, an toin thye pham, moi truong va tiét kiém ning lwong/ Policies
on quality, food safety, environment, and energy
Cong ty cam két cung cip diy di cac ngudn lue dé o chire trién khai thye hién va duy tri chinh
sach;
The Company is committed to provide adequate resources o organize, implement and maintain
the policies on;
San xuét va cung cdp cac sin pham Bia Sai Gon dat chit lugng va dam bdo an toan vé sinh thyc
phém theo tiéu chuan SABECO quy dinh;



Producing & supplying Saigon Beer products of quality; ensuring food safety and hygiene in
consitency with SABECO standards.

Cam két thye hién nhét quan voi Chinh sach Moi truomg, Chinh sich phat trién bén vimg, Chinh

sach quan 1y ngudn nude do SABECO ban hanh thong qua céc hoat dgng:

Being committed to consistent implementation with the Environmental Policy, Sustainable

Development Policy, Water Resource Management Policy issued by SABECO through the

following activities:

+ Chép hanh luat phép hién hinh cia Nha mirdre, cic ché dinh cha cac t6 chire chuyéa nganh

co lién quan.
Complying with the State’s prevailing laws and regulations imposed by relevant
specialized organizations.

_— & . m [ ; - i v s a - A . ¥ r

+  Thuye hién tét viéc kinh doanh cua Céng ty cling nhu quan tri rii ro trén tat ca cac khia
canh c6 anh huong dén van hanh doanh nghiép.
Complying with the State’s prevailing laws and regulations imposed by relevant
specialized organizations

+ Phat huy ¥ nghia cua vige bao tOn tai nguyén, bio v¢ moi truong nhur vin hoa doanh nghigp
cua Cong ty.
Promoting the meaning of resource preservation and environmenial protection as a part
of the Company s corporate culture

+ Cb ging giam thiu cdc tic ddng tiéu cuc dén méi treomg, dén ngudn tai nguyén nudc
trong tét ca cdc hoat déng san xudt kinh doanh hang ngdy ciing nhu trong chién lugc kinh
doanh ciia Cong ty bing cich thue hanh sit dyng tai nguyén nudc, nguyén vat ligu san
xudt, ning lugng tiét kiém va hi¢u qua: dit mye tiéu cy the ve giam lugng nwoc tiéu thu,
giam mirc tiéu hao nang lugng, giam khi thai gay 6 nhiém moi trudmg, giam luong nudc
thai va rac thai.
Making our best efforts to minimize negative impacts on the environmen, and water
resources in all daily business activities as well as in the Company''s business strategy hy
using water resources, production materials, and energy in an economical and efcient
manner; setting specic goals on reducing water consumption, energy consumption, and
emissions causing environmental pollution. as well as sewage and waste.

Dinh ky xem xét va cii tién thirémg xuyén hé thong quan 1Y, cdi tién cong nghg, thiét bi, sir dung
= ‘A = A " = y L = # s a v A . . A =
vit liéy than thién véi méi truong nham néng cao tinh hicu lyre va hiéu qua cua h¢ thong dé gia

ting sur thoda min cdc yéu ciu ngay cang cao cua khich hing.

Periodically reviewing and frequently improving the management system, improving
technology, and equipment, and using environmentally friendly materials to enhance the
effectiveness and efciency of the system to increase satisfaction of the customers’ requirements.

Chién hrge phét trién trung va dai han/ Medium and long-term development strategies.
Gia ting hi¢u qua hoat dong cuia céc nha may trén co s& ha thng ky thuat, thiét bj hién dai.
Increasing the operational efficiency of the breweries based on modern rechnical infrastructure
and equipment

Chung tay cing SABECO phit trién thuong higu Bia Sai Gon, gilt ving va phat trién thi phan
Bia Sai Gon trong khu viyre.

Together with SABECO to develop the Saigon Beer brand, firmly sustain Sai Gon Beer market
share regionally and internationally;

Mang lgi ich thiét thye cho c6 dong, khich hang, déi tc, ngudi lao dong va xa hoi.



Bringing about practical benefits to the shareholders, customers, partners, laborers. and
society:

Xiy dyng mdi truong lam viéc than thién, ning sudt va cht lugng, chi trong dén sire khoe va
dari séng nguoi lao dong, tao moi diéu kién dé nhan 1ai gin bé, sing tao va cong hiln.
Developing a friendly, productive working environment, attaching importance to the laborers’
health and lives, facilitating the talents to be committed, creative and dedicated;

San xuét gin véi bao vé méi truomg, hudmg dén phat thii bang 0 theo dinh hudng ciia tip dodn
trong trong lai.

Associating production with environmental protection, aiming for zero emission in accordance
with the Corporation s future orientation.

Hoat déng cing dbng, xa hoi/ Community and societul activities

Khéng chi nd lyc ning cao hiéu qua san xuit kinh doanh, CTCP Bia Sai Gon — Séng Lam con
luén di dau trong cong tac an sinh xa hoi. Sy phat tricn cua Cong ty khong chi dong gop tich
cue vé mit kinh té cho dia phuong ma con song hanh cing nhimg hoat dong xa ho1 y nghia.
Not only great endeavor to improve its business and production efficiency has been made,
Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company always at the forefront of the social security
work. The development of the Company not only makes positive economic contributions to the
locality but it also goes hand in hand with meaningful societal

Cie riai ro/ Risk factors
Riii ro kinh té&/ Economic risk

Trong nim 2024, hoat dong san xudit va kinh doanh cua cic doanh nghiép da phai d6i dién voi
nhimng khé khan chung cua nén kinh té. Vin d¢ nay xuat phét tir tinh hinh bat én cua chinh tri
todn cau gay ra su gian doan trong chudi cung tmg va sy tang gia xang, diu kéo theo viée gia
tAng gi4 nguyén vat lidu dau vao, dic biét 1a malt. vo lon nhom,.... Khong nhimg thé, xung dot
Nga - Ukraine va cac nuge Trung Dong da lam cham qud trinh phuc héi kinh té sau dai dich
Covid-19, tao ra tinh trang gian doan trong ngudn cung va déay gid hang hoa trén toan cdu tang
lén dot ngdt. Tat ca nhimg yéu t6 nay da anh hudng truc tiép dén chi phi nguyén var lidu dau
vio, gay ra tc dong 1ém dén hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh cua Cong ty.

In 2024, Enterprises have to cope with their production and commercial operations affected by
broader economic challenges. This problem derives from political instability worldwide causing
disruptions in the supply chain, leading to an increase in gasoline and oil prices, the price of
input materials, especially malt and aluminum cans, ...In addition, the conflict between Russia
Ukraine and Middle Eastern countries has slowed down the post-pandemic economic recovery
after the Covid 19 pandemic, leading to supply disruptions, and pushing up global commodity
prices sharply higher. These factors did put an indirect effect on the cost of input materials,
thereby causing a major effect on the Company’s production and business activities

Bén canh dé, riti ro suy thoai kinh té anh huong truc tiép dén thu nhip cua ngudi ddn va doanh
nghiép khién cho nhu cAu tidu dung cua ngudi dan gidm manh. Nganh cong nghiép db ubng &
Viét Nam ciing gép nhiéu kho khan. Timg 1a nuée tiéu thy bia lom nhit Péng Nam A nhung
trong nam 2024, doanh sé ban bia giam 10 - 20% trong khi gid nguyén vt liéu c6 mat hang tang
dén 50%.

Furthermore, the risk of an economic downturn has a dirveect impact on individuals ' and
enterprises ' income, which lowers the consumers " demand. The beverage industry in Vietnam
also faces many difficulties. Once being the Southeast Asia 's largest beer consumption, in 2024,
beer sales has decreased by 10-20% while the cost of raw material for some products has
increased up to 50%



Dé d6i mit véi boi canh kinh (& vin con day thich thirc va kho khan, Cong ty da tép trung vao
cong tac quan 1y i ro va dé xudt cic ké hogceh linh hogt dé thich nghi véi tinh hinh kinh té hign
tai, uu liér} kiém soat chi phi nguyén vt liéu, t6i wru hoa ké hoach sén xudt ma van dam bdo dip
img véu cau thj trudmg.

Amid the context of the economic volatility, the Company always prioritizes its focus on risk
management and proposed plans to adapt to the current economic situation, prioritizes control
of raw material costs, optimizes production plans while ensuring the market's demand.

Rui ro phap luit/ Legal risks

CTCP Bia Sai Gon — Séng Lam la doanh nghiép hoat déng san xuat kinh doanh & Vi¢t Nam va
hoat dong theo hinh thirc cong ty ¢0 phén, duge niém yét tai S¢ Giao dich Chimg khoan Ha Noi
nén Cong ty chiu nhiéu tac dong tir cac van ban phap ludt nhu: Ludt Lao Dong, Luat K& todn,
Luat Doanh Nghiép, Ludt Chimg Khoan, cac Nghi dinh, Thong tu lién quan dén viéc cong b
théng tin, ...
Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company operates as a mantfacturing and trading
enterprise in Vietnam, structured as a joint stock company. It is listed on the Hanoi Stock
Exchange, making the company subject to various legal frameworks, including the Labor Law,
Accounting Law, Enterprise Law, Securities Law, as well as decrees and circulars related to
information disclosure and other regulatory requirements.
Ngoai ra, ¢on ty cling chiu sy chi phdi cia mot s van ban phap ludt ¢o lién quan dén nganh
nghé san xudt kinh doanh nhu: Nghi dinh 100/2019/ NB-CP quy dinh xir phat hanh chinh véi
ngudri ubng ruou, bia diéu khién phuemg tién tham gia giao thong, Nghi dinh 24/2020/ND — CP
di dua ra nhimng quy dinh vé luat phong chéng tac hai ciia rrou bia. Nhimg nghj dinh trén da
gy ra anh hudng lom ddi véi cac doanh nghiép hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh rugu bia.
Additionally, the company is governed by several legal documents related to its production and
business sector, such as Decree 100/2019%NP-CP, which imposes adminisivative penalties on
individuals who drive under the influence of alcohol or beer, and Decree 24/2020/ND-CP,
which outlines regulations under the Law on Prevention and Control of Alcohol-Related Harm.
These decrees have significantly impacted businesses in the alcohol and beer production
industry.
Nhan thirc duge tam quan trong cua vige tuan tha phap luat trong kinh doanh, Céng ty ludn duy
tri va cp nhit thudng xuyén cic thay doi trong quy dinh, ludt 1¢ nhém dam bao su 6n dinh. Boi
vi, moi sy bién déi lién quan dén phap ludt vé nganh hang ¢ lién quan déu ¢ anh hudng dang
ké dén hoat dong kinh doanh cia Cong ty.
Recognizing the importance of legal compliance in business, the Company consistently monitors
and updates changes in regulations and legislation to assure stability. Because the Company's
business operations will be greatly impacted by any changes related to the law pertaining to
relevant industries.
Riii ro canh tranh/Competitiveness Risk
Viét Nam i mét trong nhimg nudc ¢ lugng tiéu thu ruou bia hang diu. Tuy nhién, diéu ndy
ciing ddng nghia véi su canh tranh khde liét tir nhiéu throng hi¢u néi tiéng chiém thi phan lon.
Vietham is among the leading countries in alcohol and beer consumption. However, this also
means fierce competition from major brands that dominate the markel.
Sy canh tranh trén thi truong bia dic biét khéc liét, dan dén nguy co cac doanh nghigp bi tyut la
phia sau, ké ca nhitng thuong hiéu bia lom trén toan ciu déu gip kho khiin trong viéc duy tri thi
phén tai Viét Nam. Vi thé, Cong ty luén no lyc duy tri va cung c6 vi thé cia minh bing viée
phat trién thuong hiéu véi san phim c6 thiét ké hap din, chit lugng dép (g diing nhu cdu ctia
khach hang. Song song do cung SABECO quyét tim dua Bia Sai Gon trd thanh lya chon hang
7



déu ciia ngudi iéu ding Vit

The fierce competitive af beer market increases the risk of enterprises falling behind, even large
worldwide heer brands struggle to maintain their market share in Vietnam. As a result, the
company has always endeavored to maintain and reinforce its position by developing its brand
with appealing designs and high-quality products that fulfill the customers ' needs. Meanwhile,
it is determined to make Saigon Beer to be the first choice of Vietnamese consumers.

Trén thj truémg canh tranh nhir ngay nay, sy doi mai lién tyc va chién lwge quan ly hiéu qua
khong chi giip CTCP Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam vurgt qua thach thirc méa con gilr vimg vi thé
trong tam tri cla ngudi tiéu ding, dong thoi gop phén vao sy phat trién bén vimg cia nganh
cong nghi¢p do udng Vit Nam.

In today's competitive markel, continuous innovation and effective management stralegies not
only enable Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company to overcome challenges but also
help maintain its position in consumers' minds while contributing 1o the sustainable
development of Vietnam's beverage industry.

Riii ro nguyén vét liéu dau vio/ Input material price risk

Hoat dong kinh doanh, san xuit chinh cua Céng ty 14 san xuit bia vai nhimg nguyén li¢u chi
yéu nhu Malt bia, gao, hoa Houblon. Do dic diém khi hiu khing phil hop nén hig¢n tai Vigt Nam
van chua trong duge Malt bia vay nén da phan cic T'ijJLl}"CI'I II{,‘II dl:u duge nhap tlr nurdie ngoai.

(5id cua cac nguyén liéu ¢6 thé bién dung mgnh do nhiéu yéu td nhu thoi tiét, bién dong thi
lnmng toan cau va cdc vin dé vé bén ddi tic cung cip. Sur thay doi ndy co thé tic dong déng ké
dén chi phi san xudt va loi nhugn cua cac doanh nghiép trong nganh. Pé giam thiéu rui ro, uc-ni,
ty chi trong vao vice da dang héa ngudn cung, thudng xuyén giir moi quan h¢ vl nha cung cap
dong thoi diu tu vio u}ng, nghé vi quy trinh sian xuiit hién dai dé lam giam anh hudng cia bién
dong thi trrdmg va thoi tict,

The company's primary business and production activity is beer manufacturing, using key
ingredients such as malt, rice, and hops. Due to Vietnam's unsuitable climate, malt cannot
currently be cultivated domestically, resulting in most raw materials being imported from
abroad. The prices of these ingredients can fluctuate significantly due to factors such as
weather, global market volatility, and supplier-related issues. These changes can have a
substantial impact on production costs and the profitability of businesses in the industry. To
mitigate risks, the company focuses on diversifving ils supply sources, maintaining strong
relationships with suppliers, and investing in modern technologies and production processes.
These measures aim to minimize the effects of market and weather fluctuations.

Riii ro khac/ Other risk

Mt 80 l'Lll ro khéc ludn tiém an nhu dich bénh, tham hoa, su ¢ chay no va d nhiém moi mmng:,,
nhimg van dé co thé gdy thiét hai dén con nguéi, tai san va hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh. Dé
phong ngira véi nhimg rii ro do, Cong ty luén thue hién cac bign phap phong ngira va kiém soat
chit ch&, giam thiéu rii ro bing viéc mua bao hiém cho nhén vién va tai san cia Cong ty.

Some hidden risks such as epidemics, natural disasters, fire and explosion, environmenial
pollution, and others which cause losses and damages to people, assets, and production and
business activities of the Company are strictly prevented and controlled by the Company by
purchasing the Company's employees and assets with insurance.

Bén canh do, Cong ty ludn dé cao canh giac va khéng ngimg ning cao nhan thirc ciing nhur k¥
nang xir ly tinh huung dé giam thiéu rii ro. V& mue tiéu dam bao hoat dong kinh doanh cua
Céong ty duge trién khai lién tuc va day du, khong bj anh hudng boi nhimg sy c6 khéng mong
mudn nay

In addition, the Company always raises up their vigilance, awareness, and skills to cope up with
the situations to minimize such kind of risks, guaranteeing that the Company’s business plan
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would be performed in an adequate and continuous manner, and not affected by these

unpleasant conditions.

I1. TINH HINH HOAT PONG TRONG NAM
BUSINESS AND MANUFACTURING ACTIVITIES
1. Két qui kinh doanh/ Business and production outcomes

Co chu doanh thu ban hang va cung cip dich vu/ Revenue components of product sales and

services rendered
DVT: Triéu dﬁngf Unit: Million dong
Niim 2023 Nim 2024 T”é‘f AR
Doanh thu = ange v,
Revenues Gidtrj | Tytrong | Gidtrj | Tytrong  Giatri | “G'im
s Amount | Proportion | Amount | Proportion | Amount | | funcgi:a::ge
Doanh thu ban thanh
phdm 1.621.122 | 99.61% | 1.851.153 |  99,42% | 230.031 |  114,19%
Revenues from the sales
of products -
Doanh thu khéc 6359 |  0,39% | 10,745 0,58% | 4.386 168,97%
Others
&
r:-m;g; cong 1.627.481 100% | 1.861.898 100% | 234417 | 114.40%
i

Co cdiu chi phi sin xuit kinh doanh/Business and Production costs
DVT: Tri¢u dbng/ Unit: Million dong

Nim 2023 Nim 2024 Tiing/Giam
Change
Doanh thu T o,
Revenues Gidtri | Tytrong | Gidtrj | Tytrong Gid tri 4
P p t p o |p | , Tang/Giam
maunt roportian | Ameun roportion ALonn % Change |
Chi phi nguyén ligu vat li¢u 612229 | 79.02% |726.598 | 80,94% | 114369 | 118,68%
Material costs
Chi phi nhdn vién 13722 | 435% | 36.594 | 4.08% | 2871 | 10851%
Employee costs '
Chi phi khiiu hao tai san codinh | 77907 | 10,06% | 77.331 | 8.61% | (577) 99.26%
Depreciation of fixed assets |
Chi phi dich v mua ngoai 43.097 | 5.56% | 50.852 | 5,66% 7.755 | 117,99%
Outside purchasing service costs
Chi phi khac 2778 | 1.00% | 6376 | 071% | (1.402) | 81,98%
Other costs and expenses
}_ﬂﬂﬁ cong 774734 | 100,00% | 897.750 | 100,00% | 123.016 115.88%
o o

Tinh hinh thye hién so véi ké hoach/ Performance in comparison with the plan
Tuy nén kinh té gap nhiéu khé khin, nhung trong qua trinh hoat dong Cong ty ludn duoc su ing
ho tir phia dia phuong va sy ho trg tr SABECO, tap the Cong ty da nd lue dé hoan thanh céc
chi tidu kinh doanh ma PHPCP giao, két qua dat duge nhur sau:

Despite the fact that the economy faced numerous challenges, thanks to strong support from the
local community as well as SABECO, the Company s collaborative efforts were made to achieve
the business objectives established by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The performance
outcomes are recorded as follows:
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DVT: Triéu dong/ Unit: Million dong

Chi tiéu TH 2023 KH 2024 TH 2024 TH 2023/ TH 2024 | TH 2024/KH 2024
Targets Actual 2023 | Expected 2024 | Actual 2024 Actual 2023/ Actual 2024/
Actual 2024 Expected 2024
Tong doanh th
e " 1.627.481 1.870.881 1.861.898 114.40% 99,52%
Total revenue
L nhugin trudre thué
i 42.198 45.122 50.742 120,25% 12,46%
| Profit before tax
Loi nhuj thué
i 33.300 34.798 40.364 121,21% 116,00%
| Profit after tax |
2. T6 chire va nhin sy/Organization and human resources
Danh sach Ban diéu hanh/ list of board of management members
| So lugng ¢ &
’ phén sé hira | . . . - 4
Stt . i Chire vu Ty Ié s&v hiru |  Ghi chi
Thanh vién . Total number of| ,°
No Position Percentage of Note
Member shares hold holding (%)
(Shares) B
| Ong Nguyén Hong Anh [Giam doc 50.000 0,11%
- Director s ¥
" Pho Gidm doe
2 Ong Tran Quang Trung Deputy Director 0
- S Ké todn truong
3 (Ong Vin Ba Thi Fh:‘gff!cmwimm 0 .

Ly lich Ban diéu hanh/ Profile of the Board of Management members
> Ong/ Mr. Nguyén Hong Anh: Gidm dbe

Nim sinh/ Year of birth:1968

Quoc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh d6 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: Cir nhiin quan trj kinh doanh/ Bachelor of Business
Administration.

Chire vu dang nim gitr tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Gidm dbe/ Director

Chirc vy dang nim giir tai to chire khc/ Position in other organizations: Khéng co/ None
Sé lugng cb phin sd hiru: 50.000 cb phén, chiém ty 1€ 0.11% tong s6 ¢d phiin phat hanh/
Number of owned shares: 50,000 share, account for 0,11%.

» Ong/ Mr. Trin Quang Trung: Phé Gidm doc

Nam sinh/ Year of birth:1964

Qudbe tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh dé chuyén mon/ Qualifications: Thac s§ Quan trj kinh doanh/ Master of Business
Administration

Chire vu dang ndm gitr tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Pho Giam dbe/Deputy
Director.

Chire vu dang nim giir tai to chire khac/ Position in other organizations: Khong cd/ None
S6 co phén s& hiy/ Number of owned shares: Number of owned shares: 0 share, account
for 0%.
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» Ong/ Mr. Vin Ba Thi: Ké todn trudng
Nim sinh/ Year of birth:1978
Quéc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam
Trinh d6 chuyén mon/ Qualifications: Cir nhan kinh &/ Buchelor of Economics
Chirc vu dang nim giit tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Ké toan truemg/ Chief
Accountant.
e Chirc vy dang nim gitr tai t chic khac/ Position in other organizations: Khong ¢/ None
o 6 lugng cé phin sir hiru: 0 ¢é phin, chiém ty 1¢ 0% tong s6 c6 phin phat hanh/ Number
of owned shares: 0 share, account for 0%.
Nhirng thay doi trong ban diéu hinh nim 2024/ changes in board of management in 2024
Trong nam 2024, Ban diéu hanh khong co sy thay ddi vé nhén sy, luon thye hién ding nhi¢m
vy vé san xudt kinh doanh va déau tv duoc giao boi DHDCD, HPQT, tuan thu phap lugt.
In 2024, there was no personnel change in the Board of Management. It ahvays properly

performed the production, business, and investment tasks as assigned by the General Meeting
of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, and complied with the law.

So lwong cin bd, nhan vién/ number of the company's employees

Nam 2024
So lwgng (Ngudd) | TV trong (%)
Number (person) | Percentage ( 2a)

STT Tién chi
No. Criteria

A | Theo trinh dj lao djng
Classified by qualification
1 | Trinh d& Pai hoc va trén Pai hoc

Graduate and Postgraduate » o134
2 | Trinh d¢ Cao déng, trung cip chuyén nghiép 65 371

College, intermediate level 8
3 | So cap va Cong nhén ky thudt 56 515

Elementary level and technical workers
4 | Lao déng pho thong

Unskilled workers '
B | Theo thiri han HDLD

Classified by labor contract type
1 | Hop dong ngan han dudi | nam ,_; {7
Temporary contract (less than I year) e
2 | Hop ddng co thai han | dén 3 nim
Contract with 1 - 3 year term

3 | Hop dong khong xac dinh thoi han
Indefinite labor contract
C | Theo gidi tinh
Classified hy gender
Nam/Male 122 69,7
N/ Female 53 30,3

172 98.3

bl |t

Chinh sich nhiin sw/ human resources policies

Trich nép bao hiém xa hoi, bao hiém y té dugc thyc hién theo ding quy dinh hién hanh cua Ludt
Lao dong, Lut bao hiém xa hoi, dong thoi o chire kham site khoe dinh Ky cho can by nhén
vién.

The pavment of social insurance and health insurance followed the prevailing provisions of the
Labor Law. the Law on Social Insurance; and at the same time the employees get their health
checked up periodically

Thue hién ding ndi dung cia thoa woc lao djng tap thé, chdp hanh day di va nghiém chinh céc
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quy dinh cia phap lujt vé lao déng tién lrong, bao hiém sic khoe.

Strictly conforming to the collective labor agreement, fully and strictly complying with the
provisions of the Laws on labor, salary, health insurance

Té chire cdc khoa dio tao ning cao tay nghé chuyén mon nhu ky thut cong nghé, thiét bi, cong
nghé thdng tin, bé sung kién thirc vé an toan lao déng, vé sinh an toan thye pham, phong chong
chay no dinh ky.

The Company always pays attention to organizing training cowrses lo improve professional
skills such as technigue technology, equipment, information technology, enhancing kmowledge
about occupational safety, food safety, fire and explosion prevention regularly

Ghi nhan va khen thuéng cdc dong gdp, sang kién, giai phép hiru ich cia ngudi lao dong.
Recognizing and rewarding the employees’ contributions, initiatives, and useful solutions;
Pam bao cdc ché d phic lgi nhur nghi mat, team building, phong trao thé thao, giai tri
Ensuring welfare regulations such as vacation, team building, sports, and entertainment
activities

Chinh sach tra luong, thuéng, phie lgi ré rang, minh bach.

The Company’s policy of salary, bonus, and welfare is clear, transparent.

K¢ hoach nam 2025/ Plan for the year 2025

Tiép tuc duy tri va dam béo thu nhap cho ngudi lao dong, dic biét chu trong cam két lién quan
dén cac chinh sich luong, thudmg, bao hiém, phic lgi cho nhan vién cua Cong Ly.

ontinue to maintain and ensure incomes for the employees, pay special attention (o the
commitment related to the employees ' salary, honus, insurance, welfare policy.

Duy tri ché dé hrong, thudng, phic lgi theo chuan chung cta SABECO.

Maintain salary, bonus, and welfare in accordance with SABECO's general standards.

Chi trong cong tac dao tao chuyén mon, nang cao tay nghé cho ngui lao dong.

Pay special attention to professional and skifl training for the emplovees.

Tiép tuc duy tri mi trrang lam viée ndng dong, sang tao, than thi¢n va gén két, du sirc giir chan
nguin tal.

Continue to maintain a professional and creative and close-knit workplace, along with talent
keeping.

3. Tinh hinh diu tw, tinh hinh thye hi¢n cic dy dn/ Investment and project implementation

Trong nam 2024, Cong ty tiep tuc tép trung Uu tién déu tr trang thiét bi cac du én co tinh cép
bach nhim dam bao chét lugng sin pham, dic biét doi véi cac dy dn mang tinh chién luge cla
Céng ty. Vi mye tiéu khong chi duy tri ma con thite ddy hidu qua sin xudt kinh doanh, dong
thoi chii trong hoat déng tiét giam nang lugng, di¢n, nudc, chi phi bao tri va ning cao hi¢u e,
hiéu qua trong quan ly va diéu hanh Cong ty.
In 2024, the company will continue to prioritize investment in equipment for urgent projects to
ensure product quality, particularly those considered strategic. The goal is not only to maintain
but also to enhance production and business efficiency while focusing on energy, electricity,
and water conservation, reducing maintenance costs, and improving the effectiveness and
efficiency of management and operations.

Thuc hign trién khai cac hang muc diu tr theo danh mye dwge PHPCPD nam 2024 thong qua,
trirdre khi trién khai, Cong ty da chi dong xem xét va danh gia lai mot cach ¢in trong, wru tién
cac hang muc thit sy clin thiét, wu tién diu tr cde hang muc tang higu qua san xudt, on dinh chat
lugng san pham, tiét kigm ning lugng. Theo do, tong gia tri giai ngin cac hang myc diu tr nam
2024 14 4.6 ty dong.
Carrving out the investment plan as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024,
Before the implementation, the Board of Management actively conducted thorough reviews and
carefil reevaluation, prioritizing the items that were really in need to get better production
efficiency, stabilize product quality, and save energy. Accordingly, total amount of disbursement
on the investments in 2024 was VND 4,6 billion.
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Thit tuc thue hién cac hang muc: dam bao tuan thu cic quy dinh hién hanh.
Procedures for implementing categories: ensuring compliance with current regulations
4. Tinh hinh tai chinh/ Financial situation
a. Tinh hinh tai chinh/ Financial situation
PV T: Triéu dong/ Unit: Million dong

STT Chi tiéu ) % Ting/ gidm
i el Nam2023 | Nim 2024 S
T.-T. B t . t. ¥ o
i ] 7 SELCRLER 65693231 |  641.380,90 97.63%
Total assets
Doanh thu thua
gy [P EEAERER  R09.156.11 |  935.030,03 115.56%
Net Revenue
Gi4 von hang béan
3 162.442,77 : 260
3 | Cost of Goods Sold 62.442.77 | 878.826.37 115.26%
g |Lepubuinggp 4671334 | 56.203.66 |  120,32%
Gross profit
e —
5 |Loinhugntirhoatdgng kinh dodnh 42.864.17 |  50.738,50 118.37%
Operating profi )
Lai nhudn khac . .
ry { 3 = 2 ﬂ
v profi (666.48) | 3 0.56%
Loi nhuin trude thué
e 2.197.6 50.742.2 250
T | ptine ve 42.197.69 ).742,22 120.25%
g |Levehugmsa thué 33299.64 | 4036370 |  121,21%
Profit after Tax Ea el e
Lai co ban trén ¢b phiéu (dng)
70 8 120,60%
" Busic profit per share (dong) ﬁ 5 MO

b. Céc chi tiéu tai chinh chi yéu/ Major financial benchmarks

Chi tiéu/ Targets DVT/Unit | Nam 2023 | Nim 2024
Chi tiéu vé kha ning thanh todn
Solvency indicators_ :
HEé 56 thanh tm:m ngan han L:an 2.46 3.31
Short-term ratio Time
Hé s0 tha1_1h toan nhanh Lan 2,04 2.67
Quick ratio Time

Chi tiéu vé co' ciu von
Capital structure indicators .
Hé s6 No/Tong tai san

% 24,01 20,76
Debt/total asset . .
Hé sd No/Von chu s& hiru )

; 31,60 2
Debt/Owner's equily 9 i
Chi tiéu vé nang lyc hoat dong
Operational capability indicators
Vong quay hang tdn kho Vong 11.29 11.86
Inventory turnover Turn . ’
Vong guay tong ti san Vong 5% 146
Total asset turnover Turn ) '
Chi tiéu vé khi ning sinh 1oi
Profitability indicators |




ROS (Loi nhuan sau thué/Doanh thu thuan) f

Profit after tax/Net Revenue (ROS) b i 432
ROE (Loi nhuan sau thué/Von chu so hiru)

Profit after tax/ average Owner's equity (ROE) i 3,93 1,94
ROA (Lgi nhudn sau thué/Tong tai sin) % 451 36
Profit afier tax/Average Total asset (ROA) v : 3
Hé s6 Loi nhuan tir hoat dong kinh doanh/Doanh thu

thuan % 4,84 543

Operating profit/Net Revenue | |

. Co chu cb dong, thay dbi von diu tw ciia chu s& hivu/ Shareholder structure, change in
owner'’s equity.

. Théng tin vé cb phiéw/ shares:

Cong ty CP Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam

M ¢6 phiéu/ Stock ticker: BSL

Nam tai chinh két thie/ Fiscal vear ending date: 31/12

Tong sb o phiéu di phat hanh/ Total Number of shares issted: 45.000.000 co phan/ shares
S5 luong cb phiéu dang lwu hanh/ Number of outstanding shares: 45.000.000 cb phén/ shares
$6 Tuong cb phiéu quy/ Number of treasury shares: 0 ¢ phan/ share

Loai ¢d phﬁ:ﬂ Types of shares: Co phi{:ru pho thong/ Common shares

Ménh gid cb phin/ Share s par value: 10.000 dong/ o phin/ 10,000 VND/share

S6 luomg o ph‘;’in bi han ché L‘huyén nhugng/ Number of locked shares: khing/ None

. Co chu cb dong (tai ngay 12/09/2024)/ Shareholders Structure (As of September 12, 2024)
Ty 1& s¢ hiru nuée ngoai 16i da: 50%/ Maximum foreign ownership ratio: 50%

| | Ty 1§ siv hiru

Sb cb phidn | Gid tri (tri¢u (%)
STT Loai cd dong Amount dong) Proportion
No. Type of Shareholder (million Amount of
dong) (million dong) Ownership
(%)

1 | Co ciu ty I€ s hir

& 45.000.000 | 450.000.000.000 100.00%
Percentage holding

Cd dong 16m (S¢ hiru tir 5% trér 1én
¢ phiéu cé quyén bidu quyér)

I | Major shareholders (holding 5% or 30.950.0000 | 309.500.000.000 68,78%
more of the Company s voling
shares)

Cé dong nam giir dudi 5% cd phicu
¢é quyén biéu quyét

Shareholders holding less than 5%
of the Company s voting shares

b

14.050.000 | 140.500.000.000 31,22%

1 | €6 déng Nha mwée ) | ewone
State shareholders ' 2

i gﬁ ﬁg:ri ':::i:;‘;iﬂ 44.886.487 | 448.864.870.000 |  99,75%

1 | Canhan/ Individuals 10.842.420 | 108.424.200.000 |  24,09%

2 | Té chire/ Institution 14.044.067 | 340.440.670.000 75.65%

1v | Co déng nwe ngoai 113513 | 1.135.130.000 0.25%
Foreign shareholders | ]
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1 Ca nhan/ Individuals [13.513 | 1.135.130.000 0.25%

=2

Tao chire/ Institution . = 0,00%

Tong cong (L1+111) 45.000.000 | 450.000.000.000 | 100.00%

c. Danh sich cb déng 1ém (tai ngay 12/09/2024)/ List of major shareholders (As of September
12, 2024)

| 4 5T
Cé dong S6 legng CPsirhiu | ky ko)
Shareholder Number of shares hold erc;:}mg =
Téng CTCP Bia — Rugu — NGK Sai Gon B
30.950.000 18%
Saigon Beer — Alcohol — Beverage Corporation 0 e

Tinh hinh thay déi von diu tu cua chu so hiru: Khong phit sinh
Change in investment capital of owner's equity: No change
Giao dich ¢6 phiéu quy: Khong phat sinh
Transaction of Treasury shares: No change
Cic chimg khodn khac: Khong phat sinh
Other securities: No change
6. Bdo cho tic dong litn quan dén méi trudmg va xi hdi cua cong ty/ Company’s report of
environment and societal impacts

a. Vé méi trwimg/ Environment
Téng phat thai nhi kinh truc tiép va gidn tiép: 5449.19 tan
Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions: 544919 tons
Céc sang kién va bién phap giam thiéu phat thai khi nha kinh:
Initiatives and measures to miligate greenhouse gas emissions:
+  Gi&m sét, t6i wu van hanh hé thong thiét bi nha may
Monitoring and optimizing the operation of factory equipment systems.
+  Trién khai mot sé séng kién tiét kiém nang luong vi nudc.
Implementing several energy and water-saving initiatives.

Co thiét bi thu hdi va luu trir CO2 dé sir dung va ban lai cho dom vi khac;

Equipped with CO2 recovery and storage systems for reuse and resale to other enfifies.

Lo hai dét: sir dung nguyén liéu BIOMAS thay cho 10 hoi 46t bang nhién liéu hoa thach;
Boilers: utilizing biomass as fuel instead of fossil fuels.

Sir dung céc loai bao bi nhe hon va c6 kha nang tai ché cao;

Using lighter packaging with a high recyclability rate.

Ap dung nhiéu bién phap cai tién trong san xudit tir d6 gitp giam lwgng tiéu thy nguyén vt licu,
bao bi, nang lwgng;

The implementation of various production improvement Measures has helped reduce the
consumption of raw materials, packaging, and energy.

Tiéu thu ning lwgng va nuwée/ Energy and Water C onsumption

Tiét kiém nang lugng trong qua trinh san xuat, ngodi viée giam chi phi san xuit, ting lgi nhuéan,
con 1a bio vé moi truong. Mye tiéu Cong ty huéng dén 1a phat trién bén virng. Céc phong ban
ophaan xuémg cia Cong ty déu duge dau tw may moc thiét bj déng bd voi cong nghé hién dai va
duge tich hop hé thong quin 1y san xudt tr dong hoa cao nhim gitp giam tiéu hao nang luong.
Energy saving during production not only reduces production costs and increases profits but
also contributes to environmental protection. The company's goal is sustainable development.
All departments and workshops are equipped with synchronized machinery and modern
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technology, integrated with highly automated production management systems 1o help reduce
energy consumption.

Dién/ Electricity:

Vigc dua vao sir dung hg théng dién nang lugng mit trii 4p mai tai nhd mdy tr thing 7/2021
(cong sudt khoang 1MW) dé giop giam lrgng dién mua ngoai. Tong lugng dién sir dyng ndm
2024: 8.179,3 MW, trong d6 dién mat trai cd 950.6 MW chiém 11.6%. Vé dinh mirc dién (tinh
trén 1.000 lit bia), Céng ty di giam khoang 8.88% so v dinh mire thue hién cia nam 2023,

The rooftop solar power system, with a capacity of approximately IMW, has been in operation
at the factory since July 2021, helping to reduce the amount of electricity purchased externally.
The total electricity consumption in 2024 was 8,179.3 MW, of which solar power accounted for
950.6 MW, making up 11.6%. In terms of electricity consumption per 1,000 liters of beer, the
company reduced it by approximately 8.88% compared to the rate achieved in 2023.

Hoi/ Steam:

Mic du san lugng san xudt ting nhung tong lugng hoi su dyng trong nam 2024 da giam 4,67%
so v&i nim 2023. VE dinh mire hoi (tinh trén 1.000 litbia), Cong ty da giam 12,96% so v&i dinh
mitc thye higén cta nam 2023,

Although production output increased, the toial steam consumption in 2024 decreased by 4.67%
compared to 2023, In terms of steam consumption per 1,000 liters of beer, the company reduced
it by 12.96% compared to the rate achieved in 2023,

Nuwdc/ Water:

Ngufin cap nude thd cho hoat dong san xuiit kinh doanh cta Cong ty la nguén nurde tir kénh Dao.
Téng lugng nude sinh hoat dua vao su dung nam 2024 la 277.298 m3.

The main source of raw water for the company's production and business activilies is sourced
from the Dao Canal. The total volume of domestic water used in 2024 was 277,298 m’.

Ty 1€ phén trim va tong lugng nudc i ché va tai sir dung: Nudc tai su dung tir nuoc thai da
duoc xir 1§ ding dé téi cdy, co khoang 100 m3 chiém 0,035%, nudc tai s dung tir nuée lam
mét sir dung cho nha vé sinh, v¢ sinh nhé xuong khoang 500m3 chiém khoang 0,17%.

Percentage and total amount of recycled and reused water: Water from waste water treatmeni
plant (after treatment) used for watering plants approximately 100 m3, accounting for 0.035%
of total, cooling water used for [lushing toilet, factory cleaning amounis io around 500 m’,
making up about 0.17%.
Vi viée ap dung nhiéu giai phap tiét kiém, luong nude Cong ty mua ngoai da giam 2,68 % so
v(i nam 2023.
By application of many saving solutions. the amount of water purchased by the company
decreased by 2.68% compared to 2023.

. Quén 1¥ ngudn nguyén vit li¢u/ Managing materials
Kidm so#t chét lwong dau vao/ Input quality control 1
Chét lwong nguyén vat li¢u dau vio ludn duge Cong ty kiém soat chit ché, dat tidu chudn chét
lugmg, dam bao dat yéu chu k¥ thudt theo quy dinh cia SABECO va tiéu chuan Viét Nam.
The quality of input materials is always strictly controlled by the company, meeting quality
standards and ensuring compliance with SABECO's regulations and Vietnamese standards.
Céng ty c6 phong thi nghi¢m v6i day du trang thiét bi hién dai. van hanh theo tiéu chudn 1SO
17025.

The company has a laboratory fully equipped with modern facilities. operating in compliance
with ISO 17025 standards.
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Tiéu thy nguyén vat ligu 2024/ Material Consumption 2024
Tong lugng nguyén vat ligu duge st dyng dé san xuat va déng goi cac san phiam va dich vy chinh
cua cong ty trong nam.

The total amount of raw materials used for the production and packaging of the company s main
products and services during the year.

120.40% i1 121.30%

110,550
102.50% 101 57% I

TN
| |I I | | !mh

Bal Gan Hipailiton witn lioublon Ca  Lon, rdpede ol Thing gy cic logh NIan than (e Sagi N chab ol loat
R Hopr Arcinn Vi cadracis {a lig) (CEroma) fLably) {Erawns]
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Tuén tha phap ludt vé bio vé méi trwdmg/ Comply with the law on environmental protection.
Cong ty dugc phé duyét bio cao danh gia tac dong méi trudmg theo dung quy dinh;

The company has been approved for the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report in
accordance with regulations.

Cong ty khing bi xir phat vi pham trong linh vyre moi tredmg trong nam 2024,
The company was not be sanctioned for environmental violations in 2024;

Toén bj chat thai sinh hoat, chét thai rn, chat thai nguy hai phat sinh fr san xudt kinh doanh déu
duoe thu hdi ding quy dinh vé cdc kho chira va duge van chuyén, xur 1y boi cic don vi c6 du
chirc ning. Nude thai san xudt vi sinh hoat duge xir ly qua hé théng xir 1% nude thai tap trung
dat chét lugng theo QCVN 40:2011, cit A, hé sé kq = 0,9 trede khi thai ra moi trudng.

All domestic waste, solid waste, and hazardous waste generated from production and business
activities are collected in compliance with regulations, stored in designated facilities, and
transported and treated by certified units. Industrial and domestic wastewater is processed
through a centralized wastewater treatment system 1o meel the quality standards specified in
QCVN 40:2011, Column A, with a kq coefficient of 0.9, before being discharged into the
environment.

. Ve xi h§i/ Society
Sirc khoe vi an toan lao déng/ Labor safety and occupational health

Céng ty luén dit yéu té ngudn nhan lyc lam trong tam trong subt qué trinh hoat dong. Diéu nay
duoc thé hién thong qua viéc Cong ty ludn quan tam dén déni séng vat chit, tinh thin. stre khoe
cua ngudi lao dong: 100% nhén vién déu duoe kiém tra sirc khoe dinh ky, bénh nghé nghiép:
trang bi bao hd lao dong diy du dong thoi duge dio tao, hudn luyén cong tac vé sinh an toan thyc
phém, an toan lao ddng dinh ky. Ngodi ra, Cong ty cling mua thém cde g6i bao hiém sirc khoe
cao cap cho ngudi lao ddng. Trong ndm qua, Cong ty khong xdy ra tai nan lao dong.

The company always puts human resources as the focus throughout its operations. The Campany
constantly expresses its concern about the employees by taking care of their material, spiritual
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and health lives. 100% of the emplovees get their health checked on a periodical basis to detect
occupational diseases and are fully equipped with labor protective equipment. Besides, the
employees have chances to join training and coaching sessions on food hygiene and labor safety.
In addition, the Company cover its employees with advanced insurance. In the past year, there
was ne accident occurring.

Bdo cdo lién quan dén trach nhi¢m doi véi chng dong dia phuong/ Report relating fo the
Company’s responsibility to the local community.

Su phat trién 1au dai cia mét doanh nghiép 1 dya trén nén tang clia mt cong dong 6n dinh va
thinh vigng. Ching t6i hiéu ring su hién dién cua Cong ty tao nén nhiing anh huong nhit dinh
vé kinh té, moi trudmg xa hi ddi véi cong dong. Nhin thire duoc dicu nay, Cong ty ludn hoan
thanh trach nhiém déi voi cong ddng dia phuong thong qua nhiéu hoat dong thiét thue nhu:
The long-term development of the enterprise is based on the foundation of a stable and
prosperous community. We understand that certain economic, societal and environmenial
impacts have been put on the community with the presence of the company. Clearly being aware
of this, the Company always fulfills its responsibility 1o the local community through many
practical activities such as:
4+ Sur than thién véi méi treong: Nha may ludn déu tu thiét bi hién dai, tiét kiém nang lugng,
hiéu sudt cao; duy tri cinh quan xanh, sach, de¢p.
Environmentally-friendly: The breweries always spent a lot of money to buy modern
equipment, for energy savings, high production efficiency: keeping green, clean and
beautiful landscape

+ Duy tri cac hoat dong hd tro cong ddng tai dia phuong theo phuong cham “Bia Sai Gon
chung tay ciing cong dong”,
Maintaining local community supports under the motto "Saigon Beer joins hands with the
community "
I11. BAO CAO PANH GIA CUA BAN GIAM POC
REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANA GEMENT
Sy ung hd nhiét tinh cua Linh dgo tinh, céc s¢, ban, nganh tai dia phuong da tao diéu kién thudn
lgi cho hoat déng san xuat kinh doanh cua Cong ty.
Ban linh dao Cong ty da c¢6 nhimg quyét sich cu thé dam bao hoat dong san Xudt 1duy tri higu
qua, kiém soat dinh mizc kinh té kv thuat, tiét kiém nang luong, kiém soat chi phi on dinh viée
lim va dam bao an toan sirc khoé cho ngudi lao dgng. Sy chi dao linh hoat va m&nﬁién cla llf,ui
ddng quan tri va Ban diéu hanh cing nd lyc cia todn the ngudi lao dong da gop phin giam thiéu
tic dong tidu cyc dén két qua san xudt kinh doanh Cong ty.
Trong sudt ndm qua Céng ty da chu dong thye hién nhiéu phuong thire khac nhau d¢ hoat dong
kinh doanh
1. Dénh gid két qua hoat djng sin xudt kinh doanh nim 2024/ Assessment on the Company’s

business performance in 2024 1
PVT: Triéu dong/ Unir: Million dong

- kg THNim | KHnam | THnam | TH2023/TH | TH2024/KH '
R 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024
" % Actual | Expected | Actual | Actual 2023/ Acé:"!ﬁi#
= argee 2023 2024 2024 Actual 2024 %"2 :
| Tong deanh tin 1627481 | 1.870.881 | 1.861.898 | 114,40% 99.52%
Toral revenue | L
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Lo nhudn tredc thue ; R . y
2 Profit before tax 42.198 45.122 50742 | 120,25% 112.46%
Loi nhuan sau thué
| Profit after tax 33.300 34,798 40,364 121.21% 116.00%

Nhirng tién b cong ty da dat dwyge/ Progress obtained by the Company

Vé sin xufit va giao hang/ Manufacturing and delivering

Cong ty tiép tyc wru tién vige cai tién lién tuc dinh mire sdn xudt thong qua viée Gmg dung céc gidi
phap cai tién dong b dé hop 1y hoa san xuat tai cic cong doan.

The Company continues fo constantly prioritize improvements in production norms through
synchronous improvement solutions are applied to rationalize production at all stages

Linh dong phéi hop véi cac don vi thuong mai trong cong téc giao hing theo ké hoach S&OP.
Phéi hop cing SABECO va SATRACO trién khai chinh sich kho vin mdi nham tiét kiém nhan
s va chi phi.

Flexibly coordinating with trade agencies in goods delivery according 1o the S&OP plan.
Coordinating with SABECO and SATRACO 1o implement new logistics policies to save personnel
and costs.

Quan ly _chfil lugng san phﬁm: tudn thua quy tri |1:I1 cong nghé. chat lirgng san phﬁm on dinh, dat
titéu chuan SABECO va an toan vé sinh thyce pham.

Product quality management: complying with technological processes, stable product quality,
meeting SABECO standards and food safety and hygiene.

Vé ké todn - tai chinh/ Accounting - Finance

Lép va trinh bay trung thc, hop 1y Béo cio tai chinh theo céc chudn muc ké todn Viét Nam, ché
46 ké toan doanh nghiép Viét Nam va cac quy dinh phap 1y ¢6 lién quan. Quan trj (ot dong tién,
Cong ty khong phat sinh ng vay ngin han/dai han trong nam.

Preparing and presenting honestly and reasonably the financial statements in accordance with

Vietnamese accounting standards, Vietnamese corporate accounting regime, and applicable
legal regulations. Well-managing cash flow. The Company had no short-term/ long-term debt
Vé dau tu/ Investments

Céng ty wu tién thyue hién céc hang myc that sy cAn thiét nham ting hi¢u qua san xudt, tiét kiém
nang lwong, kiem soat chat lugng san pham. Trudc khi trien khai, cac hang muc ddu tir mua sam
ludn duoe cin nhic k¥ ludng nhu cau sir dung cung nhir hiéu qua mang lai.

The Company prioritized the implementation of the necessary categories 1o get better production
efficiency, stabilize product quality, and save energy. Before implementation, procurement
investment items are alwavs carefully considered for usage needs as well as effectiveness.

Vé co ciu th chire, nhin su/ Organizational and Human Resource structlire
Tién luong, ché dd chinh sich cho ngudi lao ddng thuc hign theo quy dinh cua Cong ty, dinh
hudng chung cua SABECO va ding phat luit hién hanh.

Wages, policies and benefits entitled by the employees comply with the Company's regulations,
SABECQ's orientation, and the current legal sysiem

Di hoan thanh tai cAu triic nhén sy theo so do to chire mai va dp dyng co céu luong méi tinh theo
hiéu qua cdng viéc.

Restructuring personnel according to the new organizational apparatus is completed and a new
salary structure based on performance is applied

2. Tinh hinh tai chinh/ Financial situation
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a. Tinh hinh tai san/ Assets

PVT: Triéu dong/ Unit: Million dong

Noi dung Nim 2023 Niam 2024 Tang/Giam

Targets Giatri | Tvtrong | Gidtri | Tytrong | Giatri %Tang/Giam

. Amount | Proportion | Amount | Proportion | Amount “achange
M ngian han ” -

O ¥ i A

Shois. g Dakiliies 157,10 99,6% R3320 99.9% 2413 84.6%
N dai han ! m
Long-term liabilities 0.65 0.4% 0,17 0.1% -0.48 26,5%
Téng no phai tré — " '
Total Liabilities 157,75 100% 133,15 100% -24.60 111%

b. Tinh hinh no phai tra/ Liabilities

DVT: Triéu dong/ Unir: Million dong

—— Niim 2023 Nam 2024 Ting/Gidm
Targets Giatri | Tytrong  Giatri | Tytrgng | Giatri | %Téng/Giim
Amount | Proportion | Amount | Proportion | Amount Ychange
Tai san ngdn han il :
i Ba
S 386,10 | 58,77% | 440,13 | 68,62% 54,03 114,0%
Tai san dai h
.y than 1 270,83 | 41,23% | 20125 | 31,38% | -69,58 74.3%
on-current assels
Tong (ai sd . |
s b 656,03 | 100% | 64138 | 100% | -1555 188,3%
| Total Assets |

3. Nhimg cai tién vé co chu tb chire, chinh sdch, quén 1y/ Progress in respect of organizational
structure, policies, management

Céng ty da quy hoach vé sap xép lai co ciu bd may quin Ly cong ty nham tinh gon bé may quan
I¥. Thyc hién tra lwong theo vi tri cong viée, khen thuéng kip thoi da dong vién can b cong nhin
vién phat huy nang lye ca nhén, tp the co nhimg sing kién lam lgi va gin bo lau dai voi cong
ty.

The company has planned and reorganized its management structure io streamline operations.
Implementing a position-based salary system and timely rewards has motivated employees 1o
maximize their individual and collective potential, contribute heneficial innovations, and
maintain long-term commitment to the company.

Trién khai va tng dung phin mém quan I sin xut, quan 1y cung img vit tu hing hoa; quan tri
hanh chinh, tiét giam lao djng.

The company has also implemented and applied saftware for production management, supply
chain management, and administrative operations to optimize labor efficiency.

Lap ké hoach san xuét hop 1y dé tiét giam hao phi nang lugng san xuit, tiét giam chi phi.

A well-structured production plan has been developed to reduce energy consumption and
minimize costs.

. K& hoach phit trién trong twong lai/ Future development plan

Phéi hop véi Cong ty thuong mai va cdc s¢ ban nganh dia phuong nham tang tiéu thu san phim
tai chd, giam thidu chi phi van chuyén, ting lgi nhudn.

Coordinate with trading companies and local departments (o increase on-site product
consumption, minimize transportation cosis, and maximize profits.

Tich cyre tham gia cdc hoat déng an sinh xa hoi.
Actively participate in social welfare activities
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Ung dung khpa hoc k¥ thudl, cac phﬁn mém quan |y san xuit vao qué trinh dé nang cao chat
lirgng san pham.

Apply science, technology, and production management sofiware to improve product quality
Thuye hién tiét kiém, dam bao hiéu qua nang sudt, an toan lao déng gin lien véi bao vé méi
trudmg.

Implement cost-saving measures while ensuring productivity, workplace safety, and
environmental protection.

. Giii trinh cia Ban Giam déc dbi véi y kién kiém toin/ Explanation of the board of
management on auditing opinions

Theo béo cdo tai chinh kiém todn nam 2024, don vi kiém todn Céng ty TNHH KPMG Viét Nam
d dwa ra ¥ kién kiém todn chép nhén toan phén déi vai bao cao cia Cong ty. Vi vdy Ban giam
dde khong c6 y kién giai trinh thém.

According to the 2024 audited consolidated financial statements, KPMG Vietmam Co., Lrd. has
issued an auditing opinion fully accepting the Company's report, so the Board of Directors has
no opinion further explanation.

. B#io céio dénh gid lién quan dén trich nhiém vé méi truomg va xa hoi cia Cong ty/
Assessment reports on the company’s environmental and social responsibility

. Panh gid lién quan dén céc chi titu mbi trudmg/ Assessment on the environmental indicators

Viée thye hién vi xir 1§ céc chi tiéu méi trudng nhur tiéu thy dién, mrde, nang lwong vd quan ly
phat thai di dién ra theo ke hoach, hudng 11 su phat trién bén vilng va vigc san xuat dugc lién
két chit ché vdi bao vé moi truomg.

Implementing and handling of environmental indicators such as electricity, water, energy, and
emissions management took place as planned, targeting sustainable development, aligning the
Company s production with environmental protection.

Céng ty ludn thye hién quan Iy chit thdi rin, chat thai cong nghigp, chit thai nguy hai theo ding
cac quy dinh cia phap ludt hién hanh.

The company consistently manages solid waste, industrial waste, and hazardous waste in strict
compliance with current legal regulations.

Céng ty ludn ludn thue hién ding, day du, kip thoi céc nghia vu, trach nhiém d6i véi moi truong
nhir bao vé mdi trudng, déng cée khoan thue phi nhu: khai thic nude mit, phi xa thai vao moi
truromg, phi dich vu tai nguyen rumg. ..

It also fully and prompily fulfills its environmental obligations and responsibilities, including
environmental protection and the payment of taxes and fees such as surface water extraction

fees, wastewater discharge fees, and forest resource service fees.
. Panh gia lién quan dén ngudi lao djng/ Employees-related assessment

Trong viée danh gia lién quan dén ngudi lao dong. Cong ty da hodn thanh viée cung SABECO
hoan thién chinh sach vé luong thuong va phuc lgi nhim dam bao sy 6n dinh, phan dnh cong
bang trong ximg véi nd lue dong gop cua nhan vién. tao dong luc cho sy gin bo va dbng hanh
ciia ngudr lao dong déi vi Cong ty. Dong thoi, Cong ty cam két vé moi trrémg lam vige an toin,
dbi xir ton trong va dic biét 1a viéc chim soc stte khoe cling vai vige phat trién da dang ve doi
ngii nhan sy, t6n trong sy khéc bigt, khéng phén biét déi xir va dam bao 16i da cac quyén lgi cua
ngudi lao dong theo quy dinh phap ludt.

For emplovees-related assessment, together with SABECO, the Company has completed the
salary, bonus, and welfare policy to ensure stability and fair refiection commensurate with the
contributions of employees, creating motivation for employees " attachment and companionship
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V.

to the Company. In addition, the Company has been always committed to safe working
conditions, civilized behavior, and special health care, developing a diverse personnel team.
respecting differences, nondiscrimination and ensuring all the best rights enjoved by the
emplovees as provided for by law.

. Dénh gi lién quan dén trich nhigm ciia doanh nghigp di voi cdng dong dia phuwong/

Assessment relating to the Company’s responsibility to the local community.

Céng ty luén coi trach nhiém xa hdi cua doanh nghi¢p la cam két ctia doanh nghiép dong gop
cho viée phat trién kinh té bén vimg. thong qua viée tudn thu chuin myc vé bao vé moi trrdmg,
binh ding gidi, an todn lao dgng, quyén lgi lao dong, tra lwong cong bing, dio tao va phat trién
nhan vién, phat trién cong déng, bao dam chét lugng san pham... theo cich ¢6 lgi cho cd doanh
nghiép ciing nhur phét trien chung cua xa héi.

The company regards corporate social responsibility as a commitment 1o contributing to
sustainahle economic development by adhering to standards in environmental protection, gender
equality, workplace safety. labor rights, fair wages, employee training and development,
community development, and product quality assurance. This approach benefits both the
company and society as a whole.

Bén canh dé, dom vi luén quan tam thye hién tot cong tic tuyén truyén, gido duc, phd bién phap
ludt ddi véi nguoi lao dong trong toan don vi, tir d6 hinh thanh dugc ¥ thire tr moi ngudi lao
déng vé hoat déng cong tac xa héi tir thién, dén on ddp nghia, x6a doi giam ngheo, tuong thin
twong &i trong cong ddng, chung tay vi cong dong day la nghia vu dbéng theri cling 14 mdt nét van
hoa caa CBCNV Cong ty.

Additionally, the company places great emphasis on promoting legal awareness and education
among emplovees. This fosters a strong sense of social responsibility in charitable activities,
gratitude initiatives, poverty alleviation, and mutual support within the community. Engaging in
these efforts is both a duty and a defining cultural value of the company's employees

DANH GIA CUA HOI PONG QUAN TRI VE HOAT DONG CUA CONG TY

ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

Panh gi4 cia Hi dong quin tri vé cic mit hoat dong cuia Cong ty/Assessments of the Board

of Directors on the Company's operation 1

Céng ty di t chirc thanh cong Pai hoi dong co dong thuomg nién 2024 theo dang quy dinh va

thuc hién cac cube hop Hoi dong quan trj dinh ky theo quy dinh vé quan tri doanh nghi¢p. Hoan

thanh viéc td chirc 1y ¥ kién c6 déng bang van ban dé thong qua viée thay dbi nhén sy cua

HPOT.

The Company held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024 in accordance with

regulations; it conducted periodical meelings of the Board of Directors in accordance with

regulations on corporate governance.

Tra c6 tire ndm 2023 ding thai han.

Fully making a 2023 dividend payment on time

Céng ty di dam bao san lugng giao hang du theo ké hoach S&OP, tuan thi quy trinh cong ngh¢

vi tiéu chu An chit lwong cia SABECO.

Ensuring the volume of delivery was sufficient as required by S&OP plan and complying with

the technological process and SABECO's quality standards.

Duy tri tot mi quan hé vdi chinh quyén dia phwong, dam bao an sinh xa héi, ndp ngan sach day

dil, diing han. Ngoai cac hoat déng an sinh xa hoi tu thue hién, Cong ty hoan thanh cac chuong

trinh cOng tic xa hi khac do SABECG chu tri. Tt d6 gop phan xiy dyng thuong higu Bia Sai
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Gon chung tay cliing cong dong.

Maintaining good relationships with local authorities, ensuring sacial security, and paying the
budget fully and on time. In addition, social security activities are selfimplemented. The
Company completed other social work programs held by SABECO, thereby contributing to
building the Saigon Beer brand and joining hands with the community.

Tinh hinh tai chinh ciia Cong ty lanh manh. Hoan thanh nghia vu véi ¢6 dong trong vige thanh
todn ¢d tire diy du, d ing han, thye hién nghia vy cong bo thong tin kip tho.
Fulfilling obligations to shareholders in paving dividends fully and on time, and fulfilling
obligations to disclose information promptly.
Dinh gia caa Hi ddng quin tri vé hoat djng cia Ban Giim doc cong ty/ Assessment of the
board of directors on the board of management’s performance
Viée danh gid, giam sat hoat dong doi voi Ban dicu hanh Cong ty da duge Hoi dong quan trj thye
hién theo quy dinh cta Piéu 1é cong ty. Ho1 dong quan tri ddnh gia cao no lyc cua Ban diéu hanh
trong viéc thyc hién ké hoach Dai hoi dong cb dong va Héi dong quan tri giao,
Theo dénh gid cia HDQT, hoat dgng cua Ban Gidm doc trong nim 2024 dat dugc cac két qua
tot, cu thé:
According to the assessment of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors’ activities
achieved good outcomes in 2024, specifically:
+ Loi nhuin sau thué dat 40,4 ty ddng. dat 116% so voi ké hoach nam 2024 va dat 121%
so v&i két qua thire hién ndm 2023,
Profit after tax was VND 40,4 billion, reaching 116%% of the 2024 plan and reached 121%
compared to the 2023 performance;
+ Thye hién diy du céc béo cao dinh ky/ dot xudt theo ding yéu cau cua HPQT:

Fully carrying out periodic/unscheduled reports in accordance with the requirements of
the Board of Directors;

+ Thue hién céc bién phap can thiét dé giam chi phi trong béi canh 4p lyc vé chi phi dau
vio, dic biét 1a trong cong téc quan Ly tiéu hao su dung nguyén vit liéu trong san xuat.
Taking necessary measures in pursuit of reducing costs in the context of pressure on input
costs., especially in the management of consumption of raw materials in production were
given top priority;

+ Chét lwong san pham duge dam bao theo tieu chudn cua SABECO, cong tac giao hang
dap img theo ké hoach di dugc giao;

Product quality was guaranteed in consistency with SABECO standards, delivery
matched the assigned plan;

+ Quan Iy may mée thiét b va cong tdc bao tri bao dudng duge thye hién tot.
Well-performing the management of machinery and equipment, maintenance;

+ Phéi hop hiéu qua véi SABECO trong viée mua hang tap trung, vi dbi vai cac vat tu tr
mua, da chit dong thuong thao mua dy trir dé doi phé véi ting gid va 16i wu hoa chi phi
gia thanh.

Well-coordinating with SABECO in centralized purchasing. Regarding self-purchased
materials, the Company actively negotiated 1o buy and reserved to avoid price increases
and optimize costs.

+ Tap trung vao cong tac bdo vé mdi truromg va cac hoat dong lién quan dén cong dong xa
hoi, phéi hop véi SABECO dé thye hién.
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Environmental protection and social community activities were also concerned by the
Company and its implementation was in cooperation with SABECO;

+ Hoat dong cia cic nha may ludn duge dam bio, duy tri méi truémg san xuat xanh sach
dep, tich cuc tham gia cac hoat dong ho trg cong dong, an sinh xa hoi tai dja phuong.
The operation of the breweries was always ensured, maintaining a clean and green
production envirenment, and actively participating in activities to support the community
and social security in the local community

3. Cic ké hoach, dinh hwéng ciia hi dong quan trj nim 2025/ Plan and direction of the board
of directors for the 2025.

Du kién trong nim 2025, Cong ty s& tiép tuc doi mdt véi dp lye 1on Kr vige tang gid hang hoa
dhu vao. Vi mong mudn tang cudmg higu qua hoat dong, Hoi dong quan tri tiép tuc chi dao
Ban diéu hanh thyc hién Nghi quyét cua Dai hdi dong ¢d déng. bao gom ke hoach san xuat kinh
doanh va déu tu cho ndm 2025. Hoi déng quan tri cling da dinh r6 mot s6 nhiém vu quan trong
cho nim 2025 nhur sau:

it is expected that in 2025, the Company will still be under great pressure due to high input
prices. Hence, to enhance operating effectiveness of the Company, the Board of Directors
continue to direct the Board of Management to implement the Resolution of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, including the business and production and investment plan for the year 2025,
The Board of Directors has given an orientation towards key tasks in 2025 as follows:
+ Chi dao Ban ditu hanh trién khai thue hién Nghi quyét ciia Dai hoi ddng cb dong bao
gbm ké hoach san xuat kinh doanh va dau tr ndm 2025.
The Board of Management will he guided to implement the AGM® Resolutions, including
business and investment plans for the vear 2025,
+ Kiém sodt chat ché ngin sach va dong tién, dam bdo sir dung von hiéu qua nhat trong
hoat déng san xuat kinh doanh va dau tw toan cdng ty.
The Company's cash flows and budget must be strictly kept, ensuring optimal cost of
capital in production, business and investment of the whole Company
+  Quan 1y tét hon nita tiéu hao nguyén vit ligu, tiét kiém nang luong trong qua trinh san
xudt. Kiém soat chat ché chit lwgng san pham, an toan vé sinh thye pham,
Implementing better raw material consumplion and save energy management auring the
production process.
+  Thue hién chi trd ¢6 tic cho ¢ ddng theo phé duyét.
Strictly controlling product quality, food safety and hygiene.
+ Dam bio hoat dong Céng ty tuan thi cée quy dinh phap ludt vé quan tri Cong ty.
Ensuring the Company s operations comply with the laws on the Corporate Governance
+ Ra soat. diéu chinh v ban hanh thém cic Quy ché, quy dinh vEé quan tri ndi bd phi hop
véi s6 tay phan quyén v thong nhét véi dinh huéng cua SABECO
Reviewing, adjusting, and issuing internal governance rules and regulations to be
consistent with the Manual of Authority and consistent with SABECO's orientation.

V. QUAN TRI CONG TY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. H@i ddng quin tri/ Board of directors

a. Thanh phin va co cAu Hdi ddng quan tri (Tinh tai ngdy 31/12/2024)/ Composition of the
Board of Directors (As of December 31, 2024).
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Stt Thanh vién Chiire vy Ngay bo nhi¢m/mién nhiém | Ty 1¢ sir hiru
Na, Member Position Date of appointment/ dismissal (%)
Ngiy bo nhi¢m |!\igﬁ}' mién nhi¢m |Percentage of
Date of Date of dismissal holding (%)
appaointment
Ong Tan Teck Chuan Chu tich HDQT ,
1 Lester Chairman of BOD 05/10/2023
Ong Vuong Nguyén TV HDQT P
2 Péing Khoa Member of BOD 12/04/2023 14/10/2024
A 3 TV HDQT B
3 | Ong Nguyén Hong Anh Member of BOD 14/04/2022 0,11%
. b " TV HPQT
4 | Ong Vin Thanh Liém Member of BOD 14/04/2022 0,40%
- : TV HBQT
5 | Ong Cao Thanh Bich Member of BOD 14/04/2022
. N I TV HBQT _
6 | Ong V6 Phude Giau Member of BOD 14/10/2024

Ly lich Ban h{i dong quén tri
> Ong/ Mr. Tan Teck Chuan Lester/ Chu tich HDQT/ Chairman of the Board of Directors

L

Nam sinh/ Year of birth: 1966

Qudc tich/ Nationality: Singapore

Trinh 4 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: Cir nhén kinh té va Khoa hoc chinh trj - Pai hoc
Willamette Oregon, Hop ching qudc Hoa K¥, Thae sTkhoa hoc chuyén nganh Marketing
— Pai hoc TP New York, Hop chung qubc Hoa Kv/Bachelor of Economics and Political
Science - Willamette University Oregon, United States of America; Master of Science in
Marketing - New York City University, United States of America.

Chire vu dang ndm giir tai TCPH/ Pasition in the company: Chu tich HPQT/ Chairman of

the Board of Directors .

Chire vu dang nim giir tai 16 chire khac/ Position in other organizations:

- Chief Beer Business Thailand/Executive Committee Member: Thai Beverage Public
Com pany Limited

- CEO Beer Thailand: Chang Beer Company Limited - Executive Officer (Head of
Thailand Beer Business): BeerCo Limited (Incorporated in Singapore)

- CEO Beer Thailand / Director / Executive Director: Chang International Co., Lid.;

- Director / Executive Director: Cash Van Management Co., Lid.; Modern Trade
Management Co., Ltd.; Horeca Management Co., Lid. Traditional Trade Management
Co., Ltd.; Thai Drinks Co., Lid.

- Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Non-Alcoholic Beverage: Fraser and Neave Limited

- Téng Gidm dbc, Téng CTCP Bia — Rugu — NGK Sai Gon/ General Director, Saigon
Beer - Alcohol - Beverage JSC;

- Chu tich HPQT, CTCP NGK Chuong Duong/ Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Chuong Duong Beverages JSC;

- Chii tich HDQT, CTCP Bia Sai Gon — Mién Tay/ Chairman, Western - Saigon Beer
Joint Stock Campany.
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- Chi tich, Céng ty TNHH MTV Thuong mai Bia Sai Gon/ Chairman, Saigon Beer
Trading Co., Limited:

- Chu tich, Cong ty TNHH Trung tam Mé Linh/ Chairman, Me Linh Point Limited.

$6 lugng cd phén s& hiru dai dién: 12.950.582 c6 phén, chiém ty 1¢ 28,78% téng 6 cb

phén phat hanh/ Number of owned shares: 12,950.582 share, account for 28.78%.

» Ong/ Mr. Nguyén Hong Anh/ Thanh vién HDQT/ Member of the Board of Directors.

Nam sinh/ Year of birth:1968

Qude tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh d6 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: Cir nhin quan tri kinh doanh/ Bachelor of Business
Administration.

Chirc vy dang nam giir tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Thanh vién HDQT/ Member
of the Board of Directors.

Chure vy dang ndm giit tai t6 chirc khac/ Position in other organizations: Khéng co/ None
S6 luong ¢d phén sé hiru dai dién: 8.999.709 ¢§ phén, chiém ty 1& 20% tong s6 c6 phan
phat hanh/ Number of owned shares: 8.999.709 share. account for 20%.

Sé lugng ¢b phin s¢ hitu: 50,000 ¢6 phan, chiém ty 1& 0.11% tong s6 ¢6 phan phat hanh/
Number of owned shares: 50,000 share. account for 0.11%.

» Ong/ Mr. Vé Phuée Giau/ Thanh vién HDQT/ Member of the Board of Directors.

Nim sinh/ Year of birth:1974

Qudc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh do chuyén mon/ Qualifications: Cir nhin quan tri kinh doanh/ Bachelor of Business

Administration. :

Chire vu dang nam giit tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Thanh vien HPQT/Member

of the Board of Directors.

Chire vu dang nim giir tai t6 chite khac/ Position in other organizations:

- Phé Giam dbe, Nha may Bia Sai Gon Nguyén Chi Thanh/ Deputy Director, Saigon
Brewery Nguyen Chi Thanh.

- Thanh vién HPQT, Céng ty CP Bia, Ruou Sai Gén — Dong Xuan/ Member of the Board
of Directors, Sai Gon - Dong Xuan Beer Alcohol Joint Stock Company.

S4 luong cb phin so hitu dai dién: 8.999.709 ¢o phan, chiém ty 1¢ 20% tong sb cb phan

phét hanh/ Number of owned shares: 8.999. 709 share, account for 20%.

Sé luomg cé phin sor hitu ¢4 nhan: 2.000 c6 phin, chicm ty 1§ 0.004% tong s6 cd phin phat

hanh/ Number of owned shares: 2,000 share, account for 0,004%.

5 Ong/ Mr. Cao Thanh Bich/ Thanh vién HDQT/Member of the Board of Directors.

Nam sinh/ Year of birth: 1949

Quéc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh d6 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: Cis nhan quan tri Kinh dvanh/ Bachelor of Business
Administration.

Chire vu dang nam giit tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Thanh vién HBQT/Member
of the Board of Directors.

Chire vu dang nam giir tai to chitc khac/ Position in other organizations: Khong/ None
Sé hromg cb phin so hitu: 0 ¢6 phin, chiém ty 1& 0% tong s6 ¢ phin phat hanh/ Number
of owned shares: 0 share, account for 0%,

» Ong/ Mr. Vin Thanh Liém/ Thanh vién HDQT khong diéu hanh/ Non-Executive
Member of the Board of Directors.

Nim sinh/ Year of birth:1950

Qudc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh 6 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: K§ su kinh t&

Chire vu dang nidm giir tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Thanh vién HPQT/Member
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of the Board of Directors.

Chire vy dang nm gitr tai t6 chire khc/ Position in other organizations:

- Chu tich HPQT: Céng ty CP Tép doan Bia Sai Gon — Binh Tay/ Chairman, Saigon
Binh Tay Beer Group Joint Stock Company;

- Chi tich HPQT: Céng ty CP Tép doan Bao Bi Sai Gon/ Chairman, Sai Gon Packaging
Group Joint Stock Company;

- Chu tich HPQT: Céng ty CP Vén tai va giao nhan Bia Sai Gon/ Chairman, Saigon Beer
Transportation Joint Stock Company;

- Chi tich cong ty: Cong ty TNHH Bia Sai Gon — Ninh Thugn/ Chairman, Sai Gon - Ninh
Thuan Beer Company Limited,

- Chu tich Céng ty: Cong ty TNHH MTV Bia Sai Gon — Pha Ly/ Chairman, Sai Gon -
Phu Ly Beer Company Limited,

- Chii tich HDQT: Céng ty CP Bia Sai Gon — Long Khanh/ Chairman, Sai Gon- Long
Khanh Beer Joint Stock Company.

$6 lugng cb phiin cé nhan s¢ hiru: 182.673 ¢6 phén, chiém ty 1& 0.41% tong sb ¢6 phan

phat hanh/ Number of owned shares: 182,673% share, account for 0.41%.

b. Cic tiéu ban thujc Hji dong quin tri:
Subcommirttees of the Board of Directors
Khong cd/ None
¢. Hoat djng ciia Hji dong quin tri/ Activities of the Board of Directors:
Cic cude hop cia Hoi ddng quén tri trong nim 2024/ Meetings of the Board of Directors in

2024 B
S6 budi hop
HbQT Ty I§ Ly do khing
Stt Thanh vién HPQT tham du tham dy hop tham dy hop
No. Members of BOD Number of Meeting The reason for not
meetings of |attendance rate| attending the meeting
BOD attended
1 | Ong/Mr . Tan Teck Chuan Lester 04/04 100%
2 | Ong/Mr. Nguyén Hong Anh /04 100%
3 | Ong/Mr. Van Thanh Liém 04/04 100%
4 | Ong/Mr. Cao Thanh Bich 04/04 100%
Ong Vuong Nguyén
iPing Khoa khong con
1a TV. HDQT tir ngay
= " 14/10/2024
5 Ong/Mr. Vuong Nguyen Bing 03/03 LOO% Mr. Vuong Nguyen
Khew, Dang Khoa has been
dismissed as a Board
member since
14/10/2024
Ong Va Phude Giau la
- TV. HPQT tir ngay
6 | Ong/Mr. V& Phude Giau 01/01 100% 14/10/2024
' Mr. Vo Phuoc Giau has
heen elected as a Board
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| 86 budi hop
HDQT TV 1§ Ly do khing
Stt Thanh vién HPQT tham du tham du hop tham du hop
No. Members of BOD Number of Meeting The reason for not
meetings of attendance rate| attending the meeting
BOD attended
member since
|14/10/2024

Trong ndm 2024, HDQT da thye hign day di hn trd chi dao, quan ¥ va gidm sit toan dién céc
mit hoat dong kinh duanh ciia Cong ty bao gom: san xuit/bdn hang; dau tr; nhan su; céc hoat
dong lién quan dén ¢b dong, chia c6 tire; quan tri Cong ty, cong bé théng tin va céc hoat dong
khéc theo quy dinh cua phap luat.

In 2024, the Board of Directors performed the full role of directing, managing, and supervising
all aspects of the Company s business activities including: production/sales; investment; human
resource. activities related to the shaveholders, dividend distribution; corporate governance,
information disclosure and other activities in accordance with the law.

Bén canh do, HDQT ciing dam bdo truyén thong dily du dén co dong, nha dau tr, co quan quén
1y thong qua viée thye hién chinh sdch cong bo théng tin minh bach va hi¢u qua.

In addition, the Board of Directors also ensured adequate communication with the
shareholders. investors, and management agencies through the implementation of a transparent
and effective information disclosure policy.

Téng cong trong nam di co 19 nghi quyét HDQT dugc ban hanh dé Ban diéu hanh lam co s&
thure hién nhiém vy san xudt kinh doanh.

Totally, there were 19 resolutions of the Board of Directors issued to be the benchmarks for the
Board of Management's implementation of the business and production missions.

| Ty 1§
Stt S6 Nghi quyét Ngay Noi dung thing qua
No. Resolution No. Date Contents Approval
date |
|2 S6 01/2024/NQ-HBQT Phé duyét ban hanh Quy ché quan 1y Tii 100%

chinh cua Cong ty Cd phan Bia Sai Gon
~ Song Lam theo T& trinh s0
57/2023/TTr-BSGSL ngay 20/12/2023
Approved the Regulation on Financial
Management of Saigon — Song Lam
Beer Joint Stock Company as per
Proposal No. 57/2023/TTr-BSGSL
dated 20/12/2023

2. | 86 02/2024/NQ-HPQT Phé duyét chi dinh nha thau tu van thue | 100%
hlen goi thau tu van lap quy hoach chi
tiét Nha may Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam
cong sudt 250 triéu litnam vai ty e
1/500 theo T& trinh s6 58/2023/TTr-
BSGSL ngay 26/12/2023

Approved of the appointment of a
consulting contractor to carry out the
detailed planning consultancy bidding
package for Saigon - Song Lam
Brewery with a capacity of 250 million
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Stt

No.

S6 Nghi quyét
Resolution No.

Negay
Dare

N¢i dung
Contents

Ty 1¢
théng qua
Approval

date

liters/vear at the rate of 1/500 as per
Proposal No. 58/2023/TTr-BSGSL
dated 26/12/2023

Théng qua chi dinh nha thau ur van
thyre hign g6i théu 1dp Bdo cdo nghién
ciru kha thi (BCNCKT) dy an dau wr
mé& rong ning cong suat Nhia mdy Bia
Sai Gon — Song Lam lén 250 trigu
lit/nam theo Té trinh s6 62/2023/TTr-
BSGSL ngay 28/12/2023

Approved the appointment of a
consulting contractor lo carry oul the
package of preparing a Feasibility
Study Report (F/5) for the expansion
investment project to increase the
capacity of Saigon - Song Lam Brewery
to 250 million liters/vear as per
Proposal No. 62/2023/TTr-BSGSL
dated 28/12/2023

S0 03/2024/NQ-HBQT

25/01/2024

Thong qua viée 1o chitc Pai hoi dong
¢ dong thudmg nién 2024 (Dai hoi).
Approving  convention of Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2024
(AGM).

100%

So 04/2024/NQ-HPQT

05/03/2024

Thong qua két qua diu thau goi thau 56
01 “Cung cép, lip dat thict bi va xa
dung” thude du dn diu tr hé rh-::-ng tiet
kiém nang lugng nhi nau tai Nha may
Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam theo Ta trinh
36 03/2024/TTr-BSGSL  ngiy
31/01/2024

Approved the bidding resulls for

package No. 01 "Supply, installation of |
qumpm{?nf and construction” of the

investment project of brew house
energy saving system at Saigon - Song
Lam Brewery as per Proposal No.
3/2024/TTr-BSGSL dated 314012024

100%

S6 05/2024/NQ-HPQT

20/03/2024

Thong qua dé xuit vé vige ky két hop
dbng, giao dich vdi cac t6 chirc ¢d lién
quan nam 2024,

Approve the proposal about signing
transactions, contracts with related
persons, organizations in 2024.

100%

S6 06/2024/NQ-HPQT

20/03/2024

Théng qua didu chinh ngay to chirc Dai
hoi di}ng co6 dong thuomg nién ndm
2024,

Approved the adjustment of the date of
the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2024,

100%
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Stt

S6 Nghi quyét
Resolution No.

Ngay
Date

Noi dung
Contenis

Ty 1é
thong qua
Approval

date

S6 07/2024/NQ-HPQT

20/03/2024

Thong qua Két qua san xual kinh doanh
nim 2023; Thong qua Ké ‘hoach nam
2024; Thong qua ho so biéu quyét tai
bai hoi.

Approved the Business performance of

2023; Approved the 2024 business
plan; Approved AGM documents for
voling.

100%

S6 07A/2024/NQ-HPQT

20/03/2024

Thong qua dé xudt Ké hoach Pau r
niam 2024
Approved the Inwnmenr plan in 2024

100%

S6 08/2024/NQ-HPQT

27/03/2024 |

Théng qua dé xuat ve viée ky két va
thuc hign hop dong, giao dich gita
Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon — Séng
Lam vai Cong ty TNHH bat dong sian
Areco.

Approve the propesal to sign and
implement contracts and transactions
between Saigon - Song Lam Beer Joint
Stock Company and Areco Realty
Company Limited.

100%

10.

S5 09/2024/NQ-HPQT

10/04/2024

Thong qua han mirc ngan sach thut xe
cho Ban giam déc Cang ty C phan Bia
Sai Gon —Song Lam,

Approve the Car Rental Budget Limit
for the Board of Directors of Saigon —
Song Lam Beer Joint Stock Company

100%

11.

S6 10/2024/NQ-HPQT

22/04/2024

Thong qua chu truwong sira chira bé yém
khi hé thong xi 1y nude thai tai Nha
may Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Approve the policy of repairing the
anaerobic tank of the wastewater
treatment system at Saigon - Song Lam
Brewery

100%

12.

S6 11/2024/NQ-HPQT

24/04/2024

Thong nhét chot danh sach co dong dé
thue hién quyen chi tra ¢b tac ndm
2023 bing tién mit.

Approved of the record date for the
payment of 2023 dividend in cash.

100%

13.

SH 12/2024/NQ-HPQT

04/06/2024

Thong qua quyet todn hoan thanh cong
trinh “Dau tu hé thcmg dién nang lugng
mat teéd 4p mai” ciua Cong ty CP Bia
Sai Gon — Séng Lam theo Té trinh s0
18/2024/Ttr-BSGSL.

Approval for finalization of completed
project: “Installation of the roofiop solar
power system” of Saigon — Song Lam
Beer Joint Stock Company base on the
Proposal No. 18/2024/Tir-BSGSL.

100% |
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Stt
No.

So Nghj quyét
Resolution Neo.

Ngay
Date

No§i dung
Contents

Ty 1¢
thing qua
Approval

date

14.

S6 13/2024/NQ-HDQT

09/07/2024

Thong qua Chinh sach Dao tao cia
Cong ty CP Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam
theo ndi dung T trinh s6 22/2024/TTr-
BSGSL ngay 02/07/2024.

To Approve for Promulgating Training
Policy of Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint
Stock Cempany with Proposal No.
22/2024/Ttr-BSGSL dated 02/07/2024.

100%

15;

S6 14/2024/NQ-HPQT

29/07/2024

Thong qua Ban hanh Quy ché Cong b
thong tin cua Céng ty CP Bia Sii Gon
— Song Lam theo néi dung To trinh 86
23/2024/Tir-BSGSL ngay 05/07/2024.
Approved  of  promulgate  the
Regulation on information disclosure
of Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock
Company according to the Proposal
No.23/2024/Tir-BSGSL dated July 03,
2024.

L00%

16.

S6 15/2024/NQ-HPQT

29/07/2024 |

Théng qua chu treong Dau ti va thanh
lap To chuyén gia gitp vi¢e thuc hién
Du 4n Silo chira Malt, gao va mady
nghién Barley tai Nha may Bia Sai Gon
~ Séng Lam theo ndi dung Td trinh 50
24/2024/Ttr-BSGSL ngay 06/07/2024,

Approved the investment policy and
establishing an  expert leam [0
implement the Malt and Rice Silo
Project and Barley Mill at Saigon -
Song Lam Brewery with Proposal No.
24/2024/Ttr-BSGSL dated 06/07/2024.

100%

17.

S5 16/2024/NQ-HDQT

29/07/2024

Théng qua Bao cédo tinh hinh san xuat
kinh doanh Quy 2/2024 vi luy ké 6
thing du nam.
Approved the report on business
performance in 02/2024 2024 and the
ﬁrsi 6 months.

100%

18.

Sé 17/2024/NQ-HPQT

07/08/2024

Théng nhét chét danh sach ¢6 déng cua
Cong tv CP Bia Sai Gon — Song Lam
dé 16 chire ldy ¥ kién bing van ban.
Approval the record date (o organize to
collect shareholder's written apinions
of Saigon — Song Lam Beer Joint Stock
Company.

100%

19.

S 18/2024/NQ-HPQT

07/08/2024 |

Thong qua thoi gian 16 chire lay ¥ kicn
co dong hang van ban; Thong qua b
tai litu ldy v kién co dong bing vin
ban; Thdéng qua nhan sy Ban kiém
phiéu va gidm sdt kiém phicu.

L00%
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Stt

Sb Nghi quyét Ngay
Resolution No. Date

Noi dung
Contents

Ty g
thong qua
Approval

date

Approved for the documents for
| collecting  written  opinion  of

shareholders; Approved for the vote
| counting committee and Vote counting
supervisors, Approved for the time to
organize to collect written opinions of
sharehalders.

20.

| S6 19/2024/NQ-HPQT | 20/11/2024

Théng qua Bdo cdo ket qua SXKD quy
3/2024, Ity ké 9 thang dau ndm va udce
thuc hién Quy 4/2024,

Approved the report on business
performance in 03/2024, the first 9
months of 2024 and estimate of
04/2024.

100%

d. Hoat djng cuia thanh vién Hoi dong quén tri djc lip:
Performance of the independent member of the Board of Directors:
Khang ¢6/ None

¢. Danh séch céc thanh vién H{i dbng quin tri c6 chimg chi dio tao vé quan tri Céng ty
List of the Board of Directors’ members with certificate on corporate governance:
Khong co/ None

2. Ban Kiém soat/ Board of supervisors

a. Thanh phén va co ciu Ban kiém soit (Tinh tai ngay 31/12/2024)/ Member and Composition
of the Board of Supervisors

| 5::{ luong c6 | Ty & & hiru
Stt Thanh vién BKS Chire vy phan s¢ hiru (%o)
No. Members of BOS Position Number of Percentage of
shuares hold holding (%)
: . [Truong Ban kiém sodt o
| [Ba/Ms. Hodng Thanh Vin Head of BOS 0 °
§ % . [TV.BKS
2 [Bi/Ms. Nguyén Thanh Thuy |- " o 15000 | 003%
i TV. BKS o
¢ (0%
3 [Ba/Ms. Luu Thanh Thao IMem ber of BOS 0 o

Ly lich Ban Ban kiém sodt/ Profile of the Board of
» Ba/ Ms. Hoang Thanh Vin/Truwéng Ban kiém seat/ Head of BOS

Nim sinh/ Year of birth: 1982
Quéc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh dé chuyén mon/ Qualifications: Cit nhén kinh &/ Bachelor of Economics
Chire vy dang ném giit tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Truémg Ban kiém soit
Chire vu dang nim giit tai to chirc khac/ Position in other organizations:
- Truémg phong ciip cao-Ké todn hop nhat thuge Ban Ké toin SABECO/ Senior Manager
— Consolidating Accounting at SABECO Accounting Department..
- Ban Kiém Soit Céng ty Cé phin Bia, Ruou Sai Gon - Pong Xuén | Board of Supervisor
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of Sai Gon - Dong Xuan Beer Alcohol Jaint Stock Company
- Ban Kiém Soat Cong ty C6 phan Thuong Mai Bia Sai Gon Mién Déng / Board of
Supervisor of SaiGon Beer Eastern Trading Joint Stock Company
SO lwgng ¢ phén so hiru: 0 co phén, chiém ty 1é 0% tong so c6 phan phat hanh/ Number
of owned shares: () share, account for (1%,

» Ba/ Ms. Luu Thanh Thao/ Thanh vién BKS/ Member of BOS.

Nam sinh/ Year of birth: 1987

Qude tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh dé chuyén mon/ Qualifications: Cir nhin tai chinh/ Bachelor of Finance

Chire vu dang nim giir tai TCPH/ Position in the company: Thanh vién BKS/ Member of

BOS.

Chire vy dang nam giir tai to chirc khic/ Position in other organizations:

- Tre Iy Truémg phong hop nhit — SABECO/ Manager assistant - Accounting department
SABECO.

- Ban kiém so4t Cong ty CP Bia SG - Bén Tre/ Board of Supervisor of Saigon — Board of
Supervisor of BenTre Beer Joint Stock Company.

- Ban kiém soat Céng ty CP Bia SG - Lam Dang/ Board of Supervisor of Board of
Supervisor of Saigon — Lam Dong Beer Joint Stock Company.

Sé lugng cd phan sor hitu: 0 co phin, chiém ty 1& 0% tong 50 ¢6 phan phat hanh/ Number

of owned shares: 0 share, account for (7.

» Ba/ Ms. Nguyén Thanh Thay/ Thanh vién BKS/ Member of BOS.

Nam sinh/ Year of birth: 1957

Quoc tich/ Nationality: Viét Nam

Trinh d6 chuyén mén/ Qualifications: Cu nhan kinh t&/ Bachelor of Economics

Chire vu dang néim giir tai TCPH/ Pasition in the company: Thanh vién BKS/ Member of

BOS.

Chire vu dang nim giir tai to chic khic/ Position in other organizations:

- Ban kiém soat Céng ty CP Bia Sai Gon — Ngh¢ Tinh/ Board of Supervisor of Saigon -
Neghe tinh Beer Joint Stock Company.

S lugng cb phan s¢ hitu: 15.000 cb phan, chiém ty 1¢ 0.03% tong so co phén phét hanh/

LLE

Number of owned shares: 15.000 share, account for 0,03%.

b. Hoat dfng caa Ban Kiém soat/ Activities of the Board of Supervisors
Trong nim BKS td chirc 02 cude hop kiém soat.
The Supervisory Bourd held 02 control meetings.

S6 budi hop | TV I¢ tham T 16 biéy| ¥ 0 Khong tham
4 Thanh vién BKS tham dy du hop -q:}_a dir hop
N Members of BOS Number of | Meeting Votin The reason for not
- meetings BOS| attendance mreg attending the
attended _rate meeting
1 |Ba/Ms. Hoang Thanh Vin . 02/02 100% 10054
2 [Ba/Ms. Nguyén Thanh Thuy|  02/02 100% 100%
3  Ba/Ms. Luu Thanh Thio : 02/02 100% 100%

Cin et Nghi quyét ciia DHDPCD hang nam, BKS thye hign gidm st toan dien cac mat hoat dong
cua Cong ty:
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Pursuant to the Resolution of the annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of
Supervisors carried out comprehensive supervision of all aspects of the Company 's operations

fo ensure;

+ Tinh hinh tai chinh trung thye, hop 1y:
The Financial situation was truthful and appropriate;

+ Cong tac ké toan, thing ké, ghi chép theo chuin myc va Lujt ké toan hién hanh;
Accounting, statistics and recording work followed the prevailing standards and

accounting law;

+  Su tudn thi cac quy ché quy dinh ni bo; Sy chiip hanh cdc quy dinh cua phép ludt lién
quan dén cac hoat dong cua Cong ty:
Operating activities: Compliance with internal rules and regulations; Compliance with
the provisions of the law relating to the activities;

+  Kién nghi céc ndi dung theo thim quyén;
Suggest contents according to authority.

Trong ném, cdc cude hop dinh ki cua HPQT déu co sy tham dy cta dai dién Ban kiém soat.

Nhimg kién nghi cua Ban Kiém soat déu duge ghi nhén va trién khai thuc hién

During the vear, representatives of the Supervisory Board attended regular meetings of the
Board of Directors. The petitions of the Supervisory Board have been noted and implemented.

3. Cic giao dich, thu lao va cic khoin lgi ich cia Hoi dong quin tri, Ban gidm dbc va Ban
kiém sodt.
Transactions, remunerations, benefits of the board of directors, the board of management,
and the board of supervisors.
a. Luong, thwomg, thi lao, cic kKhoan loi ich/ Salaries, Bonuses, Remunerations, and other
benefits.
| Nim 2024
3 v ——  Ghichu
S:T ::';';“ . f,h“f:_":: Thi lao Luong | Thuing X
% TR i Remunerations | Salary | Bonuses
1 | Hji dong quin tri/ Board of Directors
A Chu tich
{ |/Ong TanTesk Ciinan HDQT | 130,000,000
Lester Chairman of
BOD .
Mién nhi¢m
@ & T SE wr/ Resigned
7 Ong Vuong Nguyén Thinh vién 21.430.108 . g
Ping Khoa Member Srom
14/10/2024
5 | Ong Neuyén Hong Thanhvién | 91.000.000
Anh Member |
4 | OngVin Thanh Liém | Thashvién | 91 000,000
Member
5 | OngCao Thanh Bich | Thanhvién | 9 000,000
Member :
B6 nhiém tir/
L s Thanh vién : Appointed
Ong V G 19.569.892
6 ng Vo Phude Gian P om
14/10/2024
. 11 | Ban kiém sodt/ Board of Supervisors
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Truong BKS
1 | Hoang Thanh Vén Head of the 91,000,000
2 | Nguydn Thanh Thuy | Lpanhvién 52.000.000 |
Ty
3 | Luu Thanh Thao SARIREN 52,000,000
11 | Ban diéu hanh/ Board of Management | 2.580.173,935 |
b. Giao djch cb phiéu cia ngwivi ni by vi nguwdi lién quan cia ngwdi ni by
Share transactions made by internal persons, related persons of internal persons
Khong c&/ None
¢. Hop ding hodc giao dich vai ngudi ndi by/ Contracts or Transactions with the internal
persons.
Giao dich giira cong ty véi ngwdi ¢d lién quan cia cong ty; hojc giira cong ty voi cd ding
I, ngwori ndi b, ngwdri ¢b lign quan cua ngudi ndi bo:
Transactions between the Company and its related persons; or between the Company and
major shareholders, its internal persons, related persons of internal persons.
Xem phu luc s6 01/ See enclosed Appendix 01
[ STT | Tén céngty Méiquanhé | S6 Gidy | Dia chi tru so chinh/ | Noi dung,s6 | Ghichi |
lién quan voi dang ky Dija chi lién hé lwgng, tong (ghi ro
cing ty kinh doanh gid tén loai
. tri giao dich gino
dich/hop
& -
dong, vi
dy: mua
bén
NVL,
mua ban |
H'!imh
pham,...
)
No. Company Relationship Business Address Content, Notes
with company Certificate quantity, total
No. fransaction
| VHIHE
1 | Téng Congty CP | Cong ty mg/ 0300583659 | 187 Nguyén Chi | Gia iri: 679,84 | Mua
Bia Rugu NGK | Parent 18/052022 | Thanh, Phuomg 12, | ty dong. nguyén
Sai Gon company So KHBT Quin 5, Tp. Ho Chi | Value: 679,84 | vat ligu/
Saigon Beer — TP. HCM/ Minh billion VND Sale of
Aleohol — DPIHo Chi | j87  Nguyen Chi raw
Beverage Minh city Thanh St, Ward 12, maiterials
Corporation Distriet 5. Ho Chi |
Minh City, Vietnam |
2 Tong Cong ty CP | Cong ty me/ 0300583659 | 187 Nguyen Chi | Gid tri: Bin
Bia Rwou NGK | Parent 18/05/2022 Thanh, Phwong 12, | 1851151y thanh
Sai Gon company So KHBT Qudn 5, Tp. Ho Chi | dong pham/Pu
| Saigon Beer - TP. HICM/ Minh Value: rchases
Alcohol — D}_] THo Chi | 187  Nguyen Chi| 1.851.15 of goods
Beverage Minh city Thanh St. Ward 12, | billion VND
Corporation
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District 5, Ho Chi

Minh City, Vietmam

Tong Cong ty CP | Cong ty mg/ 0300583659 | 187 Nguyén Chi| Gid trj: 263,6 | Ban dich
Bia Rugu NGK | Parent 18/052022 | Thanh, Phuing 12, | trigu dong v/ Sell
Sai Gon company So KHDT Quédn 5, Tp. Ho Chi | Value: 263.6 | service
Saigon Beer — TP. HCM/ | Minh Mil VND HD sb:
Alcohol — DPIHo Chi | 187  Nguyen Chi 1810/202
Beverage Minh city Thanh St, Ward 12, 4/HPDV
Corporation Districe 5, Ho Chi /SGSL-
Minh City, Vietnam SAB;
0410/202
4/ HDDV/
SGSL-
_ n SAB
Tong Cong ty CP | Cong ty me/ 0300583659 | 187 Nguyén Chi | Giatri: 153,77 | Thoa
Bia Ruou NGK Parent 18/05/2022 Thanh, Phwimg 12, | trigu dﬁng thudn s6:
Sai Gon company SO KHDT | Qugn 5, Tp. Ho Chi | Value: 153,77 | 10.2024/
Saigon Beer — TP. HCM/ Minh Mil VND SAB/Agr
Aleoho! — DPI Ho Chi | j§7  Nguyen  Chi eement
Beverage Minh city Thanh St, Ward 12, Na:
Corporation ' District 5, Ho Chi 10.2024/
) Minh City, Vietham | SAB
Tong Cong ty CP | Cong ty me/ 0300583659 | 187 Nguyen Chi| Giatri: 21,67 | Cb tire da
Bia Ruwgu NGK | Parent 18/05/2022 | Thanh, Phuong 12, | ty dong tra/Divid
Sai Gon company Sa KHDT Quan 5, Tp. Ho Chi | Value: 21,67 | ends paid
Saigon Beer — TP. HCM/ Minh hillion VND
Alcohol — DPIHo Chi | 187 Nguyen  Chi
Beverage Minh city Thanh St, Ward 12,
Corparation District 5. Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam
Cong ty TNHH Cong ty c6 lién | 0303140574 | 12 Déng Du, Phuong | Gia tri: Phi sir
Mot thanh vién | quan déncéng | 08/112023 | Bén Nghé, Quan 1, | 6.262,76 triéu | dung bao
Thuong mai Bia | ty mg/ So KHDT Tp. Ho Chi Minh | dong bi/Packa
Sai Gén The company is | TP, HCM/ 12 Dong Du Street, | Value: ging
Sai Gon Beer related to the | DPPIHo Chi | Bey  Nghe Ward, | 6.262,76 Mil | usage fee
Trading parent company Minh city Distriect 1, Ho Chi | VND
Company Limited Minh City, Vietnam
Cong ty Cophan | Cong ty ¢ lien | 4300338460 | Khu Cong nghiép | Gid tri 721 45 | Mua
Bia Sai Gon - quan déncéng | 17/042023 | Quang  Pha,  TP. | tri¢u dong nguyén
Quéng Ngdi ty mg/ So KHDT | Quiing Ngii | Value: 721,45 | vt ligw/
Sai Gon - Quang | The company is | Quang Ngai | Onang Phu Industrial | Mil VND Purchase
Ngai Beer Joint | related to the | PPIQuang | Zone,  Quang Phu s of raw
Stock Company | parent company Ngai Ward, Quang Ngai materials
City, Quang Ngai |
Province, Vietnam
Cong ty TNHH Cong ty c6 liégn | 3001650260 Km 12, dutmg trinh | Gid uj f?,'."‘; Ban )
Mot thanh vién quan dén cong | 22/05/2022 | Tp. Ha Tinh, xa Tan | triCu dong nguyén
Bia Sai Gon - Ha | ty m¢/ S KHPT Ha | Lim Huong, huyén | Value: 47,79 vit héw/
Tinh The company is | Tinh Thach Ha. tinh Ha | Mil VND Purchase
Sai Gon - Ha related to the DPI Ha Tinh | Tinh s of raw
Tinh Beer One parent company 12th Kilometer materials
Member bypass Ha Tinh City,

Company Limited

Thach Tan Commune,
Thach Ha District, Ha

Tinh
Vietnam

Province, |
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9 Cong ty TNHH Cong ty co lién | 0305815166 | 215 Pao Duy T, | Gia tri: Mua
M@t thanh vién quan dén cong | 27/03/2023 Phuomg 6, Quan 10, | 2.79547 tri¢u | dung cy/
Co khi SA BE ty meg/ S0 KHBT Tp. H6 Chi Minh 215 | dong Purchase
CO The company is | TP. HCM/ Dao Duy Tu St, Ward | Value: s of tool
Sa Be Co related to the | PPIHo Chi | 6 District 10, Ho Chi | 2.795,47 Mil | and
Mechanical CO., | parent company | Minh city Minh City, Vietnam FND supplies
LTD Mua

nguyeén
vit ligu/
Purchase
& of raw
materials
Mua dich
vu/Purch
ases of
service
Mua tai
san co
dinh/
FPurchase
saf

) asxeis

10 | Congty Cophan | Congtycolién |2900740071 |Khu céng nghip | Gia tri Mua
Thuong mai Bia | quan den cong 13/06/2023 Déng Vinh, Phuong | 1.211.84 trigu | hang
Sai Gon Bac ty me/ S0 KHDT Dang Vinh, Tp. Vinh, | dong hoa/Pure
Trung Bo The company is | TP. HCM tinh  Nghé¢  An | Value: hases of |
Sai Gon Beer Bac | related to the | DPIHo Chi | pong  Vinh  Small | 1.211,84 Mil | goods
Trung Bo parent campany Minh city Industrial Zone, Dong | VND
Trading Joint Vinh Ward, Vinh City,

Stock Company Nehe An  Provinee,
] Vietnam ]

11 | Céngty Cophan | Ngusi lién 0300584564 | 606 Vo Vin Kigt, | Giawrg 98,56 | Mua
Nude Giai khat quan ciia ngudi | 08/11/2023 | Phuomg Cau  Kho, | trigu dong hing
Chuong Duong ndi b/ Related | S0 KHDT Quan 1, TP. HCM. | Value: 98,56 | hoéa/Purc
Chuong Duong | person of TP.HCM | 606 Vo Van Kiet St, | Mil VND hases of
Beverages Joint | internal person D*? I fﬂl Chi | Cau Kho Ward, goods
Stock Company Minh city District 1, Ho Chi |

Minh City, Vietnam

12 | Congty Cophan | Congtycolién | 2900765728 | 54 Phan Pang Luu, | Gid 13,95 | Ban hang
Bia Sai Gon - quan dén cong | 03/11/2023 | Phudng Truong Thi, | tri¢u dong how/Sales
Nghé Tinh ty meg/ So KHBT Tp. Vinh, tinh Ngh¢ | Value: 13,95 | of raw
Saigon - Nghetinh | The company is | Nghe An/ An Mil VND materials
Beer Joint Stock | related to the | DPINghe An | 54 Phan Dang !;i;”

Company arent company Street, Truong Thi
i b e Ward, Vinh  City,
Nghe An  Province,

Vietnam

13 | Céngty TNHH | Ngudi lién 0315251399 | 187 Nguyen Chi | Gid u 105,89 Mua
MTV Tip doan quan ciia ngudi | 21/03/2022 Thanh, Phuong 12, | tricu dong ha'ng
Bia Sai Gon ndi bo/ Related | S0 KHBT Quiin 5, Tp. Ho Chi | Value: 103,89 | héa/
Saigon Beer person of TP.HCM | Minh Mil YND Purchase
Group Company | internal person | DPIHo Chi | 187 Nguyen  Chi of goods
Limited Minh city Thanh St, Ward 12,

District 5. Ho Chi

Minh City, Viemmam
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14 | Céngty CP Pau | Ngudéi lién 3700148737 | S65A,xald Xuyén A, | Thanh todn c6 | C6 tirc da
tur Thai Binh quan cua ngudi | 13/06'2005 | An Binh, Di An, Binh | tire: 1,17 ty tra/Divid
Thai Binh ndi by’ Related | S0 KHDT Duong dong ends paid
Investment Joint | person of Binh Duong | No. 354, Trans-Asia | Dividend
Stock Company | internal person | DP1Bink Highway, An Binh, Di | pavment: 1,17
Duong An, Binh Duong hillion VND
15 | Céngty TNHH | Ngudi lién 0312696199 | 157 Dudng Nam Ky | Gid tri: 47 Mua dich
Bat dong san quan cia nguéi | 22/06/2023 | Khéi Nghia, Phwong | triéu dong v/
Areco ndi b/ Related | S0 KHDT V& Thi Sdu, Quan 3, | Value: 47 mil | Purchase
Areco Real Estate | person of TP, HCM Thanh phé 16 Chi | VND of
Company Limited | internal person Df I Ho Chi | Minh. services
Minh city 157 Nam Kv Khoi
Nehia Street, Vo Thi
Sau Ward, District 3,
lo Chi Minh City
16 | Chi Nhanh Cong | Cong ty c6 lién | 01019481360 | SN 228, dudng Tran | Gid ri: 5,74 | Mua
ty C6 Phin | quan dén céng | 02 Phi, phdé Yét Kiéu, | trigu dong hang
Thuomg Mai Bia | ty mg/ 22/06/2006 | Phuémg Nam Thanh, | Value: 5,74 héa/Pure
Sai Gon Mien The company is | S0 KHDT Thanh phé Ninh Binh, | mil VND hases of
Béc tai Ninh Binh | related to the | Ninh Binh | Tinh ~ Ninh  Binh goods
Branch of Saigon | parent company DPI Ninh SN 228, Tran Phu
Beer Trading Binh Street,  Yet  Kieu
Joint Stock Street, Nam  Thanh

Company in Ninh

Binh

Ward, Ninh Binh City,
Ninh Binh Province

Giao djch giira ngwdi ndi by Cong ty, ngudi ¢ lién quan cua nguwdi ndi by véi Cong ty con,
Céng ty do Cong ty niim quyén kiém soat.
Transaction between the Company and related persons of the company; or between the

company with major shareholders, internal persons, related persons of internal persons
Khong co/ None

Giao dich giira cdng ty véi cic dbi twgng Khic

Khéng co/ None )

. Dénh gid viéc thye hién cdc quy dinh vé quin trj cong ty/ Assessment on the Company 's

fulfilling corporate governance obligations
Céng ty ludn chip hanh cac quy dinh cua phap luat ¢o lién quan dén cong tac quan tri Cong ty

nhur:

The Company always complies with the legal regulations on corporate governance such as:
+ Luat doanh nghiép, Ludt chimg khodn, B¢ lugt dan sir.
Law on Enterprises, Law on Secuvities, Civil Code
+ Chc thong tu, quy dinh vé& quan tri cong ty, huéng din vé cong bo thong tin trén thi

trudmg ching khoan.
Circulars, regulations on corporate governance, guiding on information disclosure on
thestock market.
+ Céc vén ban ludt c6 lién quan khiéc.
Other applicable legal documents.
+ Cong ty da cu thé hoa céc quy dinh vé quan trj tai cée quy dinh ngi b bao gom: Didu 1¢
hoat dong, Quy ché ndi bé vé quan trj Cdng ty, Quy ché hoat dong cia HPQT, Quy ché
hoat ddng ctia Ban kiém soat.
The Company specified regulations on governance in internal rules and regulations,
including: The Company’s operation regulations, internal regulations on corporate
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governance, operational regulation of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory

Board.
Nhin thire duge thm quan trong clia viée tiép ¢in thong tin d6i véi cac nha diu tw, Cong ty luén
thye hién vige cong bd théng tin trong nam 2024 mot cich chinh xac va kip thai. Cic bao cdo
dinh ky ciing nhu cac thong tin bat thuong duge ding 1ai rén website ciia Cong ty va cong bd
theo dung quy dinh hién hanh. Cong ty ludn 1on trong quyén cia co dong thong qua viée cung
cip va cong bd thong tin chinh xdc, dang théi han, thé hién trach nhidm cua HDQT va Ban diéu
hanh.
Aware of the importance of access to information to the investors, the Company always fulfills
its obligation of information disclosure in 2024 accurately and timely. The Company s periodic
reports as well as irregular information are posted on its website and disclosed in compliance
with the laws. The Company alwavs respect the shareholders' rights by informing and
disclosing the information in accurate, and timely manner, of which the responsibility is taken
hy the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.

BAO CAO TAI CHINH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bao cdo tai chinh da kiém toan dinh kém. :

Audited financial statements attached. Ad'l‘/ ®
NGUOI1 PAl DIEN PHAP LUAT A-/

Noi nhén: GIAM bOC

- HNX: - /. REPRESENTATIVE
- Luu: Cong ty. L




Cong ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Béo cdo tai chinh cho nam két thic
ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024




Céng ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thong tin ve Cong ty

Gidy Chirng nhin Dau tw s 271110000018 ngay 7 thang 12 nam 2007

Giay chig nhan dau tr do Uy ban Nhan Déan Tinh Nghé An cép va
¢6 gia tri trong 50 nam ké tir ngay cép gidy chimg nhin dau tu dau

tién.
Giay Chimg nhan 2703001077 ngay 20 thang 12 nam 2006
Ping ky Doanh nghiép s6 2900783332 ngay 5 thang 9 nam 2023

Giay chimg nhéan dang ky doanh nghw;p cua Cong ty da dugc diéu
chinh nhiéu lan, lan diéu chinh gan day nhét 1a Giay Chimg nhén
Bang ky Doanh nghiép s6 2900783332 ngay 5 thang 9 nam 2023.
Gidy chimg nhén ding ky doanh nghiép dau tién va cdc ban diéu
chinh do S& Ké hoach va Pau tu tinh Nghé An Lap

Hoi dong Quan trj Ong Tan Teck Chuan Lester ~ Chu tich
Ong Van Thanh Liém Thanh vién
Ong Cao Thanh Bich Thanh vién
Ong Nguyén Hong Anh Thanh vién
Ong Vo6 Phude Giau Thanh vién (tir ngay 15 thang 10 nam 2024)

f)ng Vuong Nguyén bang Khoa

Thanh vién (dén ngaly 14 thang 10 nam 2024)

Ban Kiém soat Ba Hoang Thanh Vin Trudng ban
Ba Nguyén Thanh Thuy Thanh vién
Ba Luu Thanh Thao Thanh vién
Ban Piéu hanh Ong Nguyén Hong Anh Gidmdoc
Ong Tran Quang Trung Phé Gidm doc (dén ngay 31 thang 1 nam 2025)
Ong Vin Bé Thi Ké todn truong
Tru so ding ky Khéi 1, Xa Hung Pao
Huyén Hung Nguyén
Tinh Nghé An
Viét Nam
Cong ty kiém todn Cong ty TNHH KPMG
Viét Nam




Céng ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Bdo cdo cua Ban Piéu hanh

Ban Biéu hinh Céng ty Co ph&n Bia S&1 Gon - Song Lam ("Cong ty”) trinh biy bdo cdo nay v
hda céo tai chinh dinh kém cia Céng ty cho nim ket thic ngay 31 thing 12 nam 2024

Ban Biéu hanh Cong ty chiu trach nhi¢m ldp va trinh bay trung thye vi hep 1y bdo cdo thi chinh
theo cdc Chuan muc K¢ todn Viét Nam. Ché d6 Ké todn Doanh nghiép Viét Nam vi cic quy dinh

phdp 1y ¢6 lién quan dén viée ldp va trinh bay bdo cdo tai chinh. Theo ¥ kién clia Ban Biéu hanh
Cong ty:

(a) bdo cdo tin chinh dirge trinh biy U trang 5 dén trang 34 da phan dnh trang thue vishop 1y tinh
hinh &1 chinh cia Cong ty tai ngay 31 lheing 12 ndm 2024, két qua hoat dong kinh doanh va
lwru chuyén tién 1é cua Con.g ty cho niim két thiic ciing ngay, phit hop véi cdc Chuan myc Ké
toan Viét Nam, Ché dd Ké todn Doanh nghigp Viet Nam vi cic quy dinh phip 1§ ¢6 Lién quan
:‘.ten vigc ldp va trinh bay bdo cdo thi chinh; va

(b) tai nghy lap bdo cdo nay, khéng cé Iy do gi dé Ban Diéu hanh Cong ty cho ring Cong ty sé
khong thé thanh todn cée khoan ng phai tra khi dén han.

Tai ngiy lap béo cdo nay, Ban Piéu hanh Cong ty da phé duygt phit hanh bao cdo tai chinh dinh
kém.

'/ Thay mat Ban Diéu hanh

Tinh Ngh¢ An, ngay 6 thang 3 nam 2025
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KPMG Limited Branch

10th Floor, Sun Wah Tower

115 Nguyen Hue Street, Ben Nghe Ward
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
+84 (28) 3821 9266 | kpmg.com.vn

BAO CAO KIEM TOAN BOC LAP

Kinh giri cac C6 déng
Céng ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam

Chuing t&i Ga kiém toan béo céo tai chinh dinh kém cta Cong ty Cé phan Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam
(“Cong ty"), bao gdm bang can déi ké todn tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024, bdo céo két qua hoat
déng kinh doanh va béo céo lwu chuyén tién té cho nam két thic cing ngay va cac thuyét minh
kém theo duwge Ban Biéu hanh Cong ty phé duyét phat hanh ngay 6 thang 3 nam 2025, duoc
trinh bay tir trang 5 dén trang 34.

Trach nhiém cla Ban Diéu hanh

Ban Biéu hanh Cénag ty chju trach nhiém |ap va trinh bay trung thuc va hop ly bée céo tai chinh
nay theo cdc Chuan mirc Ké toan Viét Nam, Ché d6 Ké todn Doanh nghiép Viét Nam va cac quy
dinh phap Iy cé lién quan dén viéc lap va trinh bay bao céo tai chinh, va chiu trach nhiém vé kiém
soat ndi bé ma Ban Diéu hanh xac dinh la can thiét d& ddm bdo viéc lap bao céo tai chinh khéng
co sai s6t trong yéu do gian lan hay nham 1an.

Trach nhiém cila kiém toan vién

Trach nhiém cua ching t&i la dwa ra y kién v& bao cdo tai chinh nay dya trén két qua kiém toan
cua chung t6i. Ching t6i da thirc hién céng viéc kiém toan theo cac Chudn muc Kiém todn Viét
Nam. Céc chuan mirc nay yéu cdu ching t6i tuédn thi chudn mue va cac quy dinh vé dao ddc
nghé nghiép va lap ké hoach va thye hién cudc kiém toan dé dat dwoc sw dam bao hop Iy vé
viéc liéu bao cdo tai chinh co con sai sét trong yéu hay khéng.

Céng viéc kiém toan bao gbm viéc thuc hién cac thi tuc nham thu thap cac bang chirng kiém
todn vé cac sé liéu va cédc thuyét minh trong bao cao tai chinh. Céc thl tuc duge lra chon dira
trén xét doan cla kiém todn vién, bao gém danh gia rdi ro co sai sot trong yéu trong béo cao tai
chinh do gian 1an ho&c nham 1an. Khi thie hién cac danh gia rli ro nay, kiem todn vién xem xét
kiém soat ndi bd clia Cong ty lién quan t&i viéc lap va trinh bay bao cdo tai chinh trung thuc va
hop Iy nham thiét ké céc thi tuc kigm toan phi hep véi tinh hinh thye té, tuy nhién khéng nham
muc dich dua ra y kién vé hiéu qua cla kiém sodt ndi bd cla Céng ty. Cong viéc kiém todn ciing
bao gom viéc danh gia tinh thich hgp clia céc chinh séch ké toan duwoc ap dung va tinh hop Iy
cla céc woc tinh ké todn clia Ban Diéu hanh Céng ty, cing nhw danh gid viéc trinh bay téng thg
béo cdo tai chinh.

Chung 16i tin réng cac béng chirng kiém toan ma ching téi thu dwgc la day di va thich hep lam
co s& cho y kién kiém toan cla ching t6i.

HPMG Urnied Branch, 8 branch of BPMG Limited, a Viemamess one member imilng Sadelity company
ard a membar irm of e KFMG global organitabon of indepanden! member frms nfiteted wih
KPMG internationad Lmasd, & povai Englsh edmpasry §mited by gusraniee. AR fghis resened.
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Y kién ciia kiém toan vién

Theo y kién cla chung t6i, bao cdo tai chinh da phan anh trung thuc va hop Iy, trén céc khia canh
trong yéu, tinh hinh tai chinh clia Céng ty Cé phan Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam tai ngay 31 thang 12
nam 2024, két qua hoat déng kinh doanh va lwu chuyén tién té cia Cong ty cho nam két thic
cling ngay, phi hop véi cac Chuan murc Ké todn Viét Nam, Ché d6 Ké toan Doanh nghiép Viét
Nam va cac quy dinh phap ly cé lién quan dén viéc lap va trinh bay béo cdo tai chinh.

Chi nhanh Céng ty TNHH KPMG tai Thanh phé Hé Chi Minh
Viét Nam

Bdo cdo kiém toan sé: 24-01-00464-25-1

Melson Rodriguez Casihan _
Gidy Chirng nhan Bang ky Hanh nghé
Kiém toan sé 2225-2023-007-1

Pho Tbng Giam déc

Thanh phé H& Chi Minh, ngay 6 thdng 3 nam 2025




Cong ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Bing can d6i ké toan tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024

TAI SAN
Tai sdn ngin han
(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

- A
Tien

Diu twr tai chinh ngén han
DPau tu nam gilr dén ngay ddo han

Céc khoin phii thu ngin han
Phai thu ngan han cua khich hang
Tra trude cho nguoi ban ngén han
Phai thu ngan han khac

Hang ton kho
Hang t6n kho
Du phong giam gid hang ton kho

Tai san ngén han khac
Chi phi tra trudc ngén han
Thué phai thu Nha Nudc

Tai san dai han
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 260)

Cac khoan phai thu dai han
Phai thu dai han khéc

Tai san ¢6 dinh
Tai san ¢ dinh hitu hinh
Nguyén gid
Gid tri hao mon lity ké
Tai san ¢ dinh vé hinh
Nguyén gid
Gid tri hao mon lity ké

Tai san do dang dai han
Xay dung co ban do dang

Tai san dai han khéic
Chi phi tra truéc dai han
Tai san thué thu nhap hodn lai
Thiét bi, vét tu, phy ting thay thé
dai han

TONG TAI SAN (270 = 100 + 200)

Miu B 01 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong tuw so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

1/1/2024
VND

386.099.782.224

28.575.511.984

249.717.653.857
249.717.653.857

42.794.167.861
38.594.478.260
213.671.266
3.986.018.335

64.250.105.470
64.721.231.901
(471.126.431)

762.343.052
390.653.530
371.689.522

270.832.526.428

30.000.000
30.000.000

257.971.838.666
257.970.046.559
1.293.531.539.850

(1.112.875.536.439) (1.035.561.493.291)

1.792.107
303.930.000
(302.137.893)

4.041.157.990
4.041.157.990

8.789.529.772
708.114.502
2.294.335.615

5.787.079.655

Ma Thuyét  31/12/2024

s6 minh VND

100 440.134.092.166
110 5 50.433.344.833
120 259.500.000.000
123 6 259.500.000.000
130 45.403.538.455
131 7 42.436.283.535
132 352.803.776
136 8 2.614.451.144
140 9a)  84.012.210.751
141 84.709.023.349
149 (696.812.598)
150 784.998.127
151 784.998.127
153 :
200 201.246.802.908
210 30.000.000
216 30.000.000
220 187.674.787.566
221 10 187.612.814.442
222 1.300.488.350.881
223

227 11 61.973.124
228 380.862.152
229 (318.889.028)
240 241.039.091
242 12 241.039.091
260 13.300.976.251
261 13 6.059.357.056
262 2.346.262.609
263 9(b) 4.895.356.586
270 641.380.895.074

656.932.308.652

Cdc Ihuyé:t minh dinh kém la bo phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh nay




Cong ty CO phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Bing ciin doi ké todn tai ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

Mau B 01 = DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng tu so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Mi Thuyét  31/12/2024 1/1/2024
so  minh VND VND
NGUON VON
NO PHAI TRA (300 = 310 + 330) 300 133.146.238.020  154.067.624.035
No ngin han ) 310 132.974.238.020  153.416.993.635
Phéixini ngudt bin ngin han il 14 21.186.921.920 16.204.745.318
Thué phai ndp Nhit nuric 33 15 97.167.571.524  102.171.228.035
Phai trd nguén lao dong 314 2.261.149.994 2.341.137.385
Chi phi phéri tra ngén han 315 1o 5.589.380.521 7.753.698.596
Phai trd ngan han khac 39 17 2.746.205.061 4.180.877.501
Vay ngin han 320 18 - 17.000.000.000
Quy khen thuong, phiic loi 322 19 4.023.000.000 3,765.306.800
No dii han 330 172.000.000 650,630,400
Phai tra dii han khiic 337 - 500.000.000
Dy phéng phai tra diu han 342 172.000.000 150.630.400
VON CHU SO HU'U (400 = 410) 400 508.234.657.054  502.864.684.617
Vén chu so hira 410 20 508.234.657.054  502.864.684.617
Von co phan 1 411 21 450.000.000.000  450.000.000.000
- Cé phiéu pho thing co quyén
biéu quyét _ 4ila 450.000.000.000  450.000.000.000
Quy diu ur phit rién 418 23 6.516.196.015 6.516.196.015
Lgi nhuan sau thue chua phin phoi 421 51.718.461.039 46.348 488.602
- Lgri nhugn sau thué chiea phan phoi
iy ké dén cudi na triedc _42la 15.377.762.775 [6.728 844.825
= Lot nhugn sau thué chiea phdn phoi
ndam nay 421b 36.340.698.264 29.619.643.777
TONG NGUON VON
(440 = 300 + 400) 440 641.380.895.074  656.932.308.652
Ngay 6 thang 3 nim. 2025~
Nguoi lap: Mot s . .
[z &
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VanBa Thi

Keé toan Trieong
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“S==—==Wguycn Hong Anh
Giam doc

Cac thuyer minh dinh kém la bg phén hop thanh cua bao cdo tai chinh nay
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Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam ,
Bio cdo két qua hoat ddng kinh doanh cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024
Miu B 02 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng tir s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Ma Thuyét 2024 2023
s6 minh VND VND

Doanh thu bén hang 01 25 935.030.033.556 809.156.113.830

Gia von hang ban 11 26 878.826.373.969  762.442.770.131

Lgi nhuin gép (20 = 01 - 11) 20 56.203.659.587  46.713.343.699
Doanh thu hoat déng tai chinh 21 27 11.780.142.818  14.292.458.835
Chi phi tai chinh 22 990.326.026 735.786.303

Trong do: Chi phi lai vay 23 990.326.026 735.786.303
Chi phi ban hang 25 1.263.270.614 5
Chi phi quan Iy doanh nghiép 26 28 14.991.709.389  17.405.844.312

Loi nhuan thuén tir hoat dong kinh doanh :

(30 =20 + (21 22) - (25 + 26)) 30 50.738.496.376  42.864.171.919
Thu nhép khic 31 3.724.466 45.203.693
Chi phi khéc 32 . 711.685.880

Két qua tir cdc hoat dong khac

(40 = 31 - 32) 40 3.724.466 (666.482.187)

Loi nhuén ké toan trwéc thué

(50 = 30 + 40) 50 50.742.220.842  42.197.689.732

Chi phi thué TNDN hién hanh 51 30  10.430.449.572 9.094.788.034

Lgi ich thué TNDN hoan lai 52 30 (51.926.994) (196.742.079)

Loi nhuin thuin sau thué TNDN

(60 = 50 - 51 - 52) 60 40.363.698.264  33.299.643.777

Lai trén c6 phiéu (Piéu chinh lai)

Lai co ban trén ¢ phiéu 70 31 808 670

Ngay 6 thang 3 ndm 2025

e,
Nguai lap: Neudi duyét:

\

Vin Ba Thi R

jayen Hong Anh
Ké toan Truong

Giam déc

Cac thuyet minh dinh kém la bg phan hop thanh cua bao cdo tai chinh nay




Céng ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam

Bio cdo luu chuyén tién té cho nim két thiic ngay 31 thang 12-nam 2024

(Phwong phép gién tiép)

Ma
sb

2024
VND

LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG KINH DOANH

Loi nhudn ké todn trwie thué
Diéu chinh cho cic khoan
Khau hao va phén b
Céac khoan du phong
Thu nhap i tién giri
Lai tir 131 sén co dinh di xéa s6
Chi phi I vay

Loi nhuin tir hoat dong kinh doanh
trréc nhimg thay dbi von liu déng
Bi¢n dong céc khoan phai thu
Bien dong hiang tom kho
Bién dong cdc khoan phai tra vi
ng phai tra khic
Bién ddng chi phi tra trwde

Tu“m{lﬁi vay di tra
Thu¢ thu nhip doanh nghiép da nép

Tién chi khic cho hoat déng kinh doanh

Luu chuyén tién thun tir hoat ding

kinh doanh

LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG AU TU

Tién chi mua tai san co dinh

Tién chi giri tien giri tai ngén hing
Ticn thu hoi tién giri tai ngan hang
Tién thu i tién giri

Luwu chuyén tién thuin tir hoat dong

dhiu tr

01

02
03
05
05
06

08

09
10

14
15
17

20

21
23

24
27

3

50.742.220.842

77.330.794 283
281.004.586
(11.780.142.818)

Mau B 03 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong te so 200/2014/TT-BTC

2023
VYND

42.197.689.732

77,907 .438.909
962.340.798
(14.292.458.835)

- 562.5300.000

990.326.026 735,786,303
117.564.202.919 108.073.296.907
(3.942.139.031) (19.809.446.111)
(19.130,017.198) 4.566,104.792

(8.358.240.164)

19.356.439.177

(1.750.468.252) (466,005, 844)
84.383.338.274 111.720.388.921
(1.018.690.410) (739.641.007)
(9.744 424.088) (4.609.026.273)
(3.236.032.627) (4.282.343.297)
70.384.191.149 102.089.378.254

(2.638.723.412)
(565.300.000.000)
555.517.653.857

13.226.311.255

(5.244.583.872)

(228.000.000.000)
156.897.534.247
4.515.658.045

805.241.700

(71.831.391.577)

Cdic thuyér minh dinh kém I bo phddn hop thinh ctia bdo edo tai chinh ndy




Céng ty Co phén Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Bio cdo lru chuyén tién t¢ cho nam két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nim 2024
(Phwong phap gian tiép — tiép theo)

~ MauB 03 -DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong nue s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Ma 2024 2023
sb VND VND
LUU CHUYEN TIEN TU HOAT PONG TAI CHINH
Tién thu tir vay ngan han 33 314.000.000.000  310.000.000.000
Tién chi trd ng goc vay 34 (331.000.000.000)  (293.000.000.000)
Tién chi tra cé tic 36 (32.331.600.000)  (30.770.800.000)
Liru chuyén tién thuan tir hoat déng
¢ai chinh 40 (49.331.600.000)  (13.770.800.000)
Luru chuyén tién thuan trong nim
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) 50 21.857.832.849 16.487.186.677
Tién dAu nim 60 28.575.511.984 12.088.325.307
Tién cudi nim (70 = 50 + 60)
(Thuyét minh 5) 70 50.433.344.833 28.575.511.984

Ngay 6 thang 3 ndm 2025

P
Ngudi lip: A g duyge
2 irRNr T —'.r_ .;‘._ )

s

Vin Ba Thi ryen I—Iﬁng Anh
Ké todn Truong Giam doc

Cdac rhuyé-l minh dinh kém la bo phdn hop thanh cua bdo cdo tai chinh nay
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Cong t}' Co phin Bia Sai Gon - - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho niim két thiic ngay 31 thiang 12 nam 2024

~ MiuB09-DN
(Ban hénh theo Thing tir s6 20002014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdng 12 nam 2014 cua Bg Tai chinh)

Cic thuyét minh nay 14 b) phan hop thanh va can duge doc déng thasi vai bio cdo ti chinh dinh
kem.

Pon vi bao cdo

Hinh thire sé hiru von

Céng ty Co phan Bia Sii Gon - Song Lam (“Céng ty") 1a mdt cong ty co phan dugc thanh lap tai
Vigt Nam.

Vao ngay 16 thing 6 nam 2017, co phiéu cia Cong ty chmh thire duge giao dich trén thi trrimg
giao dich ¢o phisu ciia cde cong ty dai ching chua niém yét (UPCOM) tai S& Giao dich Chimg
khodn Ha Ni, theo Quyét dinh s6 421/QD-SGDHN ngiy 8 thing 6 nam 2017 cua S6 Giao djch
Chimg khodn Ha Noi véi ma giao djch 1a BSL.

Hoat ding chinh
Hoat ding chinh ctia Céng ty li san xudt va kinh doanh céc san phim bia.

Chu k¥ sin xuit kinh doanh théng thuing
Chu k¥ san xuat kinh doanh thong thudmg cia Céng ty nam trong pham vi 12 thang.

CAu trite Cong ty
Tai ngay 31 thang 12 ndm 2024, Cong ty ¢6 176 nhan vién (1/1/2024: 179 nhan vién),

Co st 1ap bao cdo tai chinh

Tuyén b vé tuin tha

Biio cdo tai chinh dugce 1ap theo cdc Chuan myrc Ké todn Viét Nam, Ché dd Ké todn Doanh nghigp
Vigt Nam va cdc quy dinh phip 1y ¢6 lién quan dén viéc lgp va trinh bay bdo cdo tai chinh.

Co si do lwimg

Biio cdo tai chinh, trir bio cio {531 chuyén tién &, duoc lip trén cor Sy ddn tich theo nguyén tic gid
goc. Bdo cio liru chuyén tién 1 duge lip theo phuomg phép gidn tiép.

Ky ké toan nam

Ky ké todn ndm ciia Cong ty 1a tir ngay 1 thang 1 dén ngay 31 thang 12.
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(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cong ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho niim két thic ngiy 31 thing 12 niim 2024 (tiép theo)

~ MauB 09 -DN
(Ban hanh theo Thing tw sa 20002014/ TT-BTC
ngayv 22 thang 12 ndgm 2014 cua Bp Tai chinh)

Don vj tién té ké todn va trinh bay béo cdo tai chinh

Dom vi tién té ké toan cla Cong ty li Hfmg Viét Nam (“VND"), ciing lia dom vj tien 18 duoc sir dyng
cho muyc dich 1dp va trinh bay bdo cdo tai chinh.

Tém tit nhirng chinh séach ké todn chii yéu

Sau ddy 14 nhirng chinh sach ké toan chu yéu duge Céng ty dp dyng trong vigc lip béo cdo thi chinh
nay.

Cic giao dich bang ngoai (¢

Cic giao dich hiing cdc don vi tién khdc VND trong nam duoc quy doi sang VND theo tv gid thye
té tai ngdy giao dich.

Ciic khodn muyc thi san v ng phm tra c6 goc bang dom vj tién 1é khdc VND duge quy doi sang VND
lan hrot theo tv gid mua th.l_‘_,"l:l'l khoan va ty gid bin LhLI-}Eﬂ khoan cia ngin hing throngz mai noi
Cong ty thl.rm13 xuyén cd giao dich tai ngay két thic ky ké todn nim.

Tit ci cde khoin chénh léch ty gid duoc ghi nhin vio bdo cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh.

A
Tien

Tién bao gOm tién mit vi tién gir ngin hang khong kv han.

Piu tw nam giir dén ngay ddo han

Piéu tir nam gu‘r dén ngiy ddo han 1a cic khoan dau tr ma Ban Diéu hanh Cnng ty dy dinh va cé
kha niing nim giir dén ngay ddo han, Péu tr ndm giir dén ngﬁy ddo han 12 tién g ngén hang ¢6 ky
han nim gifr dén ngity ddo han va dwoc ghi nhin theo gid goc.

Céc khodn phai thu

Céc khoan phai thu khach hang va phai thu khédc duge phan dnh theo gid gbe trir di di phong phai
thu khé doi.
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(e)

()

(i)

(g)

Cong ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh bio cdo tai chinh cho nim két thiic ngay 31 thing 12 nam 2024 (tiép theo)

~ MiuB09-DN
{Ban hanh thea Théng nr 56 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdng 12 ndm 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Hing ton kho

Hiang tc:-n kho dirgc phan dinh theo gid thap hom giiia gid gm: vl gid tr Ihuan c6 the thyc hién dugc.
Gid gnc dugce tinh theo phuong phip binh quin gia quyén va bao gom 14l ci cic chi phi phit sinh
dé co dugc hang ton kho & d|a dlcm va trang thai hién tai. Doi véi thinh pham vii chi phi san xudt
kinh doanh do dang, gid gnc bao gom nguyén vat ligu, chi phi nhin cong tryc m:p va céc chi phi
san xudt chung duge phin b, Gia trj thudn c6 thé thyre hign duge ude tinh dya vao gia bin cua hing

ton kho trir di cic khoan chi phi ude tinh dé hoan thanh san phim va cée chi phf uée tinh dé bén
san pham.

Céng ty ap dung phuong phép ké khai thuong xuyzn dé hach todn hing ton kho.

Téi sin ¢6 dinh hiru hinh
Nguyén gid

Thi san cu dinh hiru hinh dugc the hi¢n theo nguyen gid trir di gid tri hao mon liy ké. N guyen gid
tai san co dinh hira hinh bao gom gaﬁ mua, thué nhip khau, céc loai thué mua hiing khong dum.
hodn lai vi chi phi li€n quan tryc tiep dé dura tai san den vi tri va trang thai hoat dong cho muc dich
sir dung da dy kién. Cic chi phi phdt sinh sau khi tii san ¢b dinh hiru hinh da dua vio hoat dong
nhur chi phi sira chira, bao dudmg va dai tu dwge ghi nhan vio bdo cdo ket qua hoat dong kinh doanh
trong ndm ma chi ph{ phit sinh. Trong edc trudmg hop ¢d thé chirng minh mdt cdch ro rang ring
cdc khoin chi phi nay lam tang lid ich kinh te trong tuong lai dur tinh thu duge tir vige sir dung tid
san co dinh hiru hinh vurot trén mirc hoat ddng tiéu chudn theo nhur dinh gid ban dau, thi cde chi phi
nay duge von héa nhur mot khoan nguyeén gid ting thém cua tai san ¢é dinh hiru hinh.

Khdu hao

Khﬂz.lllhﬂ.ﬂ durge tinh theo phuong phip duomng thiing dua trén thisi gian hine dung wéc tinh cia i
san co dinh hitu hinh. Tho gian hitu dung wée tinh nhar sau:

* nhi cira, vét kicn tric 10 - 25 nim
*  mdy moc va thiét bj 3 =15 ndm
= phuong tién vin chuyén 6 nim
= thiet bj van phong 3 -5 nam
= i san khiic 6 ném

Tai sin co dinh vo hinh
Phin mém mady vi tinh

Gid mua cia phan mém miy vi tmh mdi méa phan mém nay khéng phal i mét b phan c'an két véi
phan cirng cd lign quan thi duge vin héa va hach todn nhir ti san ¢d dinh vo hinh. Phin mém méy
vi tinh duge tinh khau hao theo phuong phap dirdmg thang trong thés gian 3 nam.




(h)

(i)
(1)

(i1)

3)

(k)

(L)

Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam '
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024 (tiep theo)
Maiu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng nr so6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Xay dung co ban do dang

Xay dung co ban do dang phan dnh céc khoan chi phi xdy dung hoéc trién khai tai san c¢d dinh hiru
hinh chura dugc hoan thanh. Khong tinh khau hao cho xay dyng co ban dé dang trong qua trinh xay
dung.

Chi phi tra truwéc dai han

Cong cu va dung cu

Cong cu va dung cu bao gém cic tai san Cong ty nam gitr dé sir dung trong qua trinh hoat dong
kinh doanh théng thuong, vai nguyen gid ctia mGi tai san thap hon 30 triéu VND va do d6 khéng
di diéu kién ghi nhan Ia tai san ¢6 dinh theo quy dinh hién hanh. Nguyén gid cia cong cu va dyung
cu dugc phén bo theo phuong phap dudng thing trong thai gian 2 nam.

Chi phi sita chira, bdo duong

Chi phi sira chira, bao dudng duge ghi nhén ban dau theo gid gbc. Chi phi sira chita, bao dudng
dugc phan bd theo phuong phap duong thing trong thoi gian 3 nam.

Cac khodin phai tra ngwoi ban va phai tra khac

Cic khoan phéi tra ngudi ban va phai tra khac duoc thé hién theo gid gbe.

Du phong

Mot khoan dy phong dugc ghi nhan néu, do két qua cia mét su kién trong qué khi, Cong ty c6
nghia vu phdp Iy hién tai hodc lién d6i c6 thé wéc tinh mét cach dang tin cdy, va chic chin sé lam
giam siit cac lgi ich kinh té trong twong lai dé thanh todn céc khoan n¢ phai tra do nghia vu dé.
Khoan dl,r phong dugc xéc dinh bang cich chiét khéu dong tién du kién phai tra trong ur(mg lai voi
ty 1é chiét khau trude thué phan 4nh danh gid coa th trurong & thoi diém hién tai vé gid tri thoi gian
clia tlén va riii ro cu thé ciia khoan ng dé6.

Von cb phan

Cé phiéu phé thong

Co phneu pho théng dugc ghi nhan theo ménh gi4. Chénh Iech gura 56 tién nhan dugc tir phét hanh
co phleu so vé1 m¢nh gid dugc ghi nhin vao thing du von ¢6 phan. Chi phi phat sinh lién quan tryc
tiép dén viéc phat hanh cb phiéu, trir di anh huong thué, dugce ghi giam vao thang du von c6 phan.
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(m)

(n)
(i)

(it)

(o)

Céng ty Co phiin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam

Thuyét minh béo cio tai chinh cho nam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 niim 2024 (tiép theo)

~ MiuB09-DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong e so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua Bé Tei chinh)

Thué

Thué thu nhip doanh nghigp tinh trén lgi nhudn hodc 16 cua ndm bao gnrn thué thu nhap hi¢n hianh
v thué thu nhap hoiin lai. Thué thu nhip doanh nghiép du(;n.. ghi nhin trong bio cdo két qua hoat
dong kinh doanh ngual trir tromg hgp 6 cdc khoan thué thu nhép lién quan dén cic khoan mye

duoc ghj nhén thing vio von chi so hitu, thi khi d6 céic thué thu nhip nay ciing diroc ghi nhan thang
vao von cha sé hitu.

Thué thu nhip hJ;-n hanh 14 khoin thué dyr kién phai nop dua trén thu nhap thu thué trong nam, sir

dung cdc mire thué suat tai ngiy két thic kv ké todn nam, v céc khoan diéu chinh thué phai np
lién quan dén nhirng nam trrde.

Thué thu nhédp hoan lai duge tinh theo phuong phip bang cin ddi ké todn cho ciic chénh léch tam
thin gifra gid tri ghi so cia cdc khoan myc Tal san va ng phai tra cho mue dich béo cido tai chinh v
gid trj sir dung chu muc dich tinh thué. Gia trj cia thué thu nhap hodn lai duge ghi nhan dua trén
céch thire dy kién thu hm hofic thanh todn gid tri ghi s6 cia cdc khoan muc tai san va ng phai tra sir
dung cic mire thué suat cé hiéu lyc hodc co ban ¢6 hiéu lye tai ngay két thiic kv ké todn nim.

Tai san thué thu nhip hoin lai chi dugc ghi nhdn trong pham vi chiic chan ¢6 du loi nhudn tinh thué
trong trong lai dé cic chénh léch tam thoi niry o the sir dung dm;m Thi san thue thu nhip hoan lai

durge ghi gidm trong pham vi khéng con chic chin la cic lgi ich vé thué lién quan nity sé str dung
duoe.

Doanh thu vi thu nhép khic

Doanh thu bdn hing

Doanh thu bén hing duge ghl nhan trong bio cio két qua hoat déng kinh doanh khi phan 16n rui ro
via loi ich gén lién véi quyén so h-.ru san pham hodc hang hod duge Lhuyén giao cho ngudi mua.
Doanh thu khﬂng durge ghi nhiin neu nhir ¢6 nhitng yéu té khéng chiic chin trong yéu lién quan i
kha néng thu hdi cac khoin pha: thu hodic lién quan t&i kha nﬁ.ng hﬁng bén bj tra lai. Doanh thu

héng ban duge ghi nhin theo s6 thuin sau khi da trir di <6 chiét khau giam gid ghi trén hoa dom bidn
hing.

Thu nhdp tir tién lai

Thu nhdp tir tién lai dl.rf;ts‘: ghi nhin trong bdo cdo ket gua hoat dong kinh doanh theo ty 1€ trong ing
viri thivi gian dya trén s6 du gée va 13i suit dp dung.

Céc khoin thanh toén tién thué hoat ding

Cic khoan thanh todn tién thué hoat dong duge ghi nhin trong bdo cédo ket qua hoat dong kinh
doanh theo phwong phéap duong thﬁng dyra viio thisi han ciia hgp dong thué. Céc khodn hoa hong di

thué duge ghi nhin trong T:naiﬂ cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh nhur 1 mét bo phén hop thinh cioa
tong chi phi thué, trong sudt thoi han thué.

14

£ )8l

L]
- 2

izl



(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Céng ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cio tai chinh cho niam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024 (tiép theo)

, Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong tu so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Chi phi di vay

Chi phi di vay dugc ghi nhan la chi phi trong ndm khi chi phi nay phét sinh, ngoai trir Irtr(mg hop
chi phi di vay lién quan dén céc khoan vay cho muyc dich hinh thanh tai san du diéu kién von hoa
chi phi di vay thi khi d6 chi phi di vay s& dugc von héa va duge ghi vdo nguyén gid céc tai san nay.

Bido cdo by phén

Mot bo phan la mét hop phan ¢6 thé xéc dinh riéng biét cua Cong ty tham gia vao viéc cung cap
cac san pham hodc dich vu lién quan (bd phan chla theo hoat dong kinh doanh), hodc cung cap san
pham hodc dich vu trong mét moéi truong kinh té cu thé (b6 phan chia theo ving dia 1y), moi bo
phén nay chiju rui ro va thu dugc loi ich khdc biét vai cdc bd phan khdc. Mau bdo cdo bo phan co
ban cua Cong ty la dya theo bg phan chia theo hoat déng kinh doanh.

Lai trén c6 phiéu

Cong ty trinh bay lai co ban trén co phleu (EPS) cho céc ) phleu phé théng. Lii co ban trén ¢b
phiéu dwoc tinh bang cach lay 1ai hoac 16 thude vé ¢ dong phé théng cia Cong ty (sau khi da trir
di khoan phan b vao quy khen thuong, phic lgi cho ky ké todn nam) chia cho s6 lugng cb phiéu
pho théng binh quéin gia quyén Iuu hanh trong nam.

Cong ty khong ¢6 céc ¢d phiéu c6 tdc dong suy giam tiém nang, quy dinh vé trinh bay lai suy giam
trén co phleu khong ap dung.

Cac bén lién quan

Céc bén dugc coi la bén lién quan cua Cong ty néu mot bén c6 kha nang, tric tlep hoac gidn tiép,
kiém soat bén kia hodc gay anh huong ding ké téi bén kia trong vigc ra céc quyét dinh tai chinh va
hoat dong, hodc khi Cong ty va bén kia ciing chiu sy kiém sodt chung hoa{: anh huémg déing ké
chung. Céc bén lién quan c6 thé 14 cdc cong ty hodc cdc ¢4 nhin, bao gdm ca cdc thanh vién gia
dinh théin cén cua cac ca nhan dugc coi la bén lién quan.

Théng tin so sanh

Thong tin so sdnh trong bdo cdo tai chinh nay dugce trinh bay dudéi dang dir liéu twrong tng. Theo
phucmg phap nay, cdc thong tin so sanh ctia nam truoe duge trinh bay nhu mot phén khong thé tich
roi cua bdo cédo tai chinh ndm hién tai va phai dugc xem xét trong moi lién hé véi cdc s6 liéu va
thuyét minh ctia nam hu;n tai. Theo d6, thong tin so sdnh trong bdo cdo tai chinh nay khong nham

muc dich trinh bay vé tinh hinh tai chinh, két qua hoat dong kinh doanh va luu chuyén tién té cua
Cong ty trong ndm trude.
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(a)

Cong ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cio tai chinh cho nim két thiic ngay 31 thing 12 nam 2024 (tiép theo)

. Miu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong tu so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Bao cdo bo phan

Hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh chinh cua Cong ty la san xuat va kinh doanh CAC san pham bia. Hoat
dong khac 1a kinh doanh céc san pham lién quan dén qua trinh san xuat bia. Trong nam, hoat déng
khéc chiém ty trong khong ding ké trong tong doanh thu va két qua hoat dong ciia Cong ty. Theo
d6. théng tin tai chinh trinh bay trén bang cin doi ké todn tai ngdy 31 thang 12 nam 2024 va ngay
1 théng 1 ndm 2024 va doanh thu, chi phi trinh bay trén bdo cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh cho

cac nam két thic ngay 31 thdng 12 nam 2024 va ngay 31 thang 12 ndm 2023 chu yéu lién quan dén
hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh chinh cua Cong ty.

Vé mat dia ly, Cong ty chi hoat dong trén lanh thd Viét Nam.

Tién
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Tit’;“.n mit 509.235.007 622.640.007
Tien guri ngan hang 49.924.109.826 27.952.871.977

50.433.344.833 28.575.511.984

Pau tw nim giir dén ngay ddo han

Piu tu ndm glit dén ngay ddo han — ngin han phan dnh c4c khoan tién giri ¢6 ky han tai cic ngén
hang vai thoi gian ddo han trén 3 lhang ké tir ngay giri va thoi gian ddo han con lai khong qua 12
théng ké tir ngay bdo cdo. Céc khoan tién giri ¢6 kv han dugce giri bang VND va huong 1ai tir 4,7%
dén 5,2% mot nam (1/1/2024: tir 4,5% dén 5.2% mot nam).

Phai thu ngiin han ciia khach hang

Phii thu ciia khéch hang chi tiét theo cdc khach hang I6n

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND

Téng Cong ty C6 phan Bia - Rugu - Nudce Giai Khat Sai Gon ~ 41.496.087.134  38.028.310.220
Cic khach hang khéc 940.196.401 566.168.040

42.436.283.535 38.594.478.260




(b)

(a)

Cong ty Cd phin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam

Thuyét minh bdo céo tai chinh cho nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 niim 2024 (tiép theo)

Mau B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 ndam 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Phai thu cua khach hang la cac bén lién quan

Cong ty me

Tong Cong ty C6 phan Bia - Ruou - Nude Giai Khat Sai Gon

31/12/2024
VND

1/1/2024
VND

41.496.087.134 38.028.310.220

Khoan phai thu thuong mai tir cong ty me khéng c6 dam bao, khong hudmg 13i va ¢6 thé thu duoc

khi yéu cau.

Phai thu ngin han khéc

Chi phi lai vay phai thu

Ky quy
Khiac

Hang ton kho

Hang ton kho

Hang mua dang di
trén duong

Nguyén vit li¢u
Cong cu va dung cy
Chi phi san xuat
kinh doanh d¢ dang
Thanh pham

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
2.407.060.685 3.884.998.291
15.000.000 15.000.000
192.390.459 86.020.044
2.614.451.144 3.986.018.335
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
Gis goc Dw phong Gia gic Dy phong
VND VND VND VND
8.015.624 857 - 130.840.000 -
34.876.013.780 - 24.375.349.346 -
884.151.523  (696.812.598) 1.944.494.833  (471.126.431)

24.451.361.783
16.481.871.406

- 21.788.120.304
- 16.482.427.418

84.709.023.349

(696.812.598) 64.721.231.901

(471.126.431)
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(b)

Céng ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam
Thuyét minh bdo cio tai chinh cho nim két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nadm 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Bién dong cua du phong giam gid hang ton kho trong nam nhu sau:

2024 2023
VND VND

S6 du dau nam 471.126.431 2.595.479.424

Dy phong trich lap/(hoan nhap) trong ndm 225.686.167  (232.534.311)
Chuyén sang du phong giam gid thiét bi, vét tr va
phu ting thay thé dai han - (1.891.818.682)
S6 du cudi nam 696.812.598  471.126.431
Thiét bi, vat tw va phu ting thay thé dai han
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
Gia gbce Dw phong Gid goc Du phong
VND VND VND VND

Thiét bi, vat tr va phu

tiing thay thé dai han 15.757.857.054 (10.862.500.468) 16.615.631.304 (10.828.551.649)

Bién dong cua dy phong giam gia thiét bj, vat tr va phu tiing thay thé dai han trong nam nhu sau:

S6 du dau nam
Dy phong trich lap trong nam
Chuyén tir dy phong giam gid hang tdn kho

Sé du cudi nam

2024
VND

10.828.551.649
33.948.819

2023
VND

7.720.488.258
1.216.244.709
1.891.818.682

10.862.500.468

10.828.551.649
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Cong ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

~ MiuB09-DN
fBan hanh theo Thong tie s6 200020140T-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 ndm 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Tai san c6 dinh v6 hinh

Phiin mém
may tinh
VND
Nguyén gia
$6 du dau nam 303.930.000
Tang trong nam 76.932.152
$6 du cudi ndm 380.862.152
Gid tri hao mon liy ké
S6 dir ddu nam 302.137.893
Khau hao trong nim 16.751.135
S6 du cudi nim 318.889.028
Gid tri con lai
S0 du dau nam 1.792.107
S50 dur cudi ndm 61.973.124

Trong thi san co dinh v hinh tai ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024 ¢6 cac i san co nguyen gid la 304
trigu VND (1/1/2024: 204 triéu VND) da duoc khau hao het nhung van dang duge sir dung.




12.

13.

Céng ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Thuyét minh bdo cio tai chinh cho nim két thiic ngay 31 théng 12 niim 2024 (tiép theo)

Miu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B Tai chinh)

Xay dung co ban dé dang

S6 du dau nim

Téang trong nim

Chuyén sang tai san ¢6 dinh hiru hinh
Chuyén sang chi phi tra trude dai han
Xoa s6

2024
VND

4.041.157.990

4.725.894.590
(4.530.894.590)
(3.995.118.899)

2023
VND

608.539.091
3.995.118.899

(562.500.000)

S6 du cudi nam 241.039.091  4.041.157.990
Cic cong trinh xiy dung co ban dé dang 16n nhu sau:
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Ning cap cong suat nha mdy 195.000.000 -
Nang cap h¢ thong rira chai - 1.897.599.514
Ning cap hé thong ghép mi mét Ferrum - 1.619.694.341
Khéc 46.039.091 523.864.135
241.039.091  4.041.157.990
Chi phi tra trwdéc dai han
Congcuva  Chi phi sira chira, )
dung cu bao dwing Khac Tong
VND VND VND VND
$6 du dau nam 298.001.812 " 410.112.690 708.114.502
Téng trong nim 270.259.093  3.090.703.562 140.649.714  3.501.612.369
Chuyeén tir xdy dung
co ban do dang - 3.995.118.899 - 3.995.118.899
Phan b trong ndm (275.783.682) (1.464.775.961)  (404.929.071) (2.145.488.714)
S6 dur cudi nam 292.477.223  5.621.046.500 145.833.333  6.059.357.056
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14.
(a)

(b)

Cong ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nam két thic ngay 31 thiang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

Mau B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong nie s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nam 2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Phai tra nguoi ban ngin han

Phii tra ngudi bin chi tiét theo cdc nha cung cip lén

Téng Cong ty C6 phan Bia - Ruou - Nude Giai khat Sai Gon
Cong ty TNHH Co nhigt Dién lanh Bach Khoa

Cong ty TNHH Thuong mai va Van tai Thai Tan

Coéng ty TNHH Thinh Birc

Coéng ty TNHH Krones Viét Nam

Céc nha cung cap khac

Phai tra ngwoi ban la cic bén lién quan

Congtyme
Tong Cong ty C6 phan Bia - Rugu - Nudc Giai khat Sai Gon

Cdc cong ty lién quan

Codng ty TNHH Co khi Sa Be Co

Cong ty TNHH MTV Thuong mai Bia Sai Gon
Cbéng ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon — Quang Ngii

Gi4 g6c/S6 6 kha ning tra no

31/12/2024
VND

7.134.381.466
3.294.944 220
1.209.120.772

543.065.600

9.005.409.862

1/1/2024
VND

5.111.323.284

766.513.900
2.387.320.000
1.851.505.040
6.088.083.094

21.186.921.920

16.204.745.318

Gi4 gbc/S6 c6 kha ning tra ng

31/12/2024
VYND

7.134.381.466

813.022.520
399.108.280
61.398.000

1/1/2024
VND

5.111.323.284

126.694.600
36.717.463
46.656.000

Khoan phai tra thuong mai cho cdc bén lién quan khong ¢6 dam bao, khéng chiu 1ii va phai tra

trong vong 30 ngay ké tir ngay ghi trén héa don.
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Céng ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo céo tai chinh cho niim két thiic ngay 31 thing 12 ndm 2024 (tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN
{Ban hanh theo Théng tie so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdng 12 nam 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

16.

17.

18.

Chi phi phai tra ngéin han

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Chi phi lai vay 4223840202 4.252.204.586
Chi phi xay dung 397.108.833  1.934.399.990
Chi phi phat tra khic O68.440.486 1.567.094.020

Phai tri ngin han khic

5.589.389.521

1.753.698.596

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Co i phai tra 2.559.900.000  3.391.500.000
Ky qu¥ da nhin 35.000.000 535.000.000
Phai tra ngan han khic 151.305.061 254.377.501
2.746.205.061  4.180.877.501
Vay ngin han
1/1/2024 31/12/2024.
Gid tri ghi so/ i Gia trj ghi so/
' Am

Khoin trong Bién dgng trong n Khoin trong

kha ning tra ng Tang Hoan tra khi ning tra ny
VND VND VND VND

Vay ngan han 17.000.000.000  314.000.000.000 (331.000,000.000) 5
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Cong ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nim két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)
Méiu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong tie so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 ngm 2014 cua Bg Tai chinh)

Quy khen thuong, phic lgi

Quy nay duge trich lap tir lgi nhuén sau thué chua phén phoi theo sy phé duyét cua cdc co dong tai
cude hop Dai Héi dong C6 dong. Quy duge sir dung dé chi tra cic khoan khen thuomg va phiic lgi
cho céc nhan vién cia Cong ty theo chinh sdch khen thudng va phiie loi ega Cong ty.

Bién dong cuia quy khen thuéng, phiic lgi trong ndm nhur sau:

2024 2023

VND VND
S6 du déu ném ‘ 3.765.306.800  3.518.022.260
Trich lap trong nam (Thuyét minh 20) ) 4.023.000.000 3.680.000.000
Diéu chinh qu§ khen thuémg, phiic lgi (Thuyét minh 20) (529.274.173) 849.627.837
Sur dyung trong ndm (3.236.032.627) (4.282.343.297)
S6 du cudi nim 4.023.000.000  3.765.306.800
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21.

22,

23.

Cong ty C6 phan Bia Sai Gon - - Song Lam

Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

~ Miu B 09 -DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng ne so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 ndm 2014 cua B Tai chinh)

Vén cb phan

Vén ¢6 phan duge duyét va da phét hanh cila Cong ty la:

31/12/2024 va 1/1/2024
S6 ¢6 phiéu VND
Vén cb phan dwgc duyét va da phat hanh
C6 phiéu phé thong 45.000.000  450.000.000.000
S6 ¢6 phiéu dang lwu hanh
Co phiéu phd thong 45.000.000  450.000.000.000

C6 phiéu pho thdng c6 ménh gla 12 10.000 VND. Moi co phiéu phé théng tuong tng vai mot phiéu
biéu quyét tai cic cude hop ¢o dong cua Cong ty. Cic c6 dong dugc nhan cb tirc ma Céng ty cong
bé vio timg thii diém. Tat ca co phiéu ph théng déu c6 thir tr wu tién nhu nhau déi voi thi san con
lai cua Cong ty.

Khong c6 bién dong vén cb phan trong cic nam két thic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024 va ngay 31
thang 12 nam 2023.

Cb tire

Bai hoi dong co doéng thuong nién cua Cong ty vio ngay 19 thang 4 nam 2024 da quyét dinh chia
cb tirc véi sO tién 12 31.500 triéu VND (twong dwong 700 VND/c6 phiéu) tir lgi nhuén sau thué chira
phéan phm nam 2023 (2023: 31.500 triéu VND (twong duong 700 VND/cb phleu} tr 11 nhuén sau
thué chwa phin phdi nam 2022, trong dé 18.000 triéu VND da duge tam ung cho c¢o dong trong
nam 2022).

Quy dau tw phat trién

Quy dau tu phat trién dugc trich lap tir 1gi nhudn sau thué chua phan phéi theo nghj quyét cua Pai
Hoi dong C6 dong. Quy nay dugce thanh lap nhim muc dich m& rong kinh doanh trong tuong lai.
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24.

(a)

(b)

23.

Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam
Thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh cho niam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

' Maiu B 09 - DN
(Ban hanh theo Thong tur so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nam 2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

4 hd . e 3 -~ ‘0 ‘ 7
Céac khoin muc ngoai Bang can doi ke toan

Cam két thué

Céc khoan tién thué toi thiéu phai tra cho cdc hop dong thué hoat dong khong dugce huy ngang nhu
sau:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Trong vf:rng mot ndm 1.599.041.000 1.239.041.000
Ttr hai dén nam nam 5.406.164.000 4.956.164.000
Sau ndm nim 36.241.949.250 37.480.990.250
43.247.154.250 43.676.195.250

Cam két chi tiéu von

Tai ngay bdo cdo, Cong ty ¢6 cdc cam két vén sau di dugce phé duyét nhung chua dugc phan dnh
trong bang cén dbi ké todn:

31/12/2024 17112024
VND VND
Da duyét nhung chua ky hop dong 68.591.686.360 54.083.250.635
Da duyét va da ky hop dong 455.000.000 -

69.046.686.360 54.083.250.635

Doanh thu ban hang

Tong doanh thu thé hién téng gid tri hang da ban, khéng bao gébm thué gia tri gia tang va thué tiéu
thu dac biét.

2024 2023

VYND VND
Téng doanh thu
* Ban thanh pham 024284512272  802.893.469.981
®= Bdn phe li€u va doanh thu khéac 10.745.521.284 6.262.643.849

935.030.033.556  809.156.113.830
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26.

27.

28.

Cong ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam_
Thuyét minh béo céo tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 thang 12 niam 2024 (tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Thong tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 nam 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Gid von hang béan

Ban thanh pham

Dy phong giam gia hang ton kho va thiét bi, vat t,
phu ting thay thé dai han

Gid von khic

Doanh thu tai chinh

Thu nhap i tién giri

Chi phi quan ly doanh nghiép

Chi phi nhéan vién

Chi phi dich vy mua ngoai
Chi phi khau hao

Chi phi quan 1y khadc

2024
VND

878.303.138.743

259.634.986
263.600.240

2023
VND

761.250.836.206

983.710.398
208.223.527

878.826.373.969

762.442.770.131

2024
VND

11.780.142.818

2023
VND

14292 .458.835

2024
VND

6.912.861.258
3.935.085.258

650.585.144
3.493.177.729

2023
VND

8.822.472.727
3.038.557.856

852.976.153
4.691.837.576

14.991.709.389

17.405.844.312
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29.

30.

(a)

(b)

Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam

Thuyét minh béo céo tai chinh cho nam két thic ngay 31 thing 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

Miu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng tur s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Chi phi san xuat va kinh doanh theo yéu té

2024
VND

Chi phi nguyén vt liéu trong chi phi san xuat
Chi phi khéu hao va phan bo

Chi phi dich vu mua ngoai

Chi phi nhan cong va nhén vién

Chi phi khdc

726.597.612.328
77.330.794.283
50.852.238.766
36.593.583.146
6.375.668.093

2023
VND

612.228.985.685
77.907.438.909
43.097.166.773
33.722.424.706
7.777.565.690

Thué thu nhap doanh nghiép

Ghi nhén trong bio cdo két qua hoat dong kinh doanh

2024 2023

VND VND
Chi phi thué thu nhip doanh nghiép hién hanh
Nam hién hanh 10.430.449.572 9.022.779.598
Dy phong thiéu trong nhitng nam trude - 72.008.436

10.430.449.572 0.094.788.034

Loi ich thué thu nhép hoan lai
Phat sinh va hoan nhap cdc chénh léch tam thoi (51.926.994) (196.742.079)
Chi phi thué thu nhéap doanh nghiép 10.378.522.578 8.898.045.955
Pbi chiéu thué suit thyrc té

2024 2023

VYND VND

Loi nhuan ké toén trudc thué 50.742.220.842

42.197.689.732

Thué theo thué suat ciia Cong ty 10.148.444.168 8.439.537.946
Chi phi khong duoc khau trir thué 230.078.410 386.499.573
Du phong thiéu trong nhimg nam trude - 72.008.436
Chi phi thué thu nhip doanh nghiép 10.378.522.578 8.898.045.955
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(c)

31.

(i)

(*)

{3*-"

(i)

Cong ty C6 phin Bia Sai Gon - Séng Lam
Thuyét minh bso co tai chinh cho niam két thic ngiy 31 thang 12 niim 2024 (tiép theo)

1 Miu B 09 - DN
{Ban hanh theo Théng tw so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thdang 12 ndm 2014 cua B¢ Tai chinh)

Thué suit dp dung

Theo ¢dc diéu khoan trong Ludt Thué thu nhap Doanh nghig¢p, Cong ty ¢6 nghia vy ndp cho Nha
nude thué thu nhip bang 20% trén Igi nhudn tinh thué.

Lii co bin trén co phiéu

Vigc tinh ldi cor ban lrﬁn co pl:ueu cho nam ket thic ngay 31 thing 12 nim 2024 dya wén sé loi
nhuin thuan thude vé cd déng phd lhung sau khi trir di 50 trich vio qu§ khen thudng, phic lgi vi
50 lugng co phigu phd thong binh quin gia quyén, chi tiét nhu sau:

Lgi nhugdn thudan thuge vé cé dong phé théng

2024 2023
VND VND
(Diéu chinh lai)
Lot nhudn thuan trong nam 40.363.698.264 33.299.643.777
Trich qu¥ khen thudmg va phuc lgi (*) {4.023.000.000) (3.680.000.000)
Bicu chinh quy khen thudmg vi phiie lgn (5%) - 529.274.173
Lgi nhudn thudn thude vé 6 dang phé thong 16.340.698.264 30.148.917.950

S trich viio quy khen thuong, phic lgi duge wdc tinh dya vao s6 duge phé duyét bai cic co dong
tai cudc hop Pai hdi dong Co déng thurdme nién.

Vige trich 1ap quy khen thudng phiic e cho nm tai chinh ]u.:;T thiic ngiy 31 thing 12 nam 2023
durge trinh bay lai trén co s& 50 trich Idp thye le di duoc cic co dnng Ih{mg qua tai Pai hii dﬂng co
dong thudmg nién. Theo d6, 13 co ban trén ¢6 phiéu cho nam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2023
da duoc diéu chinh lai thanh 670 déng/cé phicu d1,re= trén s0 diéu chinh da trich 13p vio quy khen
thudng phic lgi (nhur da bio cdo trude diy: 658 dong/co phiéu).

S$6 cé phiéu phé théng binh quén gia quyén

Khéng ¢é bién dong o lrgmg ch phu..u cho cic nam két thiic ngay 31 thang 12 nam 2024 vi ngay
31 thdng 12 ndm 2023. S6 luong c6 phiéu phd thang binh quin gia quyén dung dé tinh 1di co ban
trén ¢6 phieu cho ca hai nim béo cdo 1a 45.000.000 co phicu.

31
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32.

Céng ty Co phin Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh bdo cdo tai chinh cho nam két thiic ngay 31 théng 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)
Miu B 09 - DN

(Ban hanh theo Théng ur s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua Bo Tai chinh)

Cic giao dich chii yéu véi cac bén lién quan

Ngoai cédc s dur vdi cdc bén lién quan dugc trinh bay tai céc thuyét minh khéc cia béo cdo tai chinh,
trong nam Cong ty ¢6 cic giao dich chu yéu sau voi cac bén lién quan:

Gia tri giao dich
2024 2023
VND VND

Congtyme
Tong Cong ty Co phén Bia - Ruou - Nwéc Gidi khét Sai Gon
Bén thanh pham (da bao gom thué tiéu thu ddc biét) ~ 1.851.152.751.020  1.621.122.513.990

Bén nguyén vat liéu - 226.478.513
Bin dich vu 263.600.240 208.223.527
Mua dich vu 153.768.000 -
Mua nguyén vit li¢u 679.839.585.374 555.215.450.994
C4 tirc duge cong bd 21.665.000.000 9.285.000.000
Co tire da tra 21.665.000.000 21.665.000.000
Cdc bén lién quan khdc

Cong ty TNHH Mot Thanh Vién Thuwong mai Bia Sai Gon

Mua dich vu 6.262.758.908 5.585.549.612
Cong ty TNHH Co khi Sa Be Co

Mua cbng cu va dung cu 496.713.700 356.656.652
Mua nguyén vat liéu 158.765.000 418.168.780
Mua dich vu 1.603.913.000 902.677.000
Mua tai san co dinh 536.080.000 -
Céng ty C6 phan Thwong mai Bia Sai Gon Bic Trung Bé

Mua hang hod 1.211.842.350 1.156.057.110
Céng ty Co phan Pau tw Théi Binh

C6 tirc duge cong bo 1.166.666.900 500.000.100
Co tire da tra 1.166.666.900 1.166.666.900
Céng ty C phan Bia Sai Gon - Quang Ngai

Mua nguyén vit liéu 721.450.000 303.200.000

Cong ty TNHH MTYV Tip doan Bia Sai Gon
Mua hang héa 116.483.840 -

Céng ty Co phan Nwéc Giai khat Chwong Dwong
Mua hang héa 08.564.512 -




Cong ty Co phan Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh bdo cso tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 théng 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

Cong ty TNHH MTYV Bia Sai Gon - Ha Tinh

Bén cong cu dung cu
Mua nguyén vit li¢u

Céng ty TNHH Bat djng sin Areco
Mua dich vu

~ MauB09-DN
(Ban hanh theo Théng tw s6 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua Bé Tai chinh)

Gia tri giao dich

Cong ty Co phan Thwong mai Bia Sai Gon Mién Bic

Mua hang hod

2024 2023
VND VND
47.791.670 -
- 178.250.000
47.055.750 -
5.738.400 -

Céng ty TNHH MTV Thwong mai Bia Sai Gon Mién Trung

Mua hang hoa

Cong ty C6 phan Rwou Binh Tay
Mua hiang hoa

Hji dong Quan tri

Thi lao

Ong Tan Teck Chuan Lester — Chu tich

Ong Neo Gim Siong Bennett — Chu tich

Ong Van Thanh Liém — Thanh vién

Ong Cao Thanh Bich — Thanh vién

Ong Nguyén Hbng Anh — Thanh vién

Ong V& Phuée Giau — Thanh vién

Ong Vuong Nguyén Dang Khoa — Thanh vién
Ong Lé Xuén Son — Thanh vién

Ban Kiém soat

Thii lao

Ba Hoang Thanh Van — Trudng ban
Ba Nguyén Thanh Thily — Thanh vién
Ba Luu Thanh Thao — Thanh vién

Ban Diéu hanh
Luong, thudng va cic phic 1¢1 khéc

- 82.604.780

- 32.364.000
130.000.000 32.500.000
- 97.500.000
91.000.000 91.000.000
91.000.000 91.000.000
91.000.000 91.000.000
19.569.892 -
71.430.108 54.347.220
- 36.652.780
91.000.000 91.000.000
52.000.000 52.000.000
52.000.000 52.000.000
2.580.173.935 1.985.197.534
33



Cong ty Co phén Bia Sai Gon - Song Lam
Thuyét minh béo cdo tai chinh cho nim két thic ngay 31 théng 12 nim 2024 (tiép theo)

~ Miu B 09-DN
{Ban hanh theo Thong nr so 200/2014/TT-BTC
ngay 22 thang 12 nam 2014 cua B Tai chinh)

33. Cic giao dich phi tién té tir hoat dong dau tu

2024 2023
VND VND
Mua tai san ¢é dinh nhung chira thanh todn 4.980.933.330 =

34. Thong tin so sanh
Ngoai trir 1ai co ban trén ¢o phiéu duge dieu chinh lai nhu duge trinh by & Thuyét minh 31, cdc
thong tin so sdnh khdc tai ngay 1 thing | nam 2024 duge mang sang (ir s0 liéu trinh bay trong béo
céo thi chinh cua Céng ty tai ngay va cho nam két thic ngiy 31 thing 12 nam 2023,
Ngay 6 thang 3 ndm 2025

Ngudi lap:

Vin Ba Thi T Ngif*' A&‘mg Anh
Ké toan Truong H‘_)(’;éfdm doc
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Statement of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company (“the Company™)

presents this statement and the accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese

Accounting System for enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial
reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Management:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 34 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its results of operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the

Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are no reasons to believe that the Company will not be able
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying
financial statements for issue.

he Board of Management

Nghe An Province, 6 March 2025
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KPMG

KPMG Limited Branch

10th Floor, Sun Wah Tower

115 Nguyen Hue Street, Ben Nghe Ward
District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
+84 (28) 3821 9266 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock
Company (‘the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the
statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended and the explanatory notes thereto
which were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Management on 6 March 2025, as
set out on pages 5 to 34.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the Board of Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited Branch, a branch of KPMG Limited, a Vietnamese one member limited liability company
and 8 member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company imited by guarantee_All rights resarved.
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KPMG

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
financial position of Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024 and
of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the
relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

KPMG Limited’s Branch in Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Audit Report No.: 24-01-00464-25-1

Nelson Rodriguez Casihan
Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 2225-2023-007-1

Deputy General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, 6 March 2025




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Current assets
(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

Cash

Short-term financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Accounts receivable - short-term
Accounts receivable from customers
Prepayments to suppliers
Other shon-term receivables

Inventories
Inventories
Allowance for inventories

Other current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Taxes receivable from State Treasury

Long-term assets
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 260)

Accounts receivahle — long-term
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulared deprecianon
Intangible fixed assets
Cast
Accumulated amortisation

Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Other long-term assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Long-term tools, supplies and
spare parts

TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200)

100

110

120
123

130
131
132
136

140
141
149

150
151
153

200

210
216

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

240
242
2640
261
262

263

270

Form B 01 - DN

fIssued under Circular No. 20002014/TT-BT¢C
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code Note

tn

7

B

9ia)

13

9(h)

31/112/2024
VYND

440,134,092.166

50,433,344,833

259,500,000,000
259,500,000,000

45,403,538,455
42,436,283,535
352,803,776
2.614,451,144

84,012,210,751
84,709.023,349
(696,812,598

784,998,127
784,908,127

201,246,802,.908

30,000,000
30,000,000

187,674,787,566
187,612,814,442

1,300.488,350,881

1/1/2024
VND

386,099,782,224

28,575.511,984

249,717,653,857
249.717,653,857

42,794.167,861
38.594.478,260
213,671,266

3 986,018,335

64,250,105,470
64,721,231,901
{471,126.,431)

762,343,052
390,653,530
371,689,522

270,832,526,428

30,000,000
30,000,000

257.971,838,666
257,970,046,559

1,293,531,539,850
(1,112,875,536,439) (1,035,561,493,291

61,973,124 1,792,107
380,862,152 J03,930), 06K
(318.889.028) (102,137,893}
241.039,091 4,041,157,990
241,039,091 4.041,157.990
13,300,976,251 4,789,529.772
6.059,357,056 TO8, 114,502
2,346,262,609 2,194,335,615
4.895,356.586 5,787,079,655
641,380,895,074  656,932,308,652

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 01 - DN
flIssued under Circular No. 20002004/ TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministrv of Finance)

Code Note
RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330) 300
Current liabilities 310
Accounts payable to suppliers 31 14
Taxes payable to State Treasury S -
Payables to employees 314
Accrued expenses 15 16
Other short-term payables 39 17
Short-term borrowings 320 18
Bonus and welfare fund 322 19
Long-term liabilities 330
Other long-term pavables 337
Provision — long-term 342
EQUITY (400 = 410) 400
Owners' equity 410 20
Shure capital 411 21
= Ordinary shares with voting rights 41 la
Investment and development fund 418 23
Retained profits 421
- Retained profits brought forward ~ 421a
- Retained profit for the year 421b
TOTAL RESOURCES 440
(440 = 300 + 400)

6 March 2025

Prepared by:

et

‘ﬁﬁ

Chief Accountant

31/12/2024
VND

133,146,238,020

132,974,238,020
21,186,921,920
07.167,571,524
2,261,149,994
5,589,389,52 1
2,746,205,061

4,023,000,000
172,000,000
172,000,000
508,234,657,054

508,234.657,054
450,000,000,000
430,000,000, 004
6,516.196,015
51,718,461,039
15,377,762,775
36,340,698,264

1/1/2024
VYND

154,067,624,035

153.416,993,635
16,204,745 318
102,171,228,035
2,341,137,385
7,753,698.596
4,180.877.501
17,000,000,000
3,765,306.800

650,630,400
500,000,000
150,630,400

502,864,684.617

502,864,684.617
450,000,000.000
450,000,000,000
6,516,196.015
46,348 485,602
16,728,844, 825
29.619.643.777

641.380.895,074

656,932,308,652

Nguyen Hong Anh
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Statement of income for the vear ended 31 December 2024

Revenue from sales of goods
Cost of sales

Gross profit (20 =01- 11)

Financial income
Financial expenses
In which: Interest expense
Selling expenses
General and administration expenses

Net operating profit
{30 =20+ (21 - 22) - (25 + 26)}

Other income
Other expenses

Results of other activities (40 = 31 - 32)

Accounting profit before tax
(50 = 30 + 40)

Income tax expense — current
Income tax benefit — deferred
Net profit after tax (60 = 50 - 51 - 52)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Prepared by:

ouilite

Chief Accountant

Code Note
01 25
11 26
20
21 27
22
2
25
26 28
30
31
32
40
50
51 30
52 30
(1]
70 31

6 March 2025

Form B 02 - DN

(Isyued under Circular No. 20002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2024 2023
YND YND

935.,030,033,556 809,156,113,830
B78,826,373,969 762,442,770,131
56.203,659,.587 46,713,343,699
11.780,142. 818 14,292 458,835
990,326,026 735,786,303
oo, 326,026 733,786,303
263,270,614 -
14.99],709,.389 7.405,844. 312
50,738,496,376 42,864,171.919
3,724 466 45,203,693

4 711,685,880
3.724.466 (i, 482,187)
50,742,220,842 42,197,689,732
10.430.449.572 49.094.788.034
(51.926.,994) (196,742,079
40,363.698.264 33.299.643,777

(Restated)
S08 670

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024
(Indirect method)

Form B 03 - DN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code 2024 2023
VND VND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Accounting profit before tax 01 50,742,220,842 42,197.689,732
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 77,330,794,283 77.907,438,909
Allowances and provisions 03 281,004,586 962,340,798
Interest income 05 (11,780,142,818)  (14,292,458,835)
Losses from construction in progress
written off 05 - 562,500,000
Interest expense 06 990,326,026 735,786,303
Operating profit before changes in
vniking Gl 08 117,564,202,919  108,073,296,907
Change in receivables 09 (3,942,139,031) (19,809,446,111)
Change in inventories 10 (19,130,017,198) 4.566,104,792
Change in payables and other liabilities 11 (8,358,240,164) 19,356,439,177
Change in prepaid expenses 12 (1,750,468,252) (466,005,844)
84,383,338,274  111,720,388,921
Interest paid 14 (1,018,690,410) (739,641.097)
Corporate income tax paid 15 (9,744,424,088) (4,609,026,273)
Other payments for operating activities 17 (3,236,032,627) (4,282,343,297)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 70,384,191,149  102,089,378,254
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for additions to fixed assets 21 (2,638.723.412) (5,244,583,872)
Placements of term deposits at banks 23 (565,300.000,000) (228,000,000,000)
Collections of term deposits at banks 24 555,517.653,857 156,897,534,247
Receipts of interests 27 13,226,311,255 4.515.658.,048
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 805,241,700 (71,831,391,577)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 December 2024
(Indirect method - continued)

Form B 03 - DN
{Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2024 2023
Colle VND VND
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 33 314,000,000,000  310,000,000,000
Payments to settle loan principals 34 (331,000,000,000) (293.000,000,000)
Payments of dividends 36 (32,331,600,000)  (30,770,800,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (49,331,600,000)  (13.770.800.000)
Net cash flows during the year
(50 = 20 + 30 + 40) =11} 21.857,832.849 16,487,186,677
Cash at the beginning of the year 60 28,575,511,984 12,088,325,307
:_;n::least] the end of the year (70 = 50 + 60) 70 50.433,344,833 28.575,511,984

6 March 2025

Prepared by:

o

— :
Van Ba Thi
Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Circular No. 2002014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

Reporting Entity

Ownership structure

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) is incorporated as a joint stock
company in Vietnam,

On 16 June 2017, the Company's shares were officially traded on the unlisted public companies
market (UPCOM) of the Hanoi Stock Exchange in accordance with Decision No, 421/QD-SGDHN
dated 8 June 2017 of the Hanoi Stock Exchange with the code of BSL.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are to produce and trade beer products.

Normal operating cycle

The normal operating eycle of the Company 1s generally within 12 months.

Company structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 176 employees (1/1/2024: 179 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,

the Vienamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements
applicable to financial reporting.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements, except for the statement of cash flows, are prepared on the accrual basis
using the historical cost concept. The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Company 1s from | January to 31 December,




(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Cirenlar No. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounting and presentation currency

The Company’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND™), which is also the currency used
for financial statements presentation purpose.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation
of these financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at rates
of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND
at the account transfer buying rate and account transfer selling rate, respectively, at the end of the

annual accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Company most frequently
conducts transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the statement of income.

Cash

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company's management has the intention and
ability to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are term deposits at banks held to
maturity and stated at costs.

Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debis.
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(e)
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(i)

(i)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{ Issweed under Circular No. 20002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct
labour and attributable manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
of inventory items, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

The Company applies the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair and
maintenance and overhauls cost, is charged to the statement of income in the year in which the costs
are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expecied 1o be obtained from the use of tangible fixed
assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditure 1s capitalised as an
additional cost of tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

*  buildings and structures 10 — 25 years
* machinery and equipment 5 - 15 years
= motor vehicles 6 years
= office equipment 3 -5 years
= others 6 years
Intangible fixed assets

Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, 15 capitalised
and treated as an intangible asset. Software cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 years.
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(k)

U

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of tangible fixed assets which have not been fully

completed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during the period of
construction.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Tools and instruments

Tools and instruments include assets held for use by the Company in the normal course of business
whose costs of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not qualified for

recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulation. Cost of tools and instruments are amortised
on a straight-line basis over 2 years.

Maintenance expenses

Maintenance expenses are initially stated at cost. Maintenance expenses are amortised on a straight-
line basis over 3 years.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their costs.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are stated at par value. Excess of cash receipt from shares issue over par value is
recorded as share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares, net of tax
effects, are recognised as a deduction from share premium.
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{lssued under Circular No. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
at the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised,

Revenue and other income

Goods sold

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised in the statement of income when significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or possible return of goods.
Revenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting sales discounts stated on
the invoice.

Interest income

[nterest income is recognised in the statement of income on a time proportion basis with reference
to the principal outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of income
as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.




(p)

(q)

{r)

(s)

(t)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 08 — DN
{Issued under Circular No. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except where
the borrowing costs relate to borrowings in respect of the construction of qualifying assets, in which
case the borrowing costs incurred during the year of construction are capitalised as part of the cost
of the assets concerned.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing
related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments. The Company’s primary format for segment reporting
is based on business segments.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share (“EPS™) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders (after deducting
any amounts appropriated to bonus and welfare fund for the annual accounting period) of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

The Company did not have potentially dilutive shares and therefore does not present diluted
camings per share.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company 1f one party has the ability. directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions, or where the Company and the other party are subject to common control
or significant influence. Related partics may be individuals or corporate entities and include close
family members of any individual considered to be a related party.

Comparative information

Comparative information in these financial statements is presented as corresponding figures. Under
this method, comparative information for the prior year is included as an integral part of the current
year financial statements and is intended to be read only in relation to the amounts and other
disclosures relating to the current year. Accordingly, the comparative information included in these
financial statements is not intended 1o present the Company's financial position, results of operation
or cash flows for the prior vear.
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Circular No. 20002014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Segment reporting

The Company's principal business activities are to produce and trade beers. Other activities are to
trade products relating to beer production processes. During the vear, other business activities
accounted for an insignificant proportion of total revenue and operating results of the Company.
Accordingly the financial information presented in the balance sheets as at 31 December 2024 and
| January 2024 and the revenue and expenses presented in the statements of income for the years

ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 were mainly related to the Company's principal
business activities,

Geographically, the Company only operates in the territory of Vietnam.

Cash
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Cash on hand 509,235,007 622,640,007
Cash in banks 49924,109,826  27.952,871,977

50,433,344,533 28.575.511.984

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments represented term deposits at banks with original terms to maturity of
more than three months from their transaction dates and remaining terms to maturity of not greater
than twelve months from the reporting date. These term deposits were denominated in VND and
earned interest at rates ranging from 4.7% to 5.2% per annum (1/1/2024: from 4.5% to 5.2% per
annumy),

Accounts receivable from customers

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customers

A1/12/2024 /172024
VYND VYND
Saigon Beer - Alcohol - Beverage Corporation 41.496,087,134 38.028.310.220
Other customers 840,196,401 566,168,040

42.436,283,535 38,594 478.260

16




(b)

(a)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

{Issieed under Circwlar No. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts receivable from a related party

317122024 1/1/2024
VND VND
The parent company
Saigon Beer - Alcohol - Beverage Corporation 41,496,087,134  38,028,310,220

The wrade related amounts due from the parent company were unsecured, interest free and are
receivable upon demand,

Other short-term receivables

317122024 1/1/2024
YND VD
Interest receivable 2.407.060.685 3,884 998 201
Deposits 15,000,000 15,000,000
Others 192,390,459 86,020,044

2614451144 3.986,018,335

Inventories
Inventories
31/12/2024 1/1/2024

Cost Allowance Cost Allowance

VND VND VND VND
Goods in transit 8,015,624 857 - 130,840,000
Raw materials 34,876.,013,780 - 24,375,349.346 -
Tools and supplies 884,151,523  (696,812,598) 1944494833  (471.126.431)
Work in progress 24.451.361, 783 - 21,788,120.304 -
Finished goods 16,481,871,406 - 16482427418 .

84.709,023,349 (696,812,598) 64,721,231.901 (471,126,431)
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(b)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Circular No. 2002014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Movements of allowance for inventories during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

VND VYND
Opening balance 471,126,431 2595479424
Allowance made/(reversed) during the year 225,686,167 (232.534,311)

Transfer to allowance for long-term tools,
supplies and spare parts

(1,891.818,682)

Closing balance 696,812,598 471,126,431

Long-term tools, supplies and spare parts

311272024 17172024
Cost Allowance Cost Allowance
VYND VND VND VND

Long-term tools,
supplies and spare parts ~ 15,757,857,054 (10,862,500.468) 16,615,631,304 (10,828,551.649)

Movements of allowance for long-term tools, supplies and spare parts during the year were as
follows:

2024 2023

VND VND
Opening balance 10,828,551.649 7.720, 488,258
Allowance made during the year 33948819 1,216,244,709
Transfer from allowance for inventories - 1,891.818,682
Closing balance 10,862,500,468  10.828.351.649
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10.

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Opening balance

Additions

Transfer from construction in progress
Other adjustments

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance
Closing balance

Form B (9 - DN

(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Buildings and Machinery and Motor Office
structures equipment vehicles equipment Others Total
VND VND VND VND VND VYND
223,437,662,362 1,049,189,968,241  7,650,541,526 11,551,315,214  1,702,052,507 1,293,531,539,850
- 1,063,860,000 720,000,000 919,570,000 - 2,703,430,000
- 4,530,894,590 - - - 4,530,894,590
- (277.513,559) - - - (277,513,559)
223437662362 1,054,507,209,272  8,370,541,526 12,470,885,214  1,702,052,507 1,300,488,350,881

110,611,422,889
10,506,486,614

905,050,654,857
66,251,888,023

7,521,719,286
205,741,931

10,698,514,002
331,791,580

1,679,182,257
18,135,000

1,035,561,493,291
77,314,043,148

121,117,909,503

971,302,542,880

7,727,461,217

11,030,305,582

1,697,317,257

1,112,875,536,439

112,826,239,473
102,319,752,859

144,139,313,384
83,204,666,392

128,822,240
643,080,309

852,801,212
1,440,579,632

22,870,250
4,735,250

257.970,046,559
187,612,814,442

Included in tangible fixed assets as at 31 December 2024 were assets costing VND27,873 million (1/1/2024: VND22,683 million) which were fully depreciated

but still in active use.

19

Z Zem YV




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B (09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

11. Intangible fixed assets

Software
VND

Cost
Opening balance 303.930,000
Additions 76,932,152
Closing balance 380,862,152
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 302,137,893
Charge for the year 16.751,135
Closing balance 318,889,028
Net book value
Opening balance 1,792,107
Closing balance 61,973,124

Included in intangible fixed assets as at 31 December 2024 were assets costing VND304 million
(1/1/2024: VND204 million) which were fully amortised but still in active use.
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13.

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

{Issued under Circular No. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Construction in progress

2024 2023
VND VND
Opening balance 4,041,157,990 608,539,091
Additions during the year 4725894590  3.995,118.899
Transfer to tangible fixed assets (4,530,894.590) -
Transfer to long-term prepaid expenses (3,995,118,899) -
Written off - (562,500,000
Closing balance 241,039,041 4.041,157.990
Major constructions in progress were as follows:
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Upgrade of factory capacity 195,000,000 -
Upgrade of bottle washing systems - 1,897.599.514
Upgrade of Ferrum eyelid grafting systems - 1,619,694 341
Others 46,039,091 523,864,135
241,039,091 4.041,157.990
Long-term prepaid expenses
Tools and Maintenance
instruments expenses Others Total
VND VND VND VND
Opening balance 298,001,812 - 410,112,690 708,114,502
Additions 270,259,093  3,090,703,562 140.649.714 3,501,612,369
Transfer from
construction in progress - 3,995,118,899 - 3,995118,899
Amortisation for the year  (275,783,682) (1,464,775.961) (404.929071) (2,145 488 714)
Closing balance 292,477,223 5,621,046,500 145,833,333 6.059,357,056

s = @ Z
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(a)

(b)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 — DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts payable to suppliers

Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers

Cost/Amount within
repayment capacity
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND

Saigon Beer - Alcohol - Beverage Corporation 7,134,381.466 5,111,323,284
Bach Khoa Thermal and Refrigeration Mechanical
Company Limited 3,294,944 220 -
Thai Tan Transport and Trading Company Limited 1,209,120,772 766,513,900
Thinh Duc Company Limited 543,065,600 2,387,320,000
Krones Vietnam Company Limited - 1,851,505,040
Other suppliers 9.005,409,862 6,088,083,094

21.186,921,920 16,204.745.318

Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties

Cost/Amount within

repayment capacity
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND

The parent company

Saigon Beer - Alcohol - Beverage Corporation 7,134,381.,466 5,111,323,284
Related companies

Sa Be Co Mechanical Co., Ltd 813,022,520 126.694,600
Sai Gon Beer Trading Company Limited 399,108,280 36,717,463
Sai Gon - Quang Ngai Beer Joint Stock Company 61,398,000 46,656,000

The trade related amounts due to the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are payable
within 30 days from invoice date.

= 2 I I=l
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Taxes payable to State Treasury

Special sales tax
Value added tax
Corporate income tax
Personal income tax
Other taxes

1/1/2024
YND

87,095,934,996
11,351,302,935
1.698.881,967
25,108,137

Incurred
VND

926,868,238,748
185.414.964.556
10,4300,449,572
1007405002
1,225,866,721

102,171,228,035

1,124,946,924.599

sy == \&

Form B 09 - DN

fIssued wnder Circalar No. 2000200400°T-BTC
duted 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Fiance)

Paid
VND

(931,170,665,597)
(117,987,655,611)
(9,744 424,088)
(992,853,994)
(854,177.19%)

Net-off
VND

(68,829,115,099)

(371.689.522)

31272024
VND

82,793,508,147
9,949.496.781
4,384,907 451
39,659,145

(1,060,749.776,489)

(69,200,804,621)

97.167.571.524
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L




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

16. Accrued expenses

Interest expense

Construction costs
Others

17. Other short-term payables

Dividends payable
Deposits received
Others

18. Short-term borrowings

1/1/2024
Carrying
amount/
Amount within
repayment
capacity
VND

Short-term
borrowings 17,000.000,000

Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VYND
4,223,.840,202  4,252,204,586
397,108,833  1,934,399,990
968,440,486  1,567,094,020
5,589,389,521  7,753,698,596
31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
2,559,900,000  3,391,500,000
35,000,000 535,000,000
151,305,061 254,377,501
2,746,205,061  4,180,877.501
31/12/2024
Carrying
amount/
Amount within
Movements during the year repayment
Increase Decrease capacity
VND VND VND

314,000,000,000 (331,000,000,000)
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
i Issued under Circular No, 20002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is established by appropriating from retained profits as approved by the shareholders at
the General Meeting of shareholders. This fund is used to pay bonus and welfare to the Company’s
employees in accordance with the Company s bonus and welfare policies.

Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

VND VND
Opening balance 3,765,306,800 1.518.022.260
Appropriation during the year (Note 20) 4,023,000.000 3,680,000,000
Adjustments to bonus and welfare fund (Note 20) (529.274,173) 849,627,837
Utilisation (3,236,032,627)  (4,282,343,297)
Closing balance 4,023 ,000,000 3,765,306,300

ACAY
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Changes in owners’ equity

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Net profit for the year

Dividends (Note 22)

Appropriation to bonus and wellare fund (Note 1Y)
Adjustments to 2022 bonus and welfare fund (Note 19)

Balance as at 1 January 2024

Net profit for the year

Dividends (Note 22)

Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund (Note 19)
Adjustments to 2023 bonus and welfare fund (Note 19)

Balance as at 31 December 2024

&1

I Nt

Form B 04 - DN

{fssued under Circular No. 20002004/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Investment and Retained
Share capital  development fund profits Total
VND VND YND ¥YND
450,000.000,000 6,516,196,015 31,078.472,662 487,594,668.677
% - 33,299.643,777 33.299.643.777
i - (13,500.000,000)  (13,500.000,000)
- - (3,680.000,000) (3,680,000,000)
- - (849.627,837) (849,627 ,837)
450,000,000.000 6,516,196,015 46,348.458,602 S02.864,684.617
- - 40,363,698 264 40,363,698.264
$ - (31,500,000,000)  (31,500,000,000)
’ c (4,023,000,000) (4,023,000,000)
- - 529,274,173 529,274,173
450,000,000,000 6.516.196,015 51,718461.039  508,234,657,054
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B (8 - DN
i fssiied under Cireular No. 20002013/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Share capital

The Company's authorised and issued share capital are:

31/12/2024 and 1/1/2024

Number of shares VND
Authorised and issued share capital
Ordinary shares 45,000,000  450,000,000,000
Shares in circulation
Ordinary shares 45,000,000  4350,000,000,000

All ordinary shares have a par value of VNDI10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings
of the Company. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to ime.  All
ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

There was no movement in share capital for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023.

Dividends

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company on 19 April 2024 resolved to declare
dividends amounting to VND31,500 million (equivalent to VND700 per share) from retained
profits of 2023 (2023: VND31,500 million (equivalent to VND700 per share) from retained profits
of 2022, in which VND18,000 million was advanced to shareholders in 2022).

Investment and development fund

Investment and development fund was appropriated from retained profits in accordance with the
resolution of the General Meeting of shareholders. This fund was established for the purpose of
future business expansion.

s/
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25.

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Off balance sheet items

Lease

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VYND VND
Within one year 1,599,041,000 1,239,041,000
From two to five years 5,406,164,000 4,956,164,000
More than five years 36,241,949,250 37.480,990,250

43,247,154,250 43.676.195,250

Capital expenditure commitments

At the reporting date, the Company had the following outstanding capital commitments approved
but not provided for in the balance sheet:

31/12/2024 1/1/2024
VND VND
Approved but not contracted 68,591,686,360 54.083,250,635
Approved and contracted 455,000,000 -
69,046,686,360 54,083.250,635

Revenue from sales of goods

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold, exclusive of value added tax and special
sales tax.

2024 2023 M
VND VND VA
¥(¢

Total revenue \ &
= Sales of finished goods 924,284,512,272 802,893,469,981 \
= Sales of scraps and others 10,745,521,284 6,262,643,849 <

935,030,033,556  809,156,113,830




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

26. Cost of sales

Finished goods sold

Allowance for inventories, long-term tools, supplies

and spare parts
Others

27. Financial income

2024
VND

878,303,138,743

259,634,986
263,600,240

2023
VND

761,250,836,206

983,710,398
208,223,527

878,826,373,969

762,442,770,131

2024 2023

VND VND
Interest income from term deposits 11,780,142,818 14,292 458,835

28. General and administration expenses

2024 2023

VND VND
Staff costs 6,912,861,258 8,822,472,727
Qutside services 3.935,085,258 3,038,557.856
Depreciation 650,585,144 852,976,153
Others

3,493,177,729

4,691,837,576

14,991,709,389

17,405,844,312
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30.

(a)

(h)

Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Circular No. 20072014/TT-BTC
dared 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Production and business costs by elements
2024 2023
VND VND

Raw material costs included in production costs 726,597.612,328 612,228.985.685

Depreciation and amortisation 77,330,794 283 77,907 438,909
Outside services 50,852,238,760 43,097,166,773
Labour and staff costs 36,593, 583,146 33,722,424706
Others 6,373,668,093 1,777,565,600
Corporate income tax
Recognised in the statement of income

2024 2023

VND VND
Current tax expense
Current year 9.022,779.598

Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax benefit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at the Company’s tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Under provision in prior years

Income tax expense

10,430,449,572

72,008,436

10.430,449,572

9,094, 788,034

(51,926,994) (196,742,(79)

10,378,522,578 8,808,045,955
2024 2023
VND VND

50,742.220,842  42,197,689,732

10,145 444,168 8,439,537 946

230,078,410 186,499,573

- T2,008.436

10,378,522 578 8,898,045,955
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{Issued under Circular No, 20002014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Applicable tax rate

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law, the Company has an obligation to pay the government
income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was based on the
net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders after deducting the amounts appropriated to bonus
and welfare fund and a weighted average number of ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

2024 2023
VYND VND
{Restated)
Net profit for the year 40,363,698,264 33,299,643,777
Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund (*) (4,023,000,000) (3,680,000,000)
Adjustments to bonus and welfare fund (**) - 529,274.173
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 36,340,698,264 30,148,917,950

The appropriation to bonus and welfare fund was estimated based on the budgeted amount approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of sharcholders.

The appropriation to bonus and welfare fund for the vear ended 31 December 2023 was restated
based on the actual appropriation which was approved by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting of shareholders. Accordingly, basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2023 has been restated to VND670 per share based on the adjusted amount appropriated to bonus
and welfare fund (as previously reported: VND658 per share).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

There was no movement in the number of shares for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate the basic
earnings per share for two presented periods is 45,000,000 shares.

3l
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN

fIssued under Circular No. 20002014/ TT-BTC
duated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to the related party balances disclosed in other notes to the financial statements, the
Company had the following significant transactions with related parties during the year:

Transaction value

2024

VND
The parent company
Saigon Beer - Alcohol - Beverage Corporation
Sales of finished goods (inclusive of special sales tax) 1.851,152,751,020
Sales of raw materials -
Sales of services 263,600,240
Purchases of services 153,768,000
Purchases of raw materials 679,839.585.374
Dividends declared 21,665.000,000
Dividends paid 21,663,000.000
Cther related parties
Sai Gon Beer Trading Company Limited
Purchases of services 6.262.758 908
Sa Be Co Mechanical Co., Ltd
Purchases of tools and supplies 496,713,700
Purchases of raw matenals 158,765,000
Purchases of services 1,603,913,000
Purchases of fixed assets 536,080,000

Saigon Bac Trung Bo Beer Trading Joint Stock Company

Purchases of goods 1,211,842,350

Thai Binh Investment Joint Stock Company

Dividends declared 1.166,666.900
Dividends paid 1.166,666,900
Sai Gon - Quang Ngai Beer Joint Stock Company

Purchases of raw materials 721,450,000
Saigon Beer Group Company Limited

Purchases of goods 116,483,840
Chuong Duong Beverages Joint Stock Company

Purchases of goods 08,564,512

2023
VND

1.621,122,513,990

226,478,513
208,223,527
555,215,450,994
8,285,000,000
21,665,000,000

5.585.549.612

356,656,652
418,168,780
902,677,000

1.156.057.110

500,000,100
1. 166,666,200

303,200,000 .




Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 0% - DN

{Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Sai Gon - Ha Tinh Beer One Member Company Limited

Sales of tools and supplies
Purchases of raw materials

Areco Realty Company Limited
Purchases of services

Northern Saigon Beer Trading Joint Stock Company
Purchases of goods

Saigon Beer Mien Trung Trading Joint Stock Company

Purchases of goods

Binh Tay Liquor Joint Stock Company
Purchases of goods

Board of Directors

Fees

Mr. Tan Teck Chuan Lesier — Chairman
Mr. Neo Gim Siong Bennett — Chairman
Mr. Van Thanh Liem — Member

Mr. Cao Thanh Bich — Member

Mr. Nguyen Hong Anh — Member

Mr. Vo Phuoc Giau — Member

Mr. Vuong Ngayen Dang Khoa — Member
Mr. Le Xuan Son — Member

Board of Supervisors

Fees

Ms. Hoang Thanh Van — Head of Board of Supervisors
Ms. Nguyen Thanh Thuy — Member

Ms. Luu Thanh Thao — Member

Board of Management
Remuneration

Transaction value

2024
VND

47,791,670

47,055,750

5,738,400

130,000,000

91,000,000
91.000,000
91,000,000
19,565,892
71,430,108

91,000,000
52,000,000
52,000,000

2,5800,173,935

2023

YND

178,250,000

82.604.780

32,364,000

32,500,000
97,500,000
91,000,000
91.000,000
91,000,000

54,347,220
36,652,780

91.000.000
52,000,000
52,000,000

1.985,197.534
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Saigon - Songlam Beer Joint Stock Company
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Form B 09 - DN
{ Isswed under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

33. Non-cash investing activities

2024 2023
VND VYND
Cost of fixed assets acquired but not paid yet 4,980,933,330

34. Comparative information
Except for the restatement of basic earnings per share as disclosed in Note 31, the comparative

information as at | January 2024 was derived from the balances and amounts reported in the
Company’s financial statements as at and for the vear ended 31 December 2023,

6 March 2025

Prepared by:

-z—f'—'____—_-_._,)
Van Ba Thi '-"-'}-cn Hong Anh
Chief Accountant Director
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